’..Oﬂgi()l' JE il ith 7=

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd.
o M E R R A A

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RS SEMAY 2 BRAF)

Stock Code k{7 4ms%E 960

2011 Annual Report F ]



N HE R IR
Changzhou Hongzhuang Project



H &%

Contents

12
17
30
37
61
70
72
73
75
76
79
219

ESUES

ACIR v

EEY MG R

BV e

B BHLRE w ww  or A
EHLASEREA B
R e

(e SRk

18 57 AZ BT R A

o>
=
N
&
%
S

i
op
S
&
S
il
it

AR S R R B 5
T4 P 5 M

Group Structure

Corporate Information

Schedule of Principal Properties

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
Report of the Directors

Corporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five Years Financial Summary

¥ Annual Report 2011




LIPS

Group Structure

HE ] L A BR 23 ]
Longfor Properties Co. Ltd.

evelopment
Hong Kong (Holding) Limited

91.3%

Chongqing Longhu Development Co., Ltd.

Property Development Property Investment
FefJag 2 71 B H
Subsidiaries JCE* Projects
B HE W . BT SR L2 & PR
1.3% - N
Longfor Chongqing 91.3% Chongqing Bamboo 49.6% Chongqing North  91.3% Ch EEM%(?CO 91.3%
Grove Paradise Walk ongqing
IS Y 94.2% —
Longfor Chengdu A0 e ET PN A= T4
JERCHEW Chengdu Century  49.1% Chongqing West ~ 91.3% Chengdu 93.48%
Longfo; e 89.9% Peak View Paradise Walk Three Thousand Mall
- T S A Jen B E
A o : :
. 91.3% NALTE 48.4% Chongqing 91.3%  Beijing Summer Palace 89-93%
Longfor Shanghai Dalian Longhe ¢ Crystal Palace Y Sgtarl;y Street
R TR R
ongtor Atan Chongqing Fairy Castle 91.3%
S Paradise Walk
Loiﬂg%zﬁggﬂuxi o1.3%
& HEARENE o1 39
3 Chongqing Chunsun 2%
B HE 98.5% Starry Street

Longfor Shenyang

) 95.2%
Longfor Qingdao

W HE T8
Longfor Changzhou

M HEH 100%
Longfor Hangzhou

LS 91.3%

Longfor Yantai

Longfor Yunnan

S HE W)
Longfor Ningbo 100%

96.8%

91.3%

" JCE 7 3 R e 0 1
* JCE = Jointly Controlled Entity

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i Hh & B A &
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Mr. FENG Jinyi (Appointed on
3 June 2011)

Mr. WEI Huaning (Appointed on
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Mr. Frederick Peter CHURCHOUSE
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Mr. Frederick Peter CHURCHOUSE

Mr. XIANG Bing
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Mr. FANG Shengtao

Mr. XTANG Bing

Mr. CHAN Chi On, Derek
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Business and Address of
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in Hong Kong
Website Address

Company Secretary
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Stock Code:
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Cayman Islands
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Chaoyang District
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Central, Hong Kong

www.longfor.com
Mr. Lo Chi Lik, Peter
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Schedule of Principal Properties

HEIEIE'S DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES

K& [iANGFS Bl
ALY HEhEEE  hEREEH REWR  MEREWK
HA4H VR ] KRR LIRS Expected  Group’s Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under

Project Location Stage of Completion ~ Completion Date in the Project Remaining Unsold  Development Planning

(Sq.m) (Sq.m) (Sq.m)

(Frik) (Fiik) (k)

FRiLF PREEHLLERAE 0% 3112206 91.30% 9755 250,762 185,622 W/S/o/cp
Chunsen Land Chenjiaguan, Jiangbei District, Chongging PRC
L FRERL B HEREY 90l 3112/05 91.30% 3032 62815 60848 wsice
Peace Hill County  Lijiazhen, Beibu New District, Chongging PRC
AR TRERNPTRELZR 0% 31/12/2014 9,50 T8 563,579 87,28 rsice
Toschna Villa University City, Shapingba District, Chongging PRC
TEH PHERT LA 57 31122016 957 120199 293,103 636,189 Ris/cp
Bamboo Grove Dazhuzhen, Beibu New District, Chongging PRC
£ TREEWETEAN mh 31/12/2016 91.30% - 9199 347,882 wsice
Crystal Magic Daping, Yuzhong District, Chongging PRC
I ] TRERNPTRELZR 28 31/12/2016 95,5604 - 610627 1,000,054 Ris/cp
University Town University City, Shapingba District, Chongging PRC
341 PREEMILEL A 2 31122015 93.481% - 562442 419894 R/S/CP
Mopan Shan Dashiba, Jiangbei District, Chongging PRC
L MRHEETLHESE 3 31122016 100.00% - 75,840 772,678 Rs/ce
Beibei New Town  Xiemazhen, Beibei District, Chongging PRC
R Chongging Subtotal 328920 2913159 3,560,409
FRAX HRENE AT OG- BN S0H 0% 31/12/205 91.30% 116,788 312575 146,575 /s/ce
Chengdu Flamenco  Yilicun & Shuangbaicun, Pitongzhen,

Spain Pi County, Chengdu, Sichuan Province PRC
e TR ERATERERN AR 1% {2 311212016 9.13% 72948 196,142 w9 nscp

Century Peak View  No.1 Tianfu Road Central, Gaoxin District,
Chengdu, Sichuan Province PRC
N o 16 B LI A Bk 6 51% 3112/2015 93.48% 173 52515 30,981 /S/CP

Jade Town Datiancun, Qingchengshanzhen, Dujiangyan,

Chengdu, Sichuan Province PRC

A TENIERAT S REARA 45 31122014 92.75% B7% 298214 141,134 wsce
Wukuai Shi Wukuaishizhen, Jinniu District, Chengdu,

Sichuan Province PRC
HELE PR AT RS A 6 31/12/2016 91.43% - 62428 378934 R

Mou Ma Heaven Baiyuncun, Huayuanzhen, Xinjin County,

Chengdu, Sichuan Province PRC
VR TR AR TR RRRARE 20% 31/12/2015 91.30% - 72663 3110 R/S/CP

Time Paradise Walk  Xibuyuanqu, Gaoxin District, Chengdu,

Sichuan Province PRC
G Chengdu Subtotal 25,246 1,648,509 1362670
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Schedule of Principal Properties

RRHR EETIA Bl
MATHN  RAdkER  hEREEK REES  MBREER

bEE L BHELRE Expected Group's Interest  Completed GFA  GFA Under GFA Under
Location Stage of Completion ~ Completion Date  in the Project Remaining Unsold  Development Planning
(Sqm) (Sq.m) (Sq.m)
(FIik) (FIik) (FIik)
FREE PR IR B SR 93 3062012 9L.27% B2 172593 - Ris/cp
Chianti Riverside ~ Zhangzhuangcun, Niulanshanzhen, Shunyi District,
Beijing PRC
AR R AT R 0 3101 91.30% - 18478 - wsicp
Azure Chianti Liyuanzhen, Tongzhou District, Befjing PRC
L AL ATHEES £ & 31122014 91.30% - 35,800 6,734 rs/cp
Changying Changyingxiang, Chaoyang District, Beijing PRC
FRUSRERE R RE R R 0 31104 91.30% - - 9807 Rs/cp

Fil (21L) Niulanshanzhen, Shunyi Disrict, Beijing PRC
Hill of Good Hope

GES R ATIERER PIbA Hi 0 3112085 91.30% - - 65,446 ws/cp
Hou Sha Yu Baixinzhuang, Houshayuzhen, Shunyi District,
Beijing PRC
KRR PR ARERH h 30/6/2015 91.30% - 28731 406,017 wsice
Daxing Huangcun, Daxing District, Beijing PRC
Hrt
Beijing Subtotal 323 895603 688,004
RERAR BB 2 2 B B 01 3 i 311 91.30% - 352,060 6,729,576 ws/cp

Yangma Island No. 601 Binhai Road East, Mouping District, Yantai,

Shandong Province, PRC
kEEBAA FRIAERATATE R ] 31122018 100% - - 696147 R/S/CP
Yangma Island B Plot Binhai Road East, Mouping District,

Yantai, Shandong Province, PRC

ENS

Yantai Subtotal - 352,060 745,73

B R LR B 800 30/6/203 93.480% 7.9 63,099 - wsce
Sunshine City Shengxin Road, Jiading District, Shanghai PRC

AREEH B LR AL 2 30 31122013 %.560% - 145,483 - Ris/cp
Bai Yin Lu Project ~ Baiyin Road & Hezuo Road, Jiading District, Shanghai PRC

BIRERER  FEEBTINIERTRRRAR LS BRER 30 30/6/2013 91.30% - 149,686 - RiS/cp
Long Xing Lu Renming Road North & Meijiabang Road, Songjiang

University City, Songjiang District, Shanghai PRC
HELE W I A e 0 31/12/2016 93.48% - - 290800 ws/0/cp
Hong Qiao CBD Shenchang Road, Minghang District, Shanghai PRC

Project
Lt
Shanghai Subtotal 279% 358,208 290,800
R fEE S T O MAE CP: {255
Residential Shopping Office Car Park

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i Hh & B A &




Schedule of Principal Properties

KEHR ARy R
AT mAhRER  hEREEHK REnH  HHREEK
HHAR BH % BHELRE Expected Group's Interest ~ Completed GFA  GFA Under GFA Under

Project Location Stage of Completion ~ Completion Date  in the Project Remaining Unsold  Development Planning

(Sq.m) (Sq.m) (Sq.m)

(Flk) (Flk) (FHik)

K BB T A 5 0% 31/10/2012 91.30% - 200951 - nscp
Xi'an Fairy Castle ~ Qujiang Road, Qujiang New District, Xi'an,

Shanxi Provinc PRC
BB o BT 0 7 L it 3011/2013 91.30% - 8319 - ws/ce
Xi'an Fairy Castle Il -~ Qujiang Road, Qujiang New District, Xi'an,

Shanxi Provinc PRC
FRANE o BT A T 8 311212018 9130% - 207318 1290672 Rs/cp
Xi'an Chianti Chanhe Road West, Xi'an, Shanxi Provine PRC
fik% o TR 4 0 A T B % 31122015 9130% - - 8,537 Rs/cp

Changan Wonder ~ Furong Road West, Qujiang New District, Xian,
Shanxi Province PRC

KERR PRI AT %A B R )5 205 40% 317013 9417 - 138,694 - nscp
Daxing Project No. 20 Xinghuo Road, Lianhu District, Xfan,

Shanxi Provinc PRC
%t
Xi'an Subtotal - 092,281 1,349,209
S0 CRME)  FRNTEETEEBHTHERHENRH 0% 3112083 91.30% 979 120857 - ws/ce
Tatke Yuan Hujing Road, Taikeyuan, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, PRC
kHE? HENLE A ES T E KM A AR 1% 3112215 9130% - 82,084 78825 ws/ce
Tatke Yuan 1[ Zhenze Road, Taikeyuan, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, PRC
BUBRRELA  FRTHEESTHNERTTH 20 31/12/2015 9130 - 96,53 3155 RS/
Xihu Road Xihu Road Central, Xishan District, Wuxi,

Jiangsu Province, PRC
il LB R R S B W% 311212014 9130% - 4400 194197 Ris/cp
Quite tale Xilu Road, Yangshanzhen, Huishan District, Wuxi

Jiangsu Province, PRC
B
Wuxi Subtotal 979 303,881 04,577
#E R B N KA S 31122014 93481 - 280,700 - RS/cP

Qinglong Project ~ Yongning Road & Sanxin Road, Tianning Distinct,

Changzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC
FEL SRILEA RN TS B S =5 7% 31/12/205 96.83% - 98717 370,855 rsice
Qinglong Project I Yongning Road & Sanxin Road, Tianning Distinct,

Changzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

w10 PRI FMTRE 105 50t 31/12/2014 98.350% - 7406 - ws/cp
Dongjing 120 Project - Dongjing 120 Road, Changzhou, Jiangsu Province PRC
REM-H PETHAENTRE 0% 0 31/12/2014 100% - - 167347 rs/cp
Dongjing 120 Dongjing 120 Road, Changzhou, Jiangsu Province PRC
Project II
R fEE S E S O MAE CP: 251
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

KEHR [FANGES B
ML mAhRER  hEREEHK REWK  WHREEH
bEE L BHELRE Expected Group's Interest  Completed GFA  GFA Under GFA Under

Location Stage of Completion ~ Completion Date  in the Project Remaining Unsold  Development Planning

(Sqm) (Sq.m) (Sq.m)

(FHik) (FHik) (FHik)

i RILERE A S 8B 8 31/1/2016 97380 - 13286 89781 /s/CP
Hongzhuang Project  Qinye Road, Zhonglou District, Changzhou,

Jiangsu Province PRC

FMNG
Changzhou Subtotal - 786,308 1377,983
4l TREEAEETELARERE 0% 31/12/2014 98.49% U 39,686 - R/S/CP

Huishan Project Shiyuan Street, Shenbei New District, Shenyang,

Liaoning Province PRC
Bl HREHEEL TR LB NG 1% 31/12/08 98.49% - 116,600 511,101 wscp
Huishan Project Il Shiyuan Street, Shenbei New District, Shenyang,

Liaoning Province PRC

% TEEEARHTELERRYH 0% M 311212015 96.15% 1443 155,920 1,538,739 R/S/CP
Daoyi Project No.46 Pufeng Road, Shenbei New District, Shenyang,

Liaoning Province PRC
HREA LY HREEEERAELRER LR 9% 0 31/12/009 96.15% - - 409,574 ws/cp
Daoyi Project II No.49 Pufeng Road, Shenbei New District,

Shenyang, Liaoning Province PRC

B
Shenyang Subtotal 39,157 312,206 2459 414
FEABI S 7 BT I 8 1058 360 30/11/2015 100% - 333,73 239,164 RiS/CP

Baisha Project No.10 Yuanshuang Road, Chengyang District,
Qingdao, Shandong Province PRC

FEAYH R AT BT B T 1% 30/5/2015 100% - 14832 282322 ws/ce
Fis Yuanshuang Road, Chengyang District,

Baisha Project F Plot  Qingdao, Shandong Province PRC

I REH TR LT ya 0 3112/2014 97.00% - - 2983 rs/ce

Shankeda Project  Kedayihaoxian, Qingdao, Shandong Province PRC

ELLS

Qingdao Subtotal - 348,509 741,318

TURA T A A AR G5 0 B 150 VY 100% - 330,886 250,253 /5/CP

Xiasha Project Shangsha Road North, Jingjikafaqu, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province PRC
BIEH PRI b A R A 20 1122014 91.30% - 303,102 - rs/ce

Chaoshan Project ~ Zhanghecun, Tangqizhen, Yuhang District,

Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province PRC

Bt

Hangzhou Subtotal - 042,988 250,253

R fEE SE O: MAE CP: 7 HLI%
Residential Shopping Office Car Park

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i Hh & B A &




Schedule of Principal Properties

KEHR ARy R
AT mAhRER  hEREEHK REnH  HHREEK
HHAR BH % BHELRE Expected Group's Interest ~ Completed GFA  GFA Under GFA Under

Project Location Stage of Completion ~ Completion Date  in the Project Remaining Unsold  Development Planning

(Sq.m) (Sq.m) (Sq.m)

(Fiik) (Fik) (FHik)

&% THEEE SRR EEREH W 31122006 91.30% - - 821,619 Ris/cp
Fairy Lake Zhangyingeun, Lujuzhen, Jiangchuan County,
Yuxi, Yunnan Province PRC
ZHMG Yunnan Subtotal — — 821,619
RIERE 2 TEESERETREATEGEE W 31/12/008 48.40% - - 669,724 Rs/ce
Longhe Il Xiaonancun, Shuishiying Street, Dalian,
Liaoning Province PRC
Kt Dalian Subtotal - - 069,724
ThERER MR E ST AR LR 685 W 311204 100% - 168,284 81733 R/S/CP

Rose & Ginkgo Coast ~ No.68 Chunxiaozhonggi Road, Beilun District,
Ningho, Zhejiang Province PRC

L Ningho Subtotal - 168,284 481733
SEAF TOTAL 045,471 942,114 2,183 434
R fEE S T O: WA= CP: {FHL
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

wEWE INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

KRHR AT e
MATHN  RAdRER  hEREEK REES  MBEEER

bEE L BHELRE Expected Group's Interest  Completed GFA  GFA Under GFA Under
Location Stage of Completion ~ Completion Date in the Project Remaining Unsold  Development Planning
(Sqm) (Sq.m) (Sq.m)
(FHik) (FHik) (FHK)
ERLARE PEEETILELARE 6 08 100% BRE 91,30 146,262 - - S
North Paradise Walk ~ No.6 & No.8 Beichengtianjie, Jiangbei completed
District, Chongging PRC
B0 PRERTALERLEER TR 100% 2RE 91.30% 9413 - - $
Fairy Castle Yusongyizhilu, Longshan Street, completed

Yubei District, Chongging PRC

B PEERTAINRANENER 625 100% BRE 9130 41,554 - - S
Crystal Palace No.162 Xinnan Road, Renhezhen, Beibuxingu, completed

Chongqing PRC
BEXE TRERINBRE AR 485 100% kS 91.30% 111654 - - S
West Paradise Walk ~ No.48 Zhujiang Road, Yangjiaping, completed

Jiulongpo District, Chongging PRC
3000 PRSETLINEAMEHER 1685 100% BR 91.30% 30,350 - - S
MOCO Center No.168 Xinnan Road, Renhezhen, Beibuxingu, completed

Chongqing PRC
BRRE THERTATEAF B% 311706 91.30% - 75 110500 $
Fashion Paradise Walk  Daping, Yuzhong District, Chongging PRC
REH PEERTYFREASS 8% 3062012 9.56% - 2617 - S
University Town Uninversity City, Shapingba District, Chongging PRC
EhiE PREEMILERZE 100% BRE 91.30% 212 s
Chunsen Land Chenjiaguan, Jiangbei District, Chongging PRC completed
“Th FEDISRBT_RAR-A 100% kS 93.48% 37,860 - - $
Three Thousand Castles Section 2, AErhuan Road East Chengdu, completed

Sichuan Province PRC

R fEE S E O MAE CP: {25
Residential Shopping Office Car Park

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i Hh & B A &




Schedule of Principal Properties

KEHR ARy R
AT mAhRER  hEREEHK REnH  HHREEK
HHAR BH % BHELRE Expected Group's Interest ~ Completed GFA  GFA Under GFA Under

Project Location Stage of Completion ~ Completion Date  in the Project Remaining Unsold  Development Planning

(Sq.m) (Sq.m) (Sq.m)

(Fiik) (Fik) (FHik)

RS TAmIERSETERRE 306 12201 9275% - 20991 - S
North Paradise Wk~ Wukuaishi, Jinniu District,

Chengdu, Sichuan Province PRC
BRAE TEARERBEHERTER Wh 3112206 91.30% - - 450996 S

Time Paradise Walk ~ Xibuyuanqu, Gaoxin District,

Chengdu, Sichuan Province PRC

ENEHRS FELRNERERR 100% Rl 89.93% 6320 - - S
Sumnmer Palace Xiyuan, Haidfan District, Beijing PRC completed

Paradise Walk
tazk PELRDENEREEEEN 100% Rl 91.30% 346 - - $
Blossom Chianti Banbidiancun, Liyuanzhen, Tongzhou District, completed

Beijing PRC

RRXE RRLRTARER R N VI 91.30% - - 05689 $
Changying Paradise Walk Changyingxiang, Chaoyang District, Beijing PRC
B RELEEERRTHR W 3 93480 - 18934 - S
Sunshine City Shengxin Road, Jiading District, Shanghai PRC
fifoNE TEREERRTEABE A 0T 300 94170 - 3097 - $

Daxing Paradise Walk ~ No.20 Xinghuo Road, Lianhu District,

Xian, Shanxi Province PRC

FHKE RETHEESNANREFERA 0 312205 91.30% - - 109,452 S
Blue lake Jinghui Road East, Kejiyuan,
Taihu, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province PRC
BRFE hETHEERTAURRETR W 312005 91.30% - - 117,714 S
Wuxi Splendor Xihu Road Central, Xishan District, Wuxi,
Jiangsu Province PRC
FHE120 (Rub) RETHEZMTRE 1205 W 31205 100% - - 213,100 S
Dongjing 120 Project I Dongjing 120 Road, Changzhou, Jiangsu Province PRC
B RELRERTHEES TR 0% W 35 100% - - 3250 $
Baisha Mall No.10 Shuangyuan Road, Chengyang District, Qingdao,
Shandong Province, PRC
ThER FEMTERMEEREE LY R W3y 100% - - 183,300 $
Xiasha Mall Shangsha Road North, Jingjikafaqu, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province, PRC
A3 TOTAL 48979 711159 144,061 S
R: fEE S: ¥ 0: MnE CP: #FHL Y
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Chairman’s Statement
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Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i Hh & B A &

I am pleased to present to the shareholders the business review
and outlook of Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. (the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
December 31, 2011.

Results

In 2011, the profit attributable to shareholders amounted to
RMB6.33 billion, representing an increase of 53.2% as compared
to the RMB4.13 billion of last year. The fully diluted earnings per
share was RMB1.22, representing an increase of 52.5% as
compared to the fully diluted earnings per share of RMB0.80 last
year.

Review of 2011

In 2011, the real estate market of the PRC remained volatile and
weak, shrouded by external events like the Eurozone crisis, while
the industry austere measures and inflation controls domestically
led to pressure on capital, cost and sales. Coping with the
operational challenges, maintaining sustainability and growth and
balancing profitability and liquidity became the major tasks for all
industry players. We are pleased that by adhering to the strategies
of active marketing, prudent investment and strict cash
management promulgated at the beginning of the year and
leveraging on our prestigious brand value and product quality,
the Group maintained a satisfactory level of cash flow and profits
under such unfavourable market. The net gearing ratio of the
Group as at the end of the year decreased over the last year,
while the net profit margin of the Group reached its historical
peak.
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Chairman’s Statement

In 2011, the Group recorded contract sales of RMB38.27 billion,
representing a historical high. Among the 11 cities in which we
had project launches, we were ranked top 10 developer in 8 of
them, demonstrating the strong execution capabilities across
different regions. We were ranked number 1 in Chongqing by flat
sales for the eighth consecutive year and captured a market share
of approximately 10%. In Chengdu and Beijing, we remained a
top 3 flat seller. In Wuxi and Changzhou,we continued to be
ranked as a top 10 player. The new project in a new city in Yantai
realized a contracted sales of RMB3 billion and we were ranked
number 1 in flat sales in our debut. In Xian, we ranked top 5 for
the first time after the restructuring of management team. In
Hangzhou, being one of the cities most affected by the austerity
policies, we also broke into top 10 for the first time. In addition,
according to a third party survey, the customer loyalty level of the
Group increased 4 percentage points from the same period last
year to 76%. Our brand recognition from customers has continued
to strengthen despite challenging market conditions.

Amid the tight credit environment, the Group adopted various
measures to maintain a sound financial position with a reasonable
level of leverage. The Group placed a high priority on the cash
collection of sales proceeds and the collection rate was over 90%
for the year. Domestically, as a core customer of various major
banks of the PRC, the Group was able to secure sufficient credit
facilities. In the overseas market, the Group was the best rated
private-owned real estate enterprises with the ratings of BB+ by
S&P and Ba2 by Moody’s. In April, the Group successfully issued
5-year bonds of amounting to USD750 million. The average
maturity of the Group’s debts increased to 4.0 years from 3.4
years in the last year, and the average cost of borrowing was
6.4%, which was lower than the benchmark rate of PBOC. As at
December 31, 2011, the Group’s cash in hand increased to
RMB14.5 billion from RMB12.6 billion in half year, while the net
gearing ratio further decreased to 43.02% from 56.56% in half
year, which provided significant support for the Group to
overcome external challenges and capitalize on opportunities for
further development.

4 Annual Repore 2011




B &

Chairman’s Statement

BRG] IR B2 ARG ) S A B A IR A D
BE o HAEWAREFHR40.0%5 AR
4021870 o Hod > 3 BRI R Ak T I R
AR > A RIEHE65.9% - l&E
RN R K HE 5 3 5080.1% » 1A > SEE X
AMEHNFEEL I ENENE - EESK
B R o S EECBESR
AW % R 438,979 K o

TE S5 B0 A 0 (R B > 4 P s B E LA
BB MEE KRR - EEEER
W4 MATEEMI A BT ESE > 8
IE AL AR W BE S E 2 £ B CEO » A& AR AT
S B CEOT % 1E 1 3 38 & 7 A9 M B T AF -
i EL o AR A e e T R A R R
M > BMVERDSWRESE - BREHEA
B R A B A% T B PR R o A AR
AT 1 3 G706 i T 3 K BN [ IO R R EE
AL B 7 AR 60 50 A7 1 I 2 T S 80 5
FFHES -

SH-HRB2EXBEL G ARG - £
1 B N A AR N R 50078 e 1 i B
WK ANGRESE - [HEHFRESE]EE
C N 3 b R ) 3678 S I K AL 8l E A 2
EAEM MR TE] > IR0 AR AL
NGB G EHE -

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i Hh & B A &

Furthermore, the Group’s rental income from investment
properties continued to grow in a fast pace. The rental income
reached RMB402 million, representing an increase of 40.0% as
compared with last year. The anchor store in Chongqing West
Paradise Walk, which underwent renovation, drove the rental
income increased by 65.9%. Gross rental income margin was
maintained at a high level of 80.1%. During the year, two
shopping malls, namely, Beijing Starry Street and Chongqing
Chunsen Starry Street were completed and commenced
operations. To date, the Group’s investment property portfolio
amounted to GFA of 438,979 square meters.

With its steady business growth, the Group also attached a high
priority to the institutionalization and continuous development of
senior management team. In the first half of the year, the Group
appointed four additional executive directors and one
independent non-executive director. Mr. Shao Mingxiao was duly
appointed as the CEO of the Group in August. Madam. Wu Yajun
relinquished her CEO role of the Group and focused on her duties
as the Chairman of the Board. Moreover, we granted nearly 200
million share options in two batches to our directors, senior
management and employees to motivate them and further align
their interest of the shareholders. We believe that our professional
management team characterized by strong entrepreneurial spirit
and institutionalized management structure will promote the long
term development and continuous improvement of the Group.

The Group has taken an active role in charitable activities. In the
beginning of the year, the Group donated RMB5 million for the
renovation of dilapidated apartments for the handicapped in
Chongqing. The charity activity of “Longfor’s New Year Gifts for
Families” held by the Group has become a recognized charity
brand. The property management team of the Company also
established a “Longfor Volunteer Team” which was the pioneer of
the local welfare activities.
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Chairman’s Statement

Outlook for 2012

Despite the market volatility, we believe that demand for high
quality properties with well recognized brand will remain strong,
driven by urbanization, sustainable economic growth and
upgrading needs. While the real estate market will continue to
face many challenges in 2012, the build out of the social housing
program and the normalization of demand brought on by the
Home Purchase Restrictions will lead to a healthier development
path for the industry over the long term. Our dedication to high
quality product and sound management practice will enable the
company to build its market dominance and continue its growth.

We expect the administrative policies in the housing sector to
remain in place for the foreseeable future. The Group will
proactively adjust the pace of its developments, especially the
build out of the investment property portfolio, and at the same
time seek to broaden the product offering in response to
changing demands in different markets. The Group will also
strengthen asset turnover and cash flow management.

As for land reserves, the Group will selectively acquire quality
sites as and when investment opportunities arise. The Group will
focus on projects characterized by low cost, quick turnaround and
improving prospect. The Group will leverage opportunities arising
from a changing industry landscape to further expand and
diversify its market and business coverage, and to enhance the
Company’s ability to respond to different market conditions in
different regions.
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Market fluctuation provides a stern test for the organization and
its people. In the coming year, the Company will be dedicated to
further improve internal management standards and talent
development. The Group will launch its second round of IT
platform integration in 2012. With the integration of products,
costs and strategies on the new platform, operating effectiveness
and efficiency of the Group will be further improved. The Group
will put more efforts in the development of talents, corporate
culture and leadership. It will continue to promote the
Recruitment Plan targeting fresh university graduates as well as
the Recruitment Plan 2.0 targeting the public to recruit more new
talents for the solid development of the Group in the future.

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd.
Wu Yajun
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2011, the Group’s contract sales recorded a growth of 14.9% as
compared to 2010, reaching a total contract sales of RMB38.27
billion. The Group recognized revenue was RMB24.09 billion,
representing an increase of 59.6% over last year. Excluding
minority interest and valuation gain, the core profit attributable to
shareholders was RMB4.5 billion, representing an increase of
74.9% over last year. Core net profit margin attributable to
shareholders rose from 17.1% to 18.7% over last year.

Property Development

In 2011, revenue from property development of the Group was
RMB23.38 billion, representing an increase of 60.1% over last year.
The Group delivered 1,934,154 square meters of property in GFA
terms, of which 255,994 square meters was contributed from
jointly controlled entities. With the delivery of high margin
projects such as Beijing Summer Palace Splendor, gross profit
margin of property development business rose from 33.3% in 2010
to 40.3% in 2011. Recognized average selling price was
RMB13,930 per square meters or RMB11,781 per square meters
after excluding the Beijing Summer Palace Splendor project in
2011.

AR Annual Report 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

F— o ZE-—EEEAYEFREEEIN Table 1: Breakdown of property development revenue by projects in 2011
* I8 B L * After deducting sales tax
CEL
Revenue
(—AZE+ZA) 8 5 i
(January to December) Total GFA
Bt T B e
City 2011 2010 2011 2010
ARWTFL ARWTT ARWTILT ARKETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AL 5 5 % ONE bt 5,683,712 — 195,089 —
Beijing Tangning One Beijing
s B Je st 4,414,414 1,077,389 68,594 19,791
Beijing Summer Palace Spelendor Beijing
b v B 9k i 1,918,888 1,249,760 112,419 53,711
Shanghai Sunshine City Shanghai
JCHR AL K JRHD 1,656,169 — 186,405 —
Chengdu North Paradise Walk Chengdu
A 555 5 A 1) 37 1,610,813 — 128,995 —
Wuxi Rose and Ginkgo Villa Wuxi
AR = T 3 JHR 1,132,421 2,097,694 141,763 246,982
Chengdu Thousand Castles Chengdu
HEELIEE AR R 1,129,459 — 106,078 —
Chongqing Mopan Shan Chongging
R AR Y- 990,938 118,981 140,586 15,840
Chongging Chunsen Land Chongging
T R AR H 789,039 1,310,829 60,498 139,459
Chonggqing Toschna Villa Chongqing
T AL AR O 730,878 940,795 118,406 167,447
Chongqing Peace Hill County Chongging
Jo o A EE R Jea 582,437 — 42,334 —
Beijing Chianti Riverside Beijing
JRHR /N e T JRHD 458,495 — 19,549 —
Chengdu Jade Town Chengdu
HEAEN R 415,517 — 46,336 —
Choging Mu Yu Shi Chongging
75 % 2 AR Ik 7 % 337,927 — 70,411 —
Xi'an Fairy Castle Xi'an
P A g 3 311,939 — 38,833 —
Shenyang Chianti Shenyang
JHD A 1 JEHB 272,448 1,538,050 17,385 133,146
Chengdu Bridge County Chengdu
B o 4 H J AR 270,411 388,787 37,111 68,951
Chengdu Flamenco Spain Chengdu
% 5 B L 3% 190,437 — 21,329 —
Shenyang Rose & Ginkgo Villa Shenyang
HERIT HE 164,363 1,043,367 26,614 159,419
Chongqing Sunshine Riverside Chongging
SNy B 64,874 2,121,082 13,939 468,480
Beijing Elegance Loft Beijing
At 250,433 2,709,967 85,486 326,923
Others
At 23,376,012 14,596,701 1,678,160 1,800,149
Total

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i Hh & B A &
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group achieved contract sales of RMB38.27 billion (including
RMB2.07 billion from jointly controlled entities), representing an
increase of 14.9% as compared to last year. The Group sold
3,280,285 square meters in GFA, representing an increase of 33.9%
over last year. Contract sales recorded in different regions were
even. The contract sales in Western China, Pan Bohai Rim and the
Yangtze River Delta were RMB17.40 billion, RMB12.37 billion and
RMB8.50 billion, contributing to 45.5%, 32.3% and 22.2% of the
Group’s total contract sales respectively. The contribution to the
sales from new regions continued to rise. The Group entered
Wuxi, Changzhou, Qingdao, Hangzhou, Shenyang and Yantai in
2009, and the contract sales in these cities amounted to RMB10.64
billion in 2011, contributing to 27.8% of the Group’s total contract
sales (2010: 20.6%).

Table 2: Details of contract sales of the Group in 2011

* Before deducting sales tax

W 8B A8 S
City Sales Total GFA
AR WEH BT F 5ok

RMB in million sq.m

& 3,001 216,821

Yantai

EY 2,982 168,375

Chongging

TS 1,986 183,733

Chengdu

3t 1,854 65,617

Beijing

R 1,573 172,343

Chongqing

Fi 1,558 104,650

Shanghai

ES 1,537 215,613

Chongging

FE 1,454 116,287

Qingdao

B[ 1,400 56,925

Beijing

EY 1,290 169,039

Chongging

dbx 1,216 14,051

Beijing
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Management Discussion and Analysis

JHH W 8 AR 2 T B
Project City Sales Total GFA
AR H#E T RAVES

RMB in million sq.m

JHR I ALK JE A 1,203 117,718

Chengdu Times Paradise Walk Chengdu

g d Lk i 1,153 62,437

Shanghai Long Xing Lu Shanghai

b T A k[ 1,131 47,759

Beijing Azure Chianti Beijing

Rl 2 M 1,081 101,039

Changzhou Sunshine City Changzhou

M R M 1,078 81,616

Changzhou Dongjing 120 Project Changzhou

B B0 1 HLM 963 56,043

Hangzhou Rose & Gingko Villa Hangzhou

7Y 4 7 e I 1 74 % 845 103,206

Xi'an Chianti Xi'an

JEHR 9 2 W X JE A 825 127,632

Chengdu Flamenco Spain Chengdu

oo A e R k[ 821 77,985

Beijing Chianti Riverside Beijing

L A R 7 HLM 757 71,289

Hangzhou Chianti Riverside Hangzhou

R AR AP £y 747 56,671

Chongqing Toschna Villa Chongqing

HEE T B HE 689 98,811

Chongqing Hua Qian Shu Chongqing

N HE B N 619 49,526

Changzhou Hongzhuang Project Changzhou

e 550 0 1L i3 614 53,478

Wuxi Rose and Ginkgo Villa Wuxi

HEE R HE 592 70,526

Chongqging Chunsen Land Chongqing

B LA HE 535 81,941

Chongqing Peace Hill County Chongqing

A T A2 U6 S JE A 516 36,242

Chengdu Century Peak View Chengdu

b5 B AR k[ 511 47,501

Beijing Times Paradise Walk Beijing

[ L0 74 % 490 56,303

Xi'an Fairy Castle Xi'an

HoAth 3,247 405,108

Others

N e ] 38,268 3,286,285

Total/Average

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i Hh & B A &
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As of December 31, 2011, the Group had RMB44.7 billion (derived
from 3.75 million square meters) sold but unrecognized contract
sales which formed a solid basis for the Group’s future growth in

revenue.

Property Investment

With the renovation and upgrade of existing properties, the
Group’s rental income from investment properties for 2011 grew
rapidly with an increase of 40.0% to RMB402 million. Upon the
completion of the renovation, the anchor store in Chongqing West
Paradise Walk’s rental income increased by 65.9%. In 2011, two
new shopping malls, namely Beijing Starry Street and Chongqing
Chunsen Starry Street were completed and commenced operation.
Currently, the Group has investment properties of 438,979 square
meters which have commenced operation.

Table 3: Breakdown of rental income of the Group in 2011
* After deducting sales tax

2011 2010 Rental
ZE— ZE-RK Income
fhas fhi g LET/ON
HaEwA Bl & EL/N B & L
Rental % of Occupancy Rental % of Occupancy Growth
Income Revenue Rate Income Revenue Rate Rate
ARETI AREFI
RMB'000 RMB'000
&Lk K 1 Chongqing North 240,967 59.9% 99.3% 197,261 68.7% 99.4% 22.2%
Paradise Walk
BTG 30 K Chongging West 88,259 21.9% 99.1% 53,190 18.5% 98.1% 65.9%
Paradise Walk
AR Chongqing Fairy 14,743 3.7%  100.0% 13,984 4.9%  100.0% 5.4%
Castle
B TR A Chongqing Crystal 14,892 3.7%  100.0% 14,077 4.9%  100.0% 5.8%
Palace
#EMOCO Chongging MOCO 15,004 3.7% 100.0% 2,715 0.9%  98.48%  452.7%
Center
W =T % Chengdu Three 18,506 4.6% 95.4% 3,294 1.1% 97.70% 461.7%
Thousand Mall
LB RN E  Beijing Starry Street 6,397 1.6% 97.7%
HoAte Others 3,399 0.8%  AEHM 2,760 1.0% A 23.1%
N/A N/A
F Total 402,167 100% 99.1% 287,281 100% 97.1% 40.0%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In 2011, five projects, namely Chengdu North Paradise Walk,
Chongqing U City Paradise Walk Fashion House, Shanghai
Sunshine City, Chongqing Times Paradise Walk and Xi’an MOCO
Center, have commenced construction. In the next three years,
large investment properties such as the Chongqing Times Paradise
Walk and Chengdu North Paradise Walk will commence operation,
which laid a foundation for the growth of rental income of the
Group in the future.

Benefiting from stable rental income growth and the
commencement of construction of new investment properties, a
revaluation gain of investment properties of RMB2.63 billion was
recorded in 2011.

Expenses Control

In 2011, the Group strategically recruited talents for the
management team and key positions under the severe market
environment, the general and administrative expenses increased
by 0.55% to 1.85% as compared with last year. In addition, our
sales team placed emphasis on the effectiveness and
appropriateness of sales strategies and adopted efficient measures
in management. As a result, the proportion of sales expenses to
the total contract sales only increased by 0.70% to 1.68%.

Share of Results of Jointly Controlled Entities

Contribution of jointly controlled entities (JCEs) in 2011 mainly
came from the Chongging Bamboo Grove Project, Chengdu
Century Peak View project and Shanghai Rose and Ginkgo Villa
Project of which the Group owned 49.6%, 49.1% and 45.7% equity
interest, respectively. These three projects delivered 255,994
square meters. The attributable profit after tax before minority
interest of the Group in JCEs was RMB324 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expenses comprised of PRC enterprise income tax and
land appreciation tax. The enterprise income tax and the land
appreciation tax of the Group in 2011 were RMB2.43 billion and
RMB2.09 billion, respectively. Total income tax of the Group for
the period was RMB4.52 billion. The relatively high income tax
for the period was mainly due to the high appreciation of Summer
Palace Splendor.

Profitability

The core net profit margin of the Group (the ratio of profit
attributable to equity shareholders excluding minority interest and
revaluation gain to revenue) increased from 17.1% in 2010 to
18.7%. This is mainly because projects with high gross profit
margin, such as Summer Palace Splendor, were recognized in the
period.

Benefited from its excellent operation management, the Group
has maintained a high level of return on equity (ROE) which still
keeps increasing. In 2011, the Group’s ROE reached 33.4% (2009:
29.0%; 2010: 29.4%), ensuring steady returns to shareholders in
the volatile market.

Land Bank Replenishment

As of December 31, 2011, the total land bank of the Group was
33.76 million square meters or 30.74 million square meters on an
attributable basis. The average acquisition cost of our land bank
was RMB1,859 per square meter, representing 16.0% of the unit
price of current contract sales. In terms of regional breakdown,
Pan Bohai Rim, the Yangtze River Delta, and Western China
accounted for 42.1%, 18.8% and 39.1% of the total land bank,
respectively.The geographic spread of the land bank of the Group

was as follows:
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Management Discussion and Analysis

R c A IE G 1 G BT

Table 4: Breakdown of land bank of the Group

HRE £ @ 48 T 1%
oI5 W A SEE AR Bt A BE 41 Attributable Bt A be 4
Region City Total GFA % of Total GFA % of Total
5ok SRS
sq.m sq.m
T 190 6 M [ Jb 1,809,296 5.4% 1,651,836 5.4%
Pan Bohai Rim Beijing
T B 2,771,620 8.2% 2,680,529 8.7%
Shenyang
H 1,123,136 3.3% 1,116,541 3.6%
Qingdao
EA 7,777,783 23.1% 7,161,681 23.3%
Yantai
K 669,724 2.0% 324,147 1.1%
Dalian
AN 14,151,559 42.0% 12,934,734 42.1%
Subtotal
VL = A st [ L 668,002 2.0% 624,211 2.0%
Yangtze River Delta Shanghai
85 1,235,623 3.7% 1,128,124 3.7%
Wuxi
M 2,377,392 7.0% 2,314,625 7.6%
Changzhou
BN 1,076,600 3.2% 1,050,231 3.4%
Hangzhou
E-:3/,3 650,017 1.9% 650,017 2.1%
Ningbo
/NGE 6,007,634 17.8% 5,767,208 18.8%
Subtotal
Hh I A [ EY 7,012,205 20.8% 6,186,024 20.1%
Western China Chongqing
D 3,683,165 10.9% 3,195,871 10.4%
Chengdu
75 % 2,084,587 6.2% 1,908,445 6.2%
Xi'an
Fi% 821,619 2.4% 750,138 2.4%
Yuxi
/NGE 13,601,576 40.3% 12,040,478 39.1%
Subtotal
Bt 33,760,769 100% 30,742,420 100.0%
Total

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i Hh & B A &




W B & o A

Management Discussion and Analysis

T AR R S T 0 S £ o R In 2011, the Group acquired 4.82 million square meters of land in
TR 25 482 8T 7 oK o Ho i 197 i A I8 7 35 terms of total GFA, of which 51% was located in Western China,
I35 > 25% (v IR B 3 [ > 24% R RIT = 25% in the Pan Bohai Rim, and 24% in the Yangtze River Delta.
s o I A 2 B ok AR The average acquisition cost was RMB1,950 per square meter.
1,9507C » F % Jt W e V20 AL 0 [ B B A Strategically, we entered Ningbo and acquire lands with high

B IR A A~ V) R R potential at a relatively low cost.
KA ZFE——AaFE—F A 0L Table 5: Land acquisition from January to December 2011
B A 1 i Al 4 T M
H JH H & 3 i Attributable Site Total
Region Project City Interest Area GFA
% Tk ¥k
% sq.m sq.m
Bl b ERATNE R/ HE 100.00% 190,912 297,154
Pan Bohai Rim Baisha Project F Plot Qingdao
IR H 3 HE 97.00% 223,135 219,832
Shankeda Project Qingdao
Wl ERS HBLA e 100.00% 085,641 696,147
Yangma Island Project B Plot Yantai
Nt 1,099,688 1,213,133
Subtotal
R IL= i LIREPREpYE! E 93.48% 78,752 290,800
Yangtze River Delta Hong Qiao CBD Project Shanghai
B 1l 8 H i3] 91.30% 124,826 198,597
Quiet Tale Wuxi
0 B 100.00% 505,794 650,017
Ningbo Rose & Gingko Coast Ningbo
it 709,372 1,139,414
Subtotal
I 7Y A [ AL B BB 100.00% 542,738 848,518
Western China Beibei New Town Chongging
UK HH 91.3% 305,675 1,614,754
Chengdu Time Paradise Walk Chengdu
/NG 848,413 2,463,272
Subtotal
At 2,657,473 4,815,819
Total
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A E——EF =0 AEEIE
AEE R ANRB239.700 (ZF—F4E T2 A
Z4—H AR¥173.20850) o B4 KRITA
R NR B 14531850 AL A 6E R
AR F43.0% « AEBMEH TR ABB+
(e 6T) i Ba2 (Bi1) > SRR iR -

A A SR 64.9% 0 N REEFHE > B4
35.1% LA ANEFHE o A% 42 1316 0 5T 57 AT ] £
Broh b -

AR 4 A B A N R85 14 e 4ie 8] 5 47 A
A F3.08% % 9.50% (1 F B F Wi 5E) 5t
B oo HEE SR ZEHAEE - R =% —
—HEF A= H o AREENT
AT AR 6.40% 5 T35 48 3AE B 3.44F 42
TH&E 405 > JE AP R AG BB LI =%
—REF+ZH =+ — HM46.6%L F &
55.8% 5 [ P S AR5 G AR AR TS 109 L B9 — %
—LEFZHEZ T —HM3NREFARE
35.5% °

TR RN A DR FE(9.5%)
BN RS ANEEA T SR SR S o TR
TR T R o

HREMMGE - 5 R KO B A5 R £
ARBEAL By A LT 0 Y AR B e
TR -

Financial Position

As of December 31, 2011, the Group’s consolidated borrowings
amounted to RMB23.97 billion (December 31, 2010: RMB17.32
billion). Cash and bank balance reached RMB14.53 billion. The
net debt to equity ratio of the Group was 43.0%. The Group’s
credit ratings are BB+ (Standard & Poor) and Ba2 (Moodys) and
the rating outlook is stable.

Approximately 64.9% of the Group’s total borrowings were
denominated in RMB, while 35.1% were denominated in foreign
currency. The Group has no arrangements for currency hedging.

Approximately RMB8.51 billion of the Group’s consolidated
borrowings were quoted at fixed rates ranging from 3.08% per
annum to 9.50% per annum depending on the tenors of the loans;
the rest were quoted at floating rates. As at December 31, 2011,
the Group’s average cost of borrowing was 6.40% per annum and
the average terms of borrowings extended from 3.4 years to 4.0
years. The ratio of unsecured debt to total debt rose from 46.6%
as at December 31, 2010 to 55.8%. Ratio of fixed interest debt to
total debt rose from 31.5% as at December 31, 2010 to 35.5%.

In April 2011, the Group issued bonds of USD750 million at a
reasonable interest rate of (9.5%) with a tenor of 5 years to secure
healthy and sound cash flow for the Company in the future.

The Directors believe that the continuous improvement of the
Group’s debt profile and capital structure will act as a strong
buffer against market fluctuations and financial risk.

Elon: sUT

Beijing Rose & Ginkgo Villa
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Employees and Compensation Policy

As of December 31, 2011, the Group had 7,374 full-time
employees in China and Hong Kong. 1,977 of these employees
worked in the property development division, 159 in the property
investment division, and 5,238 in the property management
division. Average age of our workforce is 31.4 years old. In the
property development and investment divisions, approximately
84.1% have university degrees and 13.7% have master degrees or
above.

The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, work experience and the prevailing market wage
level. The total compensation of the employees consisted of base
salary, cash bonus and share-based rewards. Cash bonus is a large
part of senior employees’ cash compensation which is a function
of, amongst other things, the net profit of the individual
subsidiaries, net profit margin, results of a balanced score card
system and operating cash inflow, etc. In 2011, the Group granted
46,000,000 share options at the exercise price of HKD12.528 per
share and 150,000,000 share options at the exercise price of HKD
8.28 per share to directors, senior management and employees.

I R
Qingdao Rose & Gingko Coast
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Xi'an MOCO Center
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Prospects

In 2012, the real estate market in mainland China will continue to
be affected by government’s tightening measures. Currently, the
Group has 46 projects are available for sale, among which, 26
projects will launch new phases and new products in 2012. In
addition, the Group will launch 9 new projects in 2012. The
products will cater to customers with various demands including
first-time housing, further upgrade, and business operation real
estate.

The Group (including jointly controlled entities) completed
approximately 2.66 million square meters of properties in 2011
and plans to complete 3.27 million square meters of properties in
2012. Currently, the construction and sales progress is satisfactory.

For investment properties, Beijing Starry Street and Chongqing
Chunsen Starry Street were completed and commenced operation
in 2011, while the construction of five other properties of the
Group, namely Chengdu North Paradise Walk, Chongqing U City
Paradise Walk Fashion House, Shanghai Sunshine City, Chongqing
Times Paradise Walk II and Xi’'an MOCO has commenced.
Chongqging Times Paradise Walk I, Chongqing U City Paradise
Walk Fashion House and Chongqing Chunsen Starry Street IT will
commence operation in 2012. The above properties ensure a solid
basis for the growth of investment property rental income of the
Group in the future.

B R L

Changzhou Dongjing 120 Project
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AT 36 B R T S o AR T AR R T A In face of challenging markets, the Group will continue to
R [ A TR SRME - RIEBL B W implement prudent and balanced financial management policies.

ARG LA BR R B0 22 4 RO g S The Group will reasonably plan and arrange investment and
PR 2 mBR A 1Y B 5 AR 0L 0 B R KO o operation expenses in accordance with its cash inflow to ensure

sound financial condition and leverage ratio of the Company.

B ANERNRERGLAN BB L— Lastly, on behalf of the Board, T would like to express my sincere
AR AR A AR B S R R A R appreciation to all of our employees for their hard work and all of
TP EEE (S N T our shareholders for their support in the past year.

i WL

Shenyang Rose & Gingko Villa

i 2 R LR

Yantai Banyan Bay Shanghai Long Xing Lu
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Wu Yajun, aged 47, was appointed as executive director
of the Company on December 21, 2007, and is the Chairman of
the Board of the Group. Madam Wu joined the Group since its
inception in 1994. Madam Wu graduated from the Department of
Navigation Engineering of the Northwestern Polytechnical
University in 1984. Madam Wu serves as a member of the National
Peoples’ Congress, Vice-Chairperson of the Federation of Industry
& Commerce of Chongqing Municipality and Vice-Chairperson of
the Real Estate Branch Chamber of the Chongqing General
Chamber of Commerce. Madam Wu has extensive experience in
property development, property investment and property
management.

Mr. Shao Mingxiao, aged 45, was appointed as executive director
of the Company on June 3, 2011, and is the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. Mr. Shao joined the Group in 2006. Mr. Shao
graduated from Renmin University of China with a Master of
Economics degree in 1992. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Shao
served as the Deputy General Manager of Hangyu Economic
Development Company, a subsidiary of the Beijing Capital Group,
and Beijing Xinlian Xiechuang Real Estate Development Limited
respectively. Mr. Shao was also the General Manager of Beijing
Zhongjing Yiyuan Real Estate Development Limited and the
Director of real estate development division of Beijing Hualian
Group.

Mr. Zhou Dekang, aged 44, was appointed as executive director
of the Company on June 3, 2011,and is the Chief Operating
Officer of the Group. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in 2005. Mr.
Zhou graduated from the Architecture Institute of Chongqing
Jianzhu University and obtained a bachelor’s degree majoring in
Architecture in 1989. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou had
been the head of the construction division of the Chongqing City
Planning and Design Research Institute and a director in charge of
design at Chengdu Bo Rui Real Estate Development Limited.
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Mr. Qin Lihong, aged 38, was appointed as executive director of
the Company on September 8, 2009, and is the Chief Marketing
Officer of the Group. Mr. Qin joined the Group in 2008. Mr. Qin
graduated from the School of International Studies of Peking
University in 1999 with a Master degree in Law. He obtained a
Master’s degree in Public Policy (MPP) from John Fitzgerald
Kennedy School of Government, Harvard University in 2001. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Qin worked in the Marketing
Department of Procter & Gamble (Guangzhou) Limited, Roland
Berger Strategy Consultants and Anhui Chery Automobile Sales
and Service Company.

Mr. Feng Jinyi, aged 40, was appointed as executive director of
the Company on June 3, 2011, is the Chief Business Development
Officer of the Group. Mr. Feng joined the Group in 2008. Mr. Feng
graduated from Changsha Communication College (currently
known as Changsha University of Science & Technology) in 1994
with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Feng worked for No. 3 Aviation Engineering Design
Institute Co., Ltd., Shanghai Kanggiao Bandao (Group) Co., Ltd.
and Zhejiang Jubao Real Estate Co., Ltd..

Mr. Wei Huaning, aged 34, was appointed as executive director
of the Company on June 3, 2011, is the Chief Financial Officer of
the Group. He joined the Group in 2006 and has served as the
Head of Strategic Management Centre and Operational
Management Centre. He is the General Manager of Finance
Department of the Group since June 2010. Mr. Wei holds a
doctoral degree in management from the Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics (School of Accountancy) and specialises
in Research on Corporate Strategy and Execution. Prior to joining
the Group, he has previously worked as a researcher at Center for
Strategy and Execution of Cheung Kong Research Institute in
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business.

Mr. Fang Shengtao, aged 39, was appointed as executive director
and member of remuneration committee of the Group on January
15, 2008, and is the Chief Human Resources Officer of the Group.
Mr. Fang joined the Group in 2005. Mr. Fang graduated from the
Department of Mechanical Engineering of Tsinghua University in
1995 with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering and obtained a
Master of Business Administration degree from INSEAD in 2002.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fang worked for Procter & Gamble
(Guangzhou) Ltd and founded the Shanghai Tuosheng Associates,
a human resources consulting company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse, aged 62, was appointed as
independent non-executive director and member of the Audit
Committee of the Company on November 1, 2009. He is the
managing director of Portwood Capital Limited. Mr. Churchouse
earned a Bachelor of Arts degree, and a Master of Social Science
degree from the University of Waikato in New Zealand. He has
been a director of LIM Advisers Limited, the senior portfolio
manager for the LIM Asia Alternative Real Estate Fund and a
managing director of the research department of Morgan Stanley.

Mr. CHAN Chi On, Derek, aged 48, was appointed as
independent non-executive director, Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company on November 1, 2009. Mr. Chan is a Executive
Director of Haitong International Securities Group Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and is also
currently the Managing Director of Haitong International Capital
Limited, in charge of its corporate finance division. Mr. Chan
graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
degree in Social Sciences (majoring in Economics) in 1985 and
from the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology with a
Master degree in Business Administration in 1994. Between 1989
and 1996, he worked for The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. He is an independent non-executive director of GZI REIT
Asset Management Limited and Sheng Yuan Holdings Limited,
both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
and is also an adjunct professor in the School of Accounting and
Finance of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Chan
possesses over 20 years of experience in the financial services

industry.
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Mr. Xiang Bing, aged 49, was appointed as independent non-
executive director, member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company on November 1, 2009.
He obtained a Doctoral degree in accounting from the University
of Alberta in Canada. Mr. Xiang is currently the founding dean
and professor of the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business.
Mr. Xiang is an independent non-executive director of Dan Form
Holdings Company Limited, HC International, Inc., Enerchina
Holdings Limited, Sinolink Worldwide Holdings Limited, China
Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd , Peak Sport Products Co., Limited
and Guangzhou Automobile Group Co., Ltd.. All of the above
mentioned companies are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Mr. Xiang is an independent non-executive director
LDK Solar Co., Ltd. Perfect World Co., Ltd., E-House (China)
Holdings Limited. All of the above mentioned companies are
listed in the U.S. Mr. Xiang is an independent non-executive
director of Yunnan Baiyao Group Co., Ltd, a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. In the past 3 years, Mr. Xiang was
an independent director of Shaanxi Qinchuan Machinery
Development Co., Ltd., Guangdong Midea Electric Appliances Co.,
Ltd., TCL Corporation., Shenzhen Terca Technology Co., Ltd.. All
of these companies are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr.
Xiang also was an independent non-executive director of Jutal
offshore Oil Services Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Zeng Ming, aged 41, was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company on June 3, 2011 and chairman
of the remuneration committee on 1 April,2012. Mr. Zeng is the
Chief Strategy Officer of Alibaba Group. Mr. Zeng obtained his
Ph.D in International Business and Strategy from University of
Illinois at Urbana-Champain, USA in 1998 and a Bachelor’s of Arts
degree in Economics from Fudan University in 1991. Mr. Zeng was
the Professor of Strategy at Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business, Beijing China and a faculty member at INSEAD, France.
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Senior Management

Ms. Fan Qi, aged 44, is an executive director of Chengdu Longhu.
Madam Fan joined the Group in 1997. Madam Fan served as the
General Manager of Chengdu business operations from 2005 to
2010. Madam Fan graduated from the Department of Management
Engineering of the Sichuan Institute of Light Industry and
Chemical Technology in 1988. Prior to joining the Group, Madam
Fan had worked for the Chongqing City Jiangbei District Shimen
Tax Office.

Mr. Zhao Nannan, aged 35, is the General Manager in charge of
our Shanghai business operations. Mr. Zhao joined the Group in
2001. Mr. Zhao graduated from Chongqing Jianzhu University and
obtained a bachelor’s degree majoring in Management Engineering
in 1999. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhao worked for
Chongqing Residential Construction Limited.

Mr. Huang Shixuan, aged 47, was appointed as the Chief
Engineer of the Group. He joined the Group in 1998 and has
served as the Deputy General Manager of Chongqing Longhu and
Beijing Longhu respectively. Mr. Huang graduated from the
Department of Mechanical Engineering of Chongqing University in
1988. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang worked for
Chongging Construction Limited.

Mr. Wei Jian, aged 37, is the General Manager of Commercial
Properties Operating Department of the Group. Mr. Wei joined the
Group in 2008. He graduated from the Tianjin University in 2000
and obtained a Master degree in Management Science and
Engineering. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wei worked for
Procter & Gamble (Guangzhou) Ltd., Roland Berger Strategy
Consultants and Tiens Group.

Mr. Zhang Xueqiao, aged 40, is the General Manager in charge of
our Chengdu business operations. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in
2007 and was the Deputy General Manager of the marketing
department of Chongqing Longhu. He serves as the General
Manager of our Chengdu business operations from 2011. Mr.
Zhang graduated from the Department of Economics and
Management of Guizhou Nationalities University majoring in
Industrial Enterprise Management in 1992. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Zhang worked for Shenzhen Skyworth Group,
Chongqing Yuhai Industrial Co. Ltd and Chongqing Jinke Group.
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Mr. Cui Hengzhong, aged 44, is the General Manager in Charge
of our Chongqing business operations. Mr. Cui joined the Group
in 2007 and served as the Project Director, Deputy General
Manger of operations and Deputy General Manger of engineering
of Beijing Longhu. Mr. Cui graduated from the Department of
Structural Engineering of Beijing University of Technology in 1997
and obtained a master degree in Engineering. Prior to joining the
Group, he worked for Jiangsu Province Urban Construction
Engineering Corporation, Research Institute of Metallurgical
Construction and Beijing Wanda Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd.

Mr. Yang Xiaopeng, aged 306, is the General Manager in Charge
of our business operations in Southern Jiangsu. Mr. Yang joined
the Group in 2008 and served as the Project Development
Manager, Director of Development and Design, and Deputy
General Manager of Development of Beijing Longhu. Mr. Yang
graduated from the Department of Urban Planning of Tsinghua
University in 2001 and obtained a master degree in Engineering.
Subsequently, he obtained a doctoral degree in Architecture from
Tsinghua University in June 2008. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Yang worked for China International Engineering Design and
Consult Co., Ltd.

Mr. Song Hailin, aged 39, is the General Manager in charge of
our Beijing business operations. Mr. Song joined the Group in
2011 and served as the Deputy Executive General Manager of
Beijing Longhu. He has served as the General Manager of Beijing
Longhu since May 2011. Mr. Song graduated from the Department
of Architectural Design and Theory of Tsinghua University in 2001
and obtained a doctoral degree in Engineering. Mr. Song was a
visiting scholar of the Special Program for Urban and Regional
Studies (SPURS) of Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT) in
the United States from 2009 to 2011. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Song was the President of the Architectural Design and
Research Institute of Tsinghua University and during such office,
he acted as the temporary Deputy District Chief of Fushan District
of Yantai in Shandong Province.
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Mr. Li Jun, aged 39, is the General Manager in charge of our
Shenyang business operations. Mr. Li joined the Group in 2006.
Mr. Li graduated from Beijing University of Technology with a
bachelor’s degree in Engineering in 1996 majoring in civil
engineering. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li worked for Beijing
Beichen Innovation Hi-tech Development Limited, Markgold
International Housing Land Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and
Beichen Property Development Company.

Mr. Peng Jiang, aged 37, is the General Manager in charge of our
Qingdao business operations. Mr. Peng graduated from the Tongji
University in 1997 with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering and
graduated from the Tsinghua University in 2001 and obtained a
Master degree of Engineering. Prior to joining to Group, Mr. Peng
worked for China Resources Land (Beijing) Limited and Taikang
Real Estate Investment Co.

Mr. Yuan Chun, aged 37, is the General Manager in charge of
our Hangzhou business operations. Mr. Yuan joined the Group in
2010. He graduated from the Tongji University in 1996 with a
Bachelor’s degree in heating and ventilating discipline. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Yuan worked for China Overseas Land &
Investment Ltd.
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Report of the Directors

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) are pleased to present the
annual report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the property development, property
investment and property management businesses in China.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating results for the
year by principal activities is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income of the Group on page 72.

DIVIDENDS

The Board proposed the payment of a finial dividend of
RMBO0.175 per share for the year ended December 31, 2011 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on May 24, 2012. The proposed final dividend will
be paid on or about June 4, 2012 after approval by shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”).

The proposed final dividend shall be declared in RMB and paid in
Hong Kong dollars. The final dividend payable in Hong Kong
dollars will be converted from RMB at the average middle rate of
RMB to Hong Kong dollars as announced by the People’s Bank of
China for the period from May 14, 2012 to May 16, 2012.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, May 11, 2012 to Thursday, May 17, 2012, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be effected. In order to determine the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting to be held on Thursday, May 17, 2012, all share
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday,
May 10, 2012.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, May 23, 2012 to Thursday, May 24, 2012 (both days
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. To qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong not later that 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, May 22,
2012.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year
is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 December 2011, the distributable reserve of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB7,439,238,000.
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DONATIONS

The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately RMB28.25 million (2010: approximately RMB28
million).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group is set out on page 219 of this
annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2011, revenue attributable to the
largest customer of the Group amounted to approximately 0.76%
of the total revenue in the year and the five largest customers of
the Group accounted for less than 3% of the Group’s revenue in
the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, purchases attributable to
the largest supplier of the Group amounted to approximately
3.24% of the total purchases in the year and the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 10% of the Group’s
purchases in the year.

So far as the Board of the Company is aware, neither the
Directors, their associates nor any shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major
customers and suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Madam Wu Yajun (Chairman)

Mr. Shao Mingxiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhou Dekang (Appointed on 3 June 2011)
Mr. Qin Lihong

Mr. Feng Jinyi (Appointed on 3 June 2011)

Mr. Wei Huaning (Appointed on 3 June 2011)
Mr. Fang Shengtao (Appointed on 3 June 2011)
Mr. Chen Kai (Retired on 9 May 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse

Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek

Mr. Xiang Bing

Mr. Zeng Ming (Appointed on 3 June 2011)

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Shao Mingxiao, Mr. Zhou Dekang, Mr. Feng Jinyi, Mr. Wei
Huaning, Mr. Zeng Ming, Mr. Xiang Bing and Mr. Chan Chi On,
Derek shall retire from office and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Each of the directors of the Company has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a period of three years. None of
the directors of the Company proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the directors and those of the five
highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2011, none of the directors of the Company
are considered to be in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or subsisted for the year ended 31 December
2011.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme”, at no time during the year were there any rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, nor were
there any such rights exercised by them. Also, there was no
arrangement to which the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is a party that would
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

AR Annual Report 2011
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COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKINGS BY THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS AND THE DIRECTORS

The Company has entered into the non-competition deed dated 1
November 2009 with the controlling shareholders of the
Company, namely Charm Talent International Limited (“Charm
Talent”), Junson Development International Limited (previously
known as Precious Full International Limited) (“Junson
Development”), Silver Sea Assets Limited (“Silver Sea”), Silverland
Assets Limited (“Silverland”), Madam Wu Yajun (“Madam Wu”) and
Mr. Cai Kui (“Mr. Cai”) pursuant to which Madam Wu, Charm
Talent and Silver Sea have jointly and severally undertaken, and
Mr. Cai, Junson Development and Silverland have jointly and
severally undertaken, not to compete with the Group. Each of
Madam Wu, Mr. Cai, Charm Talent, Junson Development, Silver
Sea and Silverland has also undertaken with the Company to
procure that any investment or commercial opportunity relating to
any property business or investment or management in the
People’s Republic of China that they or any of their respective
affiliates identify or propose or that is offered or presented to
them by a third party, be first referred to the Company in
accordance with the terms of the non-competition deed.

In March 2012, the Company has received an annual declaration
from each of the controlling shareholders of the Company and the
Directors in respect of their respective compliance with the non-
competition undertakings as at 31 December 2011. The
independent non-executive directors have reviewed the said
undertakings and are of the view that each of the controlling
shareholders of the Company and the Directors has complied with
their respective non-competition undertakings during the year
ended 31 December 2011.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2011, certain directors and
their close family members, and companies controlled by certain
Directors and/or their close family members entered into
transactions with the Group which are disclosed in note 40
“Related party transactions” to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

Save that certain sales of properties to key management and
shareholders constituted de minimis connected transactions of the
Company which were exempt from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
the other related party transactions which were carried out by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2011, did not fall
under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has two share option schemes namely, the Pre-IPO
Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Option Scheme which were
adopted on 30 November 2007 and 1 November 2009 respectively.

The total number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
available for issue under the share option schemes as at 12 March
2012 was 509,950,000 Shares which represented approximately
9.89% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 12 March
2012.
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Pre-IPO Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Option Scheme to
recognise the contribution of certain of its senior management
personnel and to retain such senior management personnel.

A )RR U R D FRORE S
A3 T 0 0 PR RE RE AR AT

The Company granted options to subscribe shares under the
Pre-IPO Option Scheme with the following details:

(Appointed as executive
director on 3 June 2011)

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i Hh & B A &

(1) EH (1) Directors
AR
TN
“Bk TR I
frife e ~A-A Numberof +ZHA=+—H
(#70) WA Share option WA
4 it Lk Exercise  Outstanding at reclassified  Outstanding at
Name Capacity Date of Grant Price (HKS) 1Jan 2011 during the period 31 Dec 2011
F R FREZEA WiE) “FELF 294 5,588,000 0 5,588,000
Fang Shengtao Beneficiary of t=A=+H
a trust (Note 1) 30 November 2007
L FRXEA Wia) —FFLE 294 - 5,588,000 5,588,000
(RZF——HAN=H¥  Beneficiary of +=A=1H (Wizt2)
FHRBUNES) a trust (Note 1) 30 November 2007 (Note 2)
Shao Mingxiao
(Appointed as executive
director on 3 June 2011)
R RRZEA HE)  —ZFLF 294 - 5,588,000 5,588,000
(RZF——FAHZB8  Beneficiary of t=A=+H (Wit
FRAUNES) a trust (Note 1) 30 November 2007 (Note 2)
Zhou Dekang
(Appointed as executive
director on 3 June 2011)
BY% [RREZEN Mt —FELE 294 - 1,000,000 1,000,000
(RZF——HAN=H¥  Beneficiary of +=A=1H (Wizt2)
FEAUES) a trust (Note 1) 30 November 2007 (Note 2)
Feng Jinyi
(Appointed as executive
director on 3 June 2011)
R EEZRA Wit) —“FFLE 294 — 400,000 600,000
(RZF——FAHZ08  Beneficiary of t=A=+H (Wit
FRAUNES) a trust (Note 1) 30 November 2007 (Note 2)
Wei Huaning
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(2) Employees

MM
L
ZEk R ZEf

ot B ik Numberof +ZH=F—H

(#7) A A7 options WA

AL Exercise  Outstanding at reclassified  Outstanding at

Date of Grant Price (HKS) 1Jan 2011 during the period 31 Dec 2011

“FRLE 294 27,352,000 (12,776,000) 14,576,000
+—H=+H (W72
30 November 2007 (Note 2)

Note 1: Such number of pre-IPO options granted pursuant to a Pre-IPO
Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 30 November 2007 are
currently held by Long Faith subject to the terms of the Long Faith
Trust. The Long Faith Trust is a discretionary trust of which HSBC
(HK) Trustee is the trustee and the relevant director and employees
are discretionary objects.

Note 2: The Share options granted to Mr. Shao Mingxiao, Mr. Zhou Dekang
Mr. Feng Jinyi and Mr. Wei Huaning reclassified from Employees to

Directors during the period.
Note 3: No pre-IPO share options exercised during the period.

The Pre-IPO Options have been vested and will vest in equal
portion on January 1, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 and will only
become exercisable for a period from the respective vesting
dates and ending on November 30, 2017. No further options
can be offered under the Pre-IPO Option Scheme.

The subscription price payable upon the exercise of any Pre-
IPO Options is fixed at HK$2.94 per Share.

The terms of the Pre-IPO Option Scheme are similar to those
of the Post-IPO Option Scheme (see below) except in respect
of the following:

e there is no provision limiting the maximum number of
options that might be granted to any individual grantee
under the Pre-IPO Option Scheme;

e the provisions on the granting of options to connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) were not
included,

e the Pre-IPO Option Scheme does not contain provisions
relating to the “refreshing” of the 10% limit or the seeking
of separate approval for granting options beyond the 10%
limit as anticipated in Note 1 of Rule 17.03(3) of the
Listing Rules, or the restrictions on the number of Shares
issued or to be issued under options in any 12 month
period to any participant of the Pre-IPO Option Scheme
not exceeding 1% of the Shares in issue as anticipated in
the note to Rule 17.03(4) of the Listing Rules.
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(b) T IR 2 B B 1% i It (b) Post-IPO Option Scheme
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B s T R B P T R
10,600,000/ ~ 46,000,000/ % 150,000,000
B 1 WS IR HE > FERS IR

On 23 December 2009, 17 January 2011 and 28 September
2011, the Company granted options to subscribe for a total of
10,600,000 Shares, 46,000,000 Shares and 150,000,000 Shares
under the Post-IPO Option Scheme to certain directors and
employees of the Company, with the following details:

(1) #H (1) Directors
RS
Number of Share Option
I S I S
frff e “A=H  RMABRER  FZAZt-H
(#7) WA Movement WA
i o FHH Exercise Outstanding during Outstanding
Name Capacity Date of Grant Price (HKS$) at 1 Jan 2011 the period  at 31 Dec 2011
il 82 PN “Fo—k 12528 — 1,600,000 1,600,000
(R-Z——EXA=HH Beneficial Owner -At+tH
FEAUES) 17 January 2011
Shao Mingxiao “E—F 8.28 - 30,000,000 30,000,000
(Appointed as executive AAZTAH
director on 3 June 2011) 28 September 2011
e 8t 2PN "Rk 12528 — 1,200,000 1,200,000
(RZF——EAH=HE Beneficial Owner -AttH
RERUTES) 17 January 2011
Zhou Dekang “E-— 8.28 — 4,000,000 4,000,000
(Appointed as executive AAZFAH
director on 3 June 2011) 28 September 2011
it 85 TiON “EENE 8.4 3,000,000 0 3,000,000
Qin Lihong Beneficial Owner tZAZF=R
23 December 2009
“E——AF 12528 — 3,000,000 3,000,000
—AttH
17 January 2011
SRk 8.28 - 4,000,000 4,000,000
AR
28 September 2011
CHES 85 TiON “EENE 8.44 - 1,000,000 1,000,000
(RZF——ERA =R Beneficial Owner ToAZT=H (W7t1)
FHERNES) 23 December 2009 (Note 1)
Feng Jinyi SRk 12528 - 800,000 800,000
(Appointed as executive ~AtLh
director on 3 June 2011) 17 January 2011
“F—k 8.8 - 8,000,000 8,000,000
L= AH
28 September 2011
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Name

BE%
(RZ——ERA=ZHH
EERUGES

Wei Huaning
(Appointed as executive
director on 3 June 2011)

Bl
(REZF-—FLA N HRE
ATER)

CHEN Kai (Retired as executive
director on 9 May 2011)

Frederick Peter
Churchouse

n
%

Chen Chi On,
Derek

B R

AN

Xiang Bing

L
(REF——FRA=H
BEEABLFATES)

Zeng Ming
(Appointed as independent

non-executive director
on 3 June 2011)

4
Capacity

-5 2N

Beneficial Owner

REER

Tnterests of spouse

ERfHA

Beneficial Owner

-5 2N

Beneficial Owner

% 2O

Beneficial Owner

LEE 1IN

Beneficial Owner

-5 2N

Beneficial Owner

L

Date of Grant
.
“AtLh

17 January 2011
ot
AAZHAH

28 September 2011
7k
“AtLH

17 January 2011
“Z-—k
AAZHAH

28 September 2011

“EENE
tZAZ+=H
23 December 2009

“TELE
+T-AZT=H
23 December 2009
e
AT AR

28 September 2011

“REAE
tZAZ+=R
23 December 2009
Y S
A AR

28 September 2011

“EENE
tZAZH=H
23 December 2009
e
AT AH

28 September 2011

.
AAZTAR
28 September 2011

frife (e
(#7)
Exercise
Price (HKS)

12528

8.44

8.44

8.28

8.44

8.28

8.28

=R
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TR H
Number of Share Option
e
“A-R RABRES
w AT Movement
Outstanding during
at 1 Jan 2011 the period
— 2,600,000
— 8,000,000
— 1,000,000
— 2,000,000
6,000,000 (6,000,000)

(Wit2)
(Note 2)
200,000 50,000
(Htit3)
(Note 3)
— 400,000
200,000 0
— 400,000
200,000 0
— 400,000
— 400,000

o
+ZAZ1-H
WAL
Outstanding

at 31 Dec 2011

2,600,000

8,000,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

150,000

400,000

200,000

400,000

200,000

400,000

400,000
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2 R’E

i

Date of Grant
2
+oH=+=H
23 December 2009

17 January 2011

o
AAZ+ AR
28 September 2011

&1
Capacity
£ S ZiDN

Beneficial Owner

5 2PN

Beneficial Owner

5 ZiDN

Beneficial Owner

(2) Employees

LY g

Number of share Option
o o
frhE f sk —“A—H TZAZt—H
(#7c) LER ] RABIR %5 EENY
Exercose Outsanding at ~ Movement during Outsanding at
Price (HKS) 1 Jan 2011 the period 31 Dec 2011
8.4 1,000,000 5,000,000 6,000,000
12528 — 35,800,000 35,800,000
8.28 — 88,400,000 88,400,000

I &t -

Note:

5T U5 S0 2 0 W IR A 1A oy
R B V86 473 96 0 S50 2 Sk 0

{2 BRI S A I 08 AR A 0 R
=500 TR KRR B A

Frederick Peter Churchouse’t £ it 4%
179 77 50,0008 72 F HE © A7 681 M
HETT — FI B3 1 5 8 Wit 5 e 22 M ol
F512.328 00 ©

B BB S Z A
Z W 2t M 6 — IR
7 52 2 T AR 8,061 5 - B
S TITISE S ToNE S o
e R S ey
SHESZ-MEFH SRS
AT > AT 25% -

Mt —Z——F—H LAz
FECHEE > 357t B G — RO S A v
W 58 T 2 Wi o 48 5 12,88 T o M A% HE
A SE A SRS R
S SR -RE-ATERES
T T A AN H A AT > 4
A 47 f#25% °

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i Hh & B A &

1

The share options granted to Mr. Feng Jinyi re-classified from Employees
to Directors during the period.

The Share options granted to Mr. Chen Kai re-classified from Directors

to Employees during the period.

Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse exercised 50,000 share options during
the period. The closing price on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange of the
shares immediately before the date on which the options were exercised
was HK$12.32.

As for the share option granted on 23 December 2009, the closing price
of the shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange immediately before the
date on which the options were granted was HK$8.26. The options are
exercisable in 4 tranchs of 25% each, from 23rd December 2010, 2011,
2012, 2013 to 22nd December 2019.

As for the share option granted on 17 January 2011, the closing price of
the shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange immediately before the
date on which the options were granted was HK$12.88. The options are
exercisable in 4 tranchs of 25% each, from 17th January 2012, 2013,
2014, 2015 to 16th January 2021.



Mt —Z——F A+ ABFEZ
WM HE 42 IR AT — H RO
I A T 2 Wi T {E Sy 817 T o e
T BB W% 26 2 110,000,000 5 B Fi
B AR R —F - LEH
NAFZFEZ—FAHZ+LH - K
AR HE AT = — =4 - ZF
oo ZE-HAE S ZE-RERA S
TAHEZZZ AT LAS
WU AT > AT B R B BB 10%,
30%, 30%, 30% ©

DUTR 8 YR B % 45 42 T AR T 1 0

B
(i) wHEAH K

(i)

Gt BB T AR L R R
IEI Ry 2 B (GEE RT3 (i) B
PR LB O M1 AN R T RERE AR
3 5% B 2 B By AR A A S HIROR
BRI > SRR R
B E (E -

2 8%

fROERr# > HEE G AR RS A L
Vo G 2 ) A A 2 2 (L4 L
TS AT E N AT
HH) MEAUAEEGLERLC
B N S A 4 A o) ERR A A 4R
L7 R B 23 B AT T R B - BE R
I~ 2r i - REH - BARE
w R RBEA - RF R
B AT M R R
MER ([2 8% ]) 2 8t -

R
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As for the share option granted on 28 September 2011, the closing price
of the shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange immediately before the
date on which the options were granted was HK$8.17. The exercisable
period for 10,000,000 share options granted to Mr. Shao Mingxiao is 28th
September 2017 to 27th September 2021. The remaining options are
exercisable in 4 tranchs from 28 September 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 to
27th September 2021, the exercisable percentage is 10%, 30%, 30%, 30%
respectively.

A summary of the principal terms of the Post-IPO Option

Scheme is set out as follow:

(@)

(ii)

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Participants
(defined in paragraph (ii) below) who have been granted
Options under the Scheme to subscribe for Shares with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the
Company and to encourage Participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and the Shares for
the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

Who may join

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at their
discretion, invite any directors (including executive
Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors) and employees of any member of the
Group and any advisers, consultants, distributors,
contractors, contract manufacturers, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, service providers of any member of the Group
who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group (the
“Participants”) to participate in the Scheme.
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(i) AR B8 5 0 w7 B AT 0 IR 4 AR 0

AR T B 54 A w) 5RO A A T A
Bl R 2 1 0 A R R T
TEORBEEOWE FR o AL
R A5 B 3 A T o T B O R
HOE B AT R 0 S A 2 ) AR 4 6 4 e
i HE T A T 5 S AT AT ol i 4 1Y
10% ° T F10%RER > A5EAR
R B I E

IR AT (AR st 3 A 2 m) B AT
o] FE A e PR HRE S ) 2 4% e R E T
BT RmEYE . AEEEAKD
BT RAR I 30% o

(iv) % 2 BLH W B 15 Z e L A

)

AR S AR 1 W ICHE F ) 2 AT
ff 124 H B g o R A AR 4
B A wBR D ) A ] H At i A T
HORTEER T &2 HE N IE K
T C BT R T B AT IO B A
B AR B OB AT O A B
1% °

Jik JBC HEE £ 390

Sl PR HEAT (0003 oy AR 2 ) 452 4 B D
B AANEBIRA RS H L0
CRERE

(vi) B A i JBE HE 22 20 2 £ 3%

2 S T B A P 5 5 O P R B A 1)
A A S 1003 TTAE 2 4% U
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(ii1) Total number of Shares available for issue under the Scheme

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Initially the maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all Options to be granted under
the Scheme or any other option schemes adopted by the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate of the
Shares in issue on the date of which trading of the Shares
commences on the Stock Exchange and any Shares which
may be allotted and issued by the Company under the
over-allotment option. The lapsed share options are
excluded when calculating the 10% limit.

The total number of Shares available for issue upon
exercise of the Options which may be granted pursuant to
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the Options granted and to be granted
pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company to each Participant in any 12-
month period up to and including the date of grant of the
Options shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares

in issue.

Time of exercise of the Options

The period within which the Options must be exercised
will be specified by the Company at the time of grant.
This period must expire no later than 10 years from the
relevant date of grant.

Payment on acceptance of Option offer

HK$1.00 is payable by the Participant to the Company on
acceptance of the Option offered as consideration for the
grant.
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(vii) Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price per Share under the Scheme is a
price determined by the Board and notified to each
Participant and shall be no less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five Stock Exchange business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

(viii) Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme will remain valid until 31 October 2019 after
which no further Options will be granted but in respect of
all Options which remain exercisable on such date, the
provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and
effect.

PRE-IPO SHARE AWARD SCHEMES

The Company adopted two Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes on 30
November 2007 and 31 July 2009 respectively. Their principal
terms are substantially the same and are summarized below.

(i) Objective

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes to
recognise the contribution of certain of its employees,
especially those whom the Company considered had
contributed to the early development and growth of the
Group, and to align their interests with those of the
shareholders of the Company.
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(ii) E 17 (ii) Implementation

By AT 1 U B A I 0 58 B 1 )
2 ZFE NN A+ — B BOLFit All
Trust > & THCWE AT & A o BB
TEELEF AT HRAE R
B % 5 1) B 4 S BB =t ) > AS 2 ] [ Fit Al
Investments Limited ([ Fit Al > ¥ =%
FNFEANH T —H A A o B S o
i H8CS7 B R 5 B R4\ o H Fit All Trust
5% 56 AHSBC (HK) Trustee? & #E7) %
F143664,014,0000 0 - RIBR —FF
FELHZT—HERAN E R A HEE
i A Ay 5% Bh 51 #) > Charm Talent % Junson
Development]f] Fit AL % A 4£30,000,000
TR SR 3 3647 94,014,00008 B £ ([ 5% )
Mt ) B 7 A EEA TRERE ([EE
RED -

(i) 2% i ¢ A0 4 St D Ak 1

88 5 AR B A% 98 T R ) 4 O B D
T BT > R AT B o A7 5 I £ 1Y HE
F e

BETE o RSN R
] 788 3 {58 45 1K) 58 iy RS 40 1 08 5 1 B
J& R0 A A DU TR] ) R o
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For the implementation of the Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes,
the Fit All Trust was established on June 11, 2008 for the
benefit of selected employees of the Group. Pursuant to the
Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme adopted on 30 November 2007,
the Company issued a total of 64,014,000 Shares to Fit All
Investments Limited (“Fit All”), a special purpose vehicle
incorporated in the BVI and wholly owned by HSBC (HK)
Trustee acting as the trustee of the Fit All Trust, on June 11,
2008. Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme adopted
on 31 July 2009, Charm Talent and Junson Development
transferred to Fit All a total of 30,000,000 Shares. A total of
94,014,000 Shares (the “Awarded Shares”) were granted to
selected employees of the Group (the “Selected Employees”).

(iii) Vesting of the Awarded Shares

The Selected Employees are not entitled to exercise or enjoy
the rights to the Awarded Shares pending the vesting of the
Awarded Shares in accordance with the applicable vesting
period.

In general, vesting period is either four or five years during
which the Awarded Shares granted to any particular Selected
Employee will vest on each anniversary of the first vesting
date in equal portions.

Prior to vesting, the Selected Employees are not entitled to
the rights to and interests in the Awarded Shares, including
voting and distribution rights.
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Name of director

S
Wu Yajun

B
Shao ’\/Iingxiao
A\ F-—EAACZAMERAALES)

(Appomted as executive director on 3 June 2011)

Zhou Dekang
A\ FE—ERACZAMERAUGES)

(Appomted as executive director on 3 June 2011)
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests

As at 31 December 2011, the interests of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register which were
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

(i) Interest in the Company (long position)

RHBE AL
Bty 2 He i RONER:

C2ve 113 vl 4 e Interestin  Approximate %
Capacity/Nature Number of underlying of inerest
of interest ordinary shares shares in the Company
2AERCAIA (WD) 2,343,736,600 - 45.465%

Founder of a discretionary
trust (Note 1)

KRS (Mt 1,559,394,400 — 30.25%
Family Interest (Note 2)
KWL (W6 3,100,000 — 0.060%

Family Interest (Note 6)

fFFE2 A (Hf7t3) 1,606,125 0.031%
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3)
EHEXHA (Hite 32,940,000 0.639%
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 4)
[ EE 2PN 2905875 31,600,000 0.699%
Beneficial Owner (ft7£5)

(Note 5)
fRREZ 4N (H7E3) 1,698,750 0.033%
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3)
TR (Hite 32,940,000 0.639%
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 4)
LEE ZiDN 2,813,250 5,200,000 0.156%
Beneficial Owner (ft7t5)

(Note 5)
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PHE AN
ot <t g BAE 4
LEVE F13 BERYA Interestin  Approximate %
EHEL Capacity/Nature Number of underlying of inerest
Name of director of interest ordinary shares shares in the Company
Zhit fRRtZ A (Hts) 1,585,875 0.031%
Qin Lihong Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3)
BifEa A 1,814,125 10,000,000 0.229%
Beneficial Owner (it #k5)
(Note 5)
YIES it ZHA (Wit 1,250,000 0.024%
Feng Jinyi Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3)
MoF——ERNAZHREEAUGES) iz (e 32,940,000 0.639%
(Appointed as executive director on 3 June 2011) Beneficiary of a trust (Note 4)
-E% 2N 750,000 9,800,000 0.205%
Beneficial Owner (it #k5)
(Note 5)
Ee it fEEZEA (W33 206,500 0.004%
Wei Huaning Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3)
MoF——ERNAZHREEAUGES) R YN 32,940,000 0.639%
(Appointed as executive director on 3 June 2011) Beneficiary of a trust (Note 4)
-¢0% TN 206,500 10,600,000 0.210%
Beneficial Owner (it k5)
(Note 5)
L 8 1 4 214,375 3,000,000 0.062%
Interests of Spouse (HizE7) (Wt 1 7)
(Note 7) (Note 5 and 7)
214,125 0.004%
(Hzt7)
(Note 7)
5 M stz s (M3 1,606,125 0.031%
Fang Shengtao Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3)
itz (i) 32,940,000 0.639%
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 4)
EanfaA 2,905,875 4,000,000 0.056%
Beneficial Owner (it 5)
(Note 5)
Frederick Peter FE:L XN 50,000 550,000 0.012%
Churchouse Beneficial Owner (it k5)
(Note 5)
W% HREHA 600,000 0.012%
Chen Chi On, Derek Beneficial Owner (f7ts5)
(Note 5)
g Eik 2N 600,000 0.012%
Xiang Bing Beneficial Owner (Hf#E5)
(Note 5)
& 402 TN 400,000 0.008%
Zeng Ming Beneficial Owner (Hf#E5)
(Note 5)
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These Shares are held by Charm Talent Investment Limited (“Charm
Talent”) as registered holder. The entire issued share capital of
Charm Talent is wholly owned by Silver Sea Asset Limited (“Silver
Sea”), the entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-
owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited (“HSBC International
Trustee”) as the trustee of the Wu Family Trust. The Wu Family Trust
is a discretionary trust set up by Madam Wu Yajun (“Madam Wu”) as
settlor and protector and HSBC International Trustee as trustee on 11
June 2008. The beneficiary objects of the Wu Family Trust include
certain family members of Madam Wu. Madam Wu as founder of the
Wu Family Trust is taken to be interested in the 2,343,736,600 Shares
held by Charm Talent pursuant to Part XV of the SFO. According to
the latest disclosure of interests filings, Charm Talent is interested in
2,343,591,600 Shares, representing 45.462% of the issued Shares as at
31 December 2011. The Company is aware that Charm Talent is
interested in 2,343,736,600 Shares, representing 45.465% of the
issued Shares as at 31 December 2011. No disclosure of interests
form has been voluntarily filed by Charm Talent in respect of the
acquisition of 145,000 Shares. Madam Wu as founder of the Wu
Family Trust and Mr. Cai Kui (‘Mr. Cai”) as the spouse of Madam Wu
are each taken to be interested in these 145,000 Shares held by
Charm Talent pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

These Shares are held by Junson Development International Limited
(“Junson Development”) as registered holder. The entire issued share
capital of Junson Development is wholly owned by Silverland Asset
Limited (“Silverland”), the entire issued share capital of which is in
turn wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee as the trustee of
the Cai Family Trust. The Cai Family Trust is a discretionary trust set
up by Mr. Cai as settlor and protector and HSBC International Trustee
as trustee on 11 June 2008. The beneficiary objects of the Cai Family
Trust include certain family members of Mr. Cai. Madam Wu as the
spouse of Mr. Cai is taken to be interested in the 1,559,394,400
Shares held by Junson Development pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Such number of Shares are held on trust by Fit All. The entire issued
share capital of Fit All is wholly-owned by HSBC Trustee (HK)
Limited (“HSBC (HK) Trustee”) as the trustee of the Fit All Trust. The
Fit All Trust was set up on 11 June 2008 with HSBC (HK) Trustee
acting as the trustee thereof. The beneficiary objects of the Fit All
Trust are certain selected employees and directors of the Group as
participants of the Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes adopted by the
Company.

Such number of pre-IPO options granted pursuant to a Pre-IPO
Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 30 November 2007 are
currently held by Long Faith Management Limited (“Long Faith”)
subject to the terms of the Long Faith Trust. The Long Faith Trust is a
discretionary trust of which HSBC (HK) Trustee is the trustee and the
relevant director is one of the discretionary objects.
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Note 5: The relevant director was granted options to subscribe for such
number of shares under the Post-IPO Option Scheme.

Note 6: These 3,100,000 shares are beneficially held by Mr. Cai Kui. Madam
Wu is the spouse of Mr. Cai Kui and accordingly, Madam Wu is taken
to be interested in these 3,100,000 shares held by Mr. Cai pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO.

Note 7: Mdm. ZHANG Yan, the spouse of Mr. WEI Huaning, has personal
interest of 214,375 shares under the Post-IPO Option Scheme. She
was granted 1,000,000 options on 17 January 2011 at an exercise
price of HK$12.528 per share and 2,000,000 options on 28 September
2011 at an exercise price of HK$8.28 per share. Mdm. ZHANG Yan is
also the beneficiary of the Fit All Trust under which Mdm. ZHANG
Yan is interested in 214,125 Shares as selected participant pursuant to
the Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes. Mr. WEI Huaning is deemed to be
interested in the aforesaid interests of Mdm. ZHANG Yan by virtue of
Part XV of the SFO.

(ii) Interest in an associated corporation of the Company (long

) position)

At R Tt 3 1 i
A E 2 b
Approximate %
F o 4 20 13 Gk L of interest
EHEY Name of the associated Capacity/Nature  Number of class in the associated
Name of Director corporation of interest of securities corporation
5 B R R AR A A ZHEEEHES 20,010,000 B B 8.7%

Wu Yajun Chongqing Longhu Interest of controlled 20,010,000 shares

Development Co., Ltd.

corporation
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares
of the Company, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in
the register which were required to be kept by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code. Other than the Pre-IPO Option Scheme and the Post-
IPO Option Scheme of the Company adopted on 30
November 2007 and 1 November 2009 respectively, none of
Directors or their spouse or children under the age of 18, had
been granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt
securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations, or had exercised any such right.
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HSBC International Trustee Limited
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Junson Development
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2011, the interests of persons, other than the
directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares and the
underlying shares of the Company representing 5% or more of the
nominal value of shares comprised in the relevant share capital of

the Company as recorded in the register kept by the Company

under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Interest in the Company (long position)

4y HE 45 1
Capacity/Nature

of interest

Kb (M at1)

Family interest (Note 1)

RHERE FERIMEN (M 3E2)

Founder of a discretionary
trust (Note 2)

BREEAR N (Hi3)
Registered owner (Note 3)
ZREN (MtaE1k2)

Trustee (Notes 1 and 2)
BRWA N (i)
Registered owner (Note 1)
TP E 2 RS (f ik 1)
Interest of controlled

corporation (Note 1)

BREAR N (Hi2)
Registered owner (Note 2)
TR E R (M aE2)
Interest of controlled

corporation (Note 2)

EmR WA
Number of

ordinary shares

2,343,736,600

1,559,394,400

3,100,000

3,903,567,000

2,343,591,600

2,343,591,600

1,559,394,400

1,559,394,400

A A T 1
WA 2 b
Approximate %
of interest

in the Company

45.465%

30.250%

0.060%

75.723%

45.462%

45.462%

30.250%

30.250%
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Note 1: These Shares are held by Charm Talent as registered holder. The entire
issued share capital of Charm Talent is wholly owned by Silver Sea, the
entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-owned by HSBC
International Trustee as the trustee of the Wu Family Trust. The Wu Family
Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Madam Wu as settlor and protector
and HSBC International Trustee as trustee on 11 June 2008. The
beneficiary objects of the Wu Family Trust include certain family members
of Madam Wu. Madam Wu as founder of the Wu Family Trust and Mr. Cai
as the spouse of Madam Wu are each taken to be interested in the
2,343,591,600 Shares held by Charm Talent pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO. According to the latest disclosure of interests filings, Charm Talent is
interested in 2,343,591,600 shares, representing 45.462% of the issued
Shares as at 31 December 2011. The Company is aware that Charm Talent
is interested in 2,343,736,600 Shares, representing 45.465% of the issued
Shares as at 31 December 2011. No disclosure of interests form has been
voluntarily filed by Charm Talent in respect of the acquisition of 145,000
Shares. Madam Wu as founder of the Wu Family Trust and Mr. Cai as the
spouse of Madam Wu are each taken to be interested in these 145,000
Shares held by Charm Talent pursuant to Part XI of the SFO.

Note 2: These Shares are held by Junson Development as registered holder. The
entire issued share capital of Junson Development is wholly owned by
Silverland, the entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-
owned by HSBC International Trustee as the trustee of the Cai Family
Trust. The Cai Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Cai as
settlor and protector and HSBC International Trustee as trustee on 11 June
2008. The beneficiary objects of the Cai Family Trust include certain
family members of Mr. Cai. Mr. Cai as founder of the Cai Family Trust and
Madam Wu as the spouse of Mr. Cai are each taken to be interested in the
1,559,394,400 Shares held by Junson Development pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

Note 3: Mr. Cai Kui is beneficially interested in 3,100,000 Shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company had not
redeemed, and neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased or sold any of the Shares of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association, or the law of Cayman Islands
being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated
under which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing Shareholder.



AR g
VSE SRS ISR S

SR A -

S 2y S e B

i B 55 8.08 (1) (a) A (b) W M A2 =5 2K bl 9
S OB AT N BT LB AT N I Tl R
HERE LA BRI R o %R R RN () TE
AT 65 [ A7 AT 28 AT A AR B 7D 259 4%
JEHAREEA 5 R G)M T ABRECR Fim
AR B B BB AR
TR T LS T (RS 3 ) B R
11N 75 BBUH B B AT N DB AT IRA
B2 25% o SR > ok BT S BIE A
DR BT NEBAT A 15% » B LT
IR 1Y 7 51 1 (28 K 2 1% 10,000,000,0009 TG

AKE T E 1o B A T R R o ORI A T AT i
Vi A8 JiT AT 68 B 717 A B 55 8,08 (1)(d) I 1 9 5
THE D2 A AR 2 R 0 2 RS 2 B 159 (fiR
OB R R AT ) A RN R
B35 17 AR B 1 43 b (2 48 A T A 24 23
oA AT ) o T A% I R D EEA T AR BT
R (1) 76 399 17 (5 48 4 10,000,000,0009 T B 17
5 M T o T 2 A B TR O B A i
NS EBRRARERET LT ZEE
T T A7 {7 7 7 M 00 A2 2 A 2 ) S AE R IR
T o B AR Y 2 R AR R 7 4 LG R
TR 0 A5 O AF o RERR A R S R IR
B ANFERZFEZNFES—ATIUE BT
5 > T {8 44 10,000,000,0003 7T

R

Report of the Directors

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Rules 8.08(1)(a) and (b) of the Listing Rules require there to be an
open market in the securities for which listing is sought and for a
sufficient public float of an issuer’s listed securities to be
maintained. This normally means that (i) at least 25% of the
issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times be held by the
public; and (ii) where an issuer has more than one class of
securities apart from the class of securities for which listing is
sought, the total securities of the issuer held by the public (on all
regulated market(s) including the Stock Exchange) at the time of
listing must be at least 25% of the issuer’s total issued share
capital. However, the class of securities for which listing is sought
must not be less than 15% of the issuer’s total issued share
capital, and must have an expected market capitalization at the
time of listing of not less than HK$10,000 million.

The Group had applied to the Stock Exchange to request the
Stock Exchange to exercise, and the Stock Exchange exercised its
discretion under Rule 8.08(1)(d) of the Listing Rules to accept a
lower public float percentage of the Company of 15% (assuming
the over-allotment option is not exercised) or such higher
percentage of the issued share capital as would be held by the
public in the event that the whole or a part of the over-allotment
option is exercised (which discretion may be exercised in respect
of issuers with an expected market capitalization at the time of
listing of over HK$10,000 million) on the basis that the Stock
Exchange was satisfied that the number of the Shares concerned
and the extent of their distribution would enable the market to
operate properly with the lower percentage, and on the condition
that the Company would make appropriate disclosure of the
lower prescribed percentage of public float in the Prospectus and
confirm sufficiency of public float in the successive annual reports
after listing. At the time of the listing of the Company on 19
November 2009, the market capitalization exceeded HK$10,000
million.
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The over-allotment option was fully exercised on 24 November
2009 in respect of an aggregate of 150,000,000 shares and
accordingly the lower public float percentage of the Company
accepted by the Stock Exchange is approximately 22.33%. Based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Directors confirm that the Company has maintained
the amount of public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution for the
reappointment of Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
Company’s auditor is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board
Longfor Properties Co. Ltd.
Wu Yajun

Chairman

Hong Kong, March 12, 2012
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The Board of the Company is pleased to present the corporate
governance report for the year ended 31 December 2011.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognizes the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed in
achieving a high standard of corporate governance and leading
the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate image
with effective corporate governance procedures. The Board is of
opinion that the Company had adopted, applied and complied
with the code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2011 except on the deviations set out in the paragraph
headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company have not been segregated as required by the provision
A.2.1 of the Code for the period from 1 January 2011 to 14 August
2011. With effective from 15 August 2011, Madam Wu Yajun
resigned as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and
remain as the Chairman at the Board. Mr. Shao Mingxiao, an
executive director has been appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. The Board currently comprises seven
executive Directors(including Madam Wu) and four independent
non-executive Directors and therefore has a fairly strong
independence element in its composition. The chairman of the
board should be responsible for the management of the board
while the chief executive officer for the day-to-day management
of business, The division of responsibilities should be set out in
writing as below:

Responsibilities of the chairman of the board:

1. To provide leadership for the board; to ensure that the board
works effectively and discharge its responsibilities; to ensure
that good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established.
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To attend annual general meeting and ensure that issues
raised by shareholders are answered by the chairman of the
Board committees, and the appropriate proxy on the meeting.

To lead the formulation of corporate strategies, mid-to-long
term plans of development, annual budget and significant
organizational and structural adjustments.

To lead the formulation of an investment and financing

decision system.

To provide leadership in respect of internal audit and crisis
management.

To lead the recruitment and appointment of senior
management and board members of the Company; to
participate under the recommendation of the remuneration
committee in decision making in respect of remuneration and

HE R KB R EREE o bonuses of, and share option incentive schemes for, senior
management and directors, and other material changes and
reforms in human resources management system and
remuneration system.

7 SHFERIHEAMB G - 7. To participate inauguration of key projects.
8 GHIE A AL R M B LA o 8. To provide leadership in respect of corporate culture.
HREWATE EER T Responsibilities of the chief executive officer:

1~ SUERERWES TE BATEE TR 1.
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To provide leadership in the execution of corporate strategies
and achieving the objectives of plans;

To establish and continuously improve the management
system and management team.

To lead the corporate team and continue to retain and train
management talents.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the guidelines
for the Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company. Upon
specific enquiries of all the Directors, each of them confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2011 in relation
to their securities dealings, if any.

The Model Code has extended to be applicable to senior
management and relevant employees who likely possesses the
non-public price-sensitive information of the Company.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group’s business, strategic decisions
and performances and currently comprises eleven Directors,
including seven executive Directors namely Madam Wu Yajun, Mr.
Shao Mingxiao, Mr. Zhou Dekang, Mr. Qin Lihong, Mr. Feng Jinyi,
Mr. Wei Huaning and Mr. Fang Shengtao and four independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse,
Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek, Mr. Xiang Bing and Mr. Zeng Ming. The
Board has delegated the management certain management and
administrate functions as they think fit and provides guidance of
the rights of management. The Board will review the relevant
delegation from time to time to ensure that clear guidance and
rights have been provided and the proper reporting procedures
have been complied. In addition, the Board has also established
Board

responsibilities to the Board committees including the audit

various committees and has delegated various
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the investment committee
(the “Investment Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”).
All the Board Committees perform their distinct roles in

accordance with their respective terms of reference.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there are no financial,
business, family or other material relationships among members of
the Board.
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Frederick Peter Churchouse
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All of the independent non-executive Directors are appointed for
a term of three years. None of them holds any other offices in the
Company or any of its subsidiaries except that each of them has
been granted options under the Post-IPO Option Scheme adopted
by the Company on 1 November 2009, details of which are set out
in the Directors’ Report. The Company has received from each of
the independent non-executive Directors a confirmation of his
independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition
regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company.

During the year under review, the Board held four meetings, the
attendance of each director is as follows:

S U 2 A U

No. of meetings attended/Total meetings

4/4
3/3
3/3
4/4
3/3
3/3

4/4

4/4
4/4

3/4

3/3
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 1
November 2009 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include evaluating
and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
system and package of the Directors and senior management.
During the year, the Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Fang
Shengtao, an executive Director, and Mr. Xiang Bing and Mr. Chan
Chi On, Derek, two independent non-executive Directors and is
chaired by Mr. Fang Shengtao. On 1 April 2012, Mr. Zeng Ming
was appointed as the Chairman of Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year to
review and approve the remuneration system of executive
Directors and senior management, and to discuss the
implementation principle and scope of the equity incentive
scheme of the Company. The attendance of each member is as
follows:

R o 2 R A U

No. of meetings attended/Total meetings

1/1
1/1

1/1

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 1 November
2009 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee include reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process and internal control procedures of the
Group and nominating and monitoring external auditors. The
Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek, Mr. Frederick Peter
Churchouse, and Mr. Xiang Bing and is chaired by Mr. Chan Chi
On, Derek. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the
chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate
professional and accounting qualifications.
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Chan Chi On, Derek
Frederick Peter Churchouse
JH

Xiang Bing
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The Remuneration Committee held two meetings with the senior
management and independent auditor of the Company during the
year, to consider the independence and audit scope of
independent auditor, and to review and discuss the internal
monitor system, interim and annual financial statements of the
Company and the opinion and report of independent auditor
before submitting to the Board for their approval.

The attendance of each member is as follows:

R SRR 2 TR SR
No. of meetings attended/Total meetings

2/2

2/2
2/2

INVESTMENT DECISION COMMITTEE

The Investment Decision Committee reports directly to the Board
and is responsible for appraising land acquisition proposals
submitted by the regional companies and the business
development department of the headquarters as well as making
land purchase decisions. The Investment Decision Committee
consists of Madam Wu Yajun, Mr. Shao Mingxiao, Mr. Zhou
Dekang, Mr. Qin Lihong, Mr. Feng Jinyi, Mr. Wei Huaning and Mr.
Wei Jian the General Manager of Commercial properties Operating
Department.
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Given that the nomination committee has not been established,
the whole Board will be responsible for the selection and
approval of the new Directors. Under the articles of associations
of the Company, one third of the Directors for the time being (or
if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not more than one third) will retire from office by rotation
provided that every Directors shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. The Board
will consider the factors including the expertise, experience and
integrity of the candidates when selecting the new Directors.

During the year, Mr. Chen Kai retired as director on 9 May 2011
and Mr. Shao Mingxiao, Mr. Zhou Dekang, Mr. Feng Jinyi, Mr. Wei
Huaning and Mr. Zeng Ming were appointed as new directors on
3 June 2011. The appointment of new directors were approved by
the written resolutions of all directors passed on 3 June 2011.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remunerations paid or payable
to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in respect of its audit services and
non-audit are RMB3,300,000 and RMB849,090,
respectively.

services

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flow for that period. The Directors
consider that the financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with all appropriate accounting standards and
requirements and reflect amounts that are based on the best
estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of the
Board and the management. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the
financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The statements of the auditors of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 70
of this report.

AR Annual Report 2011
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance of an effective
system of internal control. The Company has established internal
audit department which is responsible for the independent review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and for
the periodic report of the auditing result to the Audit Committee
and the Board. The Company has also engaged external
professional agent to re-assess and evaluate the internal control
system of the Company.

The internal audit department of the Group has performed a
series of specific audit of internal control during the year, which
includes

1) risk management of sales

2) risk management of marketing expenses
3) audit at settlement of selected project
4) project efficiency

5) Meeting and Training expenses

6) Bidding process management

7)  Overall internal control

The Company has engaged Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. in
2011 and appointed its corporate risk management services
department to assess and evaluate the internal control of the
Company. The scope of re-assessment includes the control of the
Company, the control of financial reporting process and the
control of business flow which covers the aspects of operation,
financial report, risk management, compliance and so on. The re-
examine report of Deloitte Touche demonstrates that the overall
control condition of the Company is good and there is no material
control defect.

All of the above mentioned internal and external audit report and
the follow-up measures have been reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board. The Board is of opinion that the
internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 is effective and sufficient.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Objective

The management of the Company believes that effective and
proper investor relations play a vital role in enhancing the
corporate transparency as well as establishing market confidence.
As such, the Company has adopted a stringent internal control
system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely disclosure of
relevant information pursuant to requirements of relevant laws
and regulations in order to ensure all shareholders equal access to
information. To strive for effective communication and
transparency of the Company, the personnel in charge have
frequent contacts with the shareholders and investors through
various channels such as internet, telephone and email. During
the relevant year, the Company has introduced its development
strategy and recent business development to the investors in large
investment forums and site visits. On-site visits to the projects of
the Company have been arranged for the fund managers and
analysts from Hong Kong and overseas. The Company endeavours
to create opportunities for direct communication with investors
and to provide the latest development of the Company as well as
information of the PRC real property industry to the capital
market in time. As such, investors’ understanding of and
confidence in the Company can be enhanced.

Information Disclosure

The Group discloses information in compliance with the securities
regulations of the Stock Exchange, and publishes periodic reports
and announcements to the public in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations. The primary focus of the Group is to ensure
information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and
complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well as the
public to make rational and informed decisions.

AR Annual Report 2011
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TO THE MEMBERS OF LONGFOR PROPERTIES CO. LTD.
HE 18 3 7 A BR 2 F
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Longfor
Properties Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to
218, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2011, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal controls as the directors determine are
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal controls relevant to the Group’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors of the Company, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at December
31, 2011, and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 12, 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

B & T S S R
NOTES 2011 2010
AR%Fx ARWTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
A Revenue 5 24,092,893 15,093,122
B A Cost of sales (14,324,313) (9,995,934)
EA Gross profit 9,768,580 5,097,188
H by A Other income 6 168,934 91,531
H b i %5 Other gains 7 106,653 34,652
LR EYERN Fair value gain upon transfer
B R A to investment properties 916,115 777,023
REVENTHED Change in fair value of
investment properties 1,714,447 1,713,090
SH B I i 35 4 B X Selling and marketing expenses (642,736) (327,880)
7B X Administrative expenses (709,148) (433,488)
& A Finance costs 8 (202,141) (66,677)
e A I ] 25 Tl 8 3 A Share of results of
jointly controlled entities 323,526 183,035
I 3 T Ve ) Profit before taxation 11,444,230 7,068,474
Jify 75 B4 B 32 Income tax expense 9 (4,523,942) (2,051,101)
A JE i A1) K 2 T UG R Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 10 6,920,288 5,017,373
DA A 36 1 Profit attributable to:
PI/NITIE ZEDN Owners of the Company 6,327,560 4,130,155
2 R £ Non-controlling interests 592,728 887,218
6,920,288 5,017,373
M B A (AN R ¥ oc) Earnings per share, in RMB
A Basic 13 1.23 0.80
% Diluted 13 1.22 0.80

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At December 31, 2011

Wi 5 BT S S S
NOTES 2011 2010
AR¥EFT AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
e i Y NON-CURRENT ASSETS
gy Investment properties 14 13,198,200 8,041,000
VERN CYE L Property, plant and equipment 15 175,083 171,741
A 3OE Prepaid lease payments 16 6,721,986 7,882,002
T 8 4 I E A Interests in associates 17 1 1
ﬁ\ e ] 2 T R A Interests in jointly controlled entities 18 1,873,215 2,464,099
HEHERE Available-for-sale investments 19 8,600 8,600
?ﬁﬁ%kilﬂ@iﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁ ) e 4 Deposits paid for acquisition
of land use rights 5,837,699 4,274,216
THH Deferred taxation assets 31 669,202 436,035
28,483,986 23,277,694
i m & E CURRENT ASSETS
ety Inventories 20 594,065 415,939
B Y Properties under
development for sales 21 46,197,041 31,590,625
FrfE &Y Properties held for sales 22 3,019,488 3,004,066
JRE T R K B JEC At B ol 3k I Accounts and other receivables,
e 4 J TR A SRR deposits and prepayments 23 3,344,296 2,516,293
e i St Hf%ﬂﬁ%@%’( H Amounts due from
jointly controlled entities 24 13,084 7,362
] i ] B A Taxation recoverable 1,081,031 539,034
E M RAT A7 K Pledged bank deposits 25 406,125 499,419
SRATHE 0 R Bl & Bank balances and cash 25 14,120,925 9,863,132
68,776,055 48,435,870
i B A A5 CURRENT LIABILITIES
MEATIRIE ~ E ik & K Accounts payable, deposits
JE 5T 2 ] received and accrued charges 26 41,410,676 31,474,867
JRE A5} 4% [7] 2 ) 7 8 o TE Amounts due to
jointly controlled entities 27 803,170 1,319,490
e A5t i TH Taxation payable 4,788,074 2,035,182
SRAT B H A i 3K — Bank and other borrowings -
— 4F 1 3| due within one year 28 3,580,372 2,859,870
50,582,292 38,289,409

4% Annual Repore 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

= ) =N
At December 31, 2011

B 5k R4 S -2
NOTES 2011 2010
AR¥F A RMF o
RMB’000 RMB’000
B NET CURRENT ASSETS 18,193,763 10,146,461
AR E R B R TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 46,677,749 33,424,155
JBEAS B fik CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Jie A Share capital 30 453,415 453 410
{4 Reserves 21,487,126 15,526,846
AN B B AG HE £ Equity attributable to
owners of the Company 21,940,541 15,980,256
I £ i M 4 Non-controlling interests 2,154,129 1,385,564
HE 25 485 TOTAL EQUITY 24,094,670 17,365,820
T B £ R NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
SRAT B H At i 3K — Bank and other borrowings -

— 4% B ) due after one year 28 15,645,880 14,464,489
e S R Senior notes 29 4,740,473 —
% 4 Bl JH B AR Deferred taxation liabilities 31 2,196,726 1,593,846

22,583,079 16,058,335
46,677,749 33,424,155
FI0E2NSH LG A MBWMENR —F— " HF= The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 218 were
At HEER gAY KRR > WhaRT approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
ANEHRERESE March 12, 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:
EH EH
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE_R——HTH=1T—HLEE

For the year ended December 31, 2011

B & T S S R
NOTES 2011 2010
ARHTF ARWTF T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
BT OPERATING ACTIVITIES
W Bt i g ) Profit before taxation 11,444,230 7,068,474
UL o Adjustments for:
il R A Finance costs 202,141 66,677
ERN N & L EiE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 26,924 24,019
O BRI A P R AR Fair value gain upon transfer
to investment properties (916,115) (777,023)
BE WY AFE M Increase in fair value of
investment properties (1,714,447) (1,713,090)
A 5 S 7] 42 ] L M SE AR Share of results of
jointly controlled entities (323,526) (183,035)
i~ MRS AR Y U A Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 3) (434)
FLE e A Interest income (140,590) (60,092)
EE 54 i i Exchange gain (106,650) —
A EE EHHREMKREKRA  Dividend income
from available-for-sale
investments, unlisted (1,028) (1,098)
D A7 A i B8 £ A58 KB 52 Share-based payments expenses 165,781 94,767
BEESEHAIMAEHERE  Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital 8,636,717 4,519,165
fr & m Increase in inventories (178,126) (114,891)
HEERTYER Increase in properties under
F A & Y 2 4 development for sales and
properties held for sales (4,438,286) (8,688,150)
JAE A B K B At i FKOE Increase in accounts and
5 4 B TEAT 2K T 4 other receivables,
deposits and prepayments (827,703) (1,133,396)
JRE i I ] 425 il 8 AR OH (Increase) decrease in amounts due
() b from jointly controlled entities (5,722) 27,909
FEA IR - Bk & K Increase in accounts payable,
JRE 5t 2 14 deposits received
and accrued charges 9,074,721 15,017,216

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

Wi & BT S S —F-FF
NOTES 2011 2010
AR T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
BEELENEE Cash from operations 12,261,601 9,627,853
B A5 o By A5 B PRC income tax paid (2,499,870) (1,150,011)
HEWHB PGB & T8 NET CASH FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 9,761,731 8,477,842
BB INVESTING ACTIVITIES
T A AL B TE 8 Additions to prepaid lease payments (7,194,906) (8,311,383)
BB R Additions to investment properties (1,665,252) (458,709)
WAC B b R REE B S Deposits paid for
acquisition of land use rights (2,155,361) (3,447,858)
WA S Y J 2 Acquisition of a subsidiary 32 36,824 —
RS N-§:Rel <y Capital injection to
a jointly controlled entity — (4)
B e B[] 2 o B A A PR Dividend received from
a jointly controlled entity — 92,774
A B RAT 2K Placement of
pledged bank deposits (75,123) (102,514)
R B HE AT SR AT 17 5K Withdrawal of
pledged bank deposits 168,417 99,303
BEA W ~ RRE K s Purchase of property,
plant and equipment (31,591) (26,805)
B Y F S Interest received 140,590 60,092
WEYE - BB LT HEHIE  Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment 1,435 3,340
B AT i B R ik S Dividend received from
available-for-sale investments 1,028 1,098
B B WY e B4 NET CASH USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (10,773,939) (12,090,666)

4% Annual Repore 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

B & T S S R
NOTES 2011 2010
AR%Fx A RMF o
RMB’000 RMB’000
il ¥ 355 ) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
AL i Y B 2 ] B 7 DR Acquisition of additional
interest in subsidiaries 33 (177,407) (644,830)
fE A R AT B At B K Repayment of bank and other loans (7,353,990) (5,031,392)
EEAEDS Interest paid (1,412,287) (857,401)
ISR AT B H At B R New bank and other loans raised 9,371,509 12,588,447
BEAT 0B ST IR T 14 3R Proceeds from issue of senior notes 4,909,200 —
BT AR B Expenses on issue of senior notes (104,696) —
FrEHI T Capital injected from
non-controlling interests 102,786 —
St 7] 4 i 7 B A Advances from jointly
controlled entities 717,051 955,611
BEAT AR BT A5 3R0A Proceeds from issue of shares 381 12,823
EL ] JF 42 i HE 4 S AT Ao M S Dividend paid to
non-controlling interests (190,667) (24,425)
B AT S Dividend paid (515,505) (324,450)
Al 5 3% ) P 45 B 4 A NET CASH FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 5,346,375 6,674,383
Bl R B4 5 B0 3 I 3 NET INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,334,167 3,061,559
R B R B A Y CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR 9,863,132 6,801,573
HE % 428 ) F) 3 Effect of foreign
exchange rate changes (76,374) —
BRI BLE R B4 FHY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 14,120,925 9,863,132
B4 T B4 S W A5 B 2 A ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES
OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
SRAT 4 fix I B & Bank balances and cash 14,120,925 9,863,132

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated on December 21, 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands under the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The shares
of the Company are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”). The address of
the registered office of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The addresses of the principal place of
business of the Company in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) and Hong Kong are 7/F, Tower 2, FuSheng
Building, No. 4 Huixin East Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing,
and 15/F, 1 Duddell Street, Central, Hong Kong, respectively.

The ultimate controlling party of the Company is the Wu
Family Trust and the Cai Family Trust. The principal place of
business of the trustee of Wu Family Trust and Cai Family
Trust is Level 13, 1 Queen’s Road Central Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details
of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note

44.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the
Company and its major subsidiaries.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

2. BRAGH T B R T B B S

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
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Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”).

Amendments to IFRSs Improvements to IFRSs issued in

2010

IAS 24 (as revised in
2009)

Related Party Disclosures

Amendments to [AS 32 Classification of Rights Issues
Amendments to IFRIC 14  Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments

The application of the new and revised IFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended December 31, 2011

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 7

IFRS 9

IFRS 10

IFRS 11

IFRS 12

IFRS 13

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 12

TAS 19 (as revised in
2011)

TAS 27 (as revised in
2011)

TAS 28 (as revised in
2011)

Amendments to TAS 32

IFRIC 20

Disclosures - Transfers of Financial
Assets!

Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities?
Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures?
Financial Instruments?

Consolidated Financial Statements?
Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?
Fair Value Measurement?

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income’

Deferred Tax -
Underlying Assets*

Recovery of

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

4% Annual Repore 2011
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For the year ended December 31, 2011
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Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the

classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9

amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the

classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for

derecognition.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

IFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of TAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that
have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their

subsequent accounting periods. All other
fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In
addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income

generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

I % B 5 i At 4 A 565 0 % ) < L L R
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A8 i 4% (PR & M A G
s 5l b 52 B 51 B0y 2 F (6 5 B) (9
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25 o @A RE R BT
NPHEHHLEAGER S EHE
g AR AR BR g HE RIS 39
5% 9B E B A R 4R 1A T E SR
F <5 T 0 £ 19 2 °F (B 528 W 2 30 OB
YRR 251 -

The most significant effect of IFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the presentation of changes in the fair value of
a financial liability (designated as at fair value through
profit or loss) attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability. Specifically, under IFRS 9, for financial
liabilities that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously,
under TAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair

value of the financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

AN FEHE G > AR AR
85 it At e ) 565 5% T RE S AR 4R I 2
HEREMABRMHRNZREEA
HAE o AN A EHIETE AL
WH 2

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
IFRS 9 in the future may have significant impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities. The directors of the Company are in the
process of ascertaining the financial impact.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures

In May 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including TFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, TAS 27 (as revised in
2011) and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and SIC 12 Consolidation - Special
Purpose Entities. TFRS 10 includes a new definition of control
that contains three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee, and (¢) the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in IFRS 10 to deal with
complex scenarios.

IFRS 11 replaces TAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC 13
Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary Contributions by
Venturers. IFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of
which two or more parties have joint control should be
classified. Under IFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as
joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the rights and
obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast,
under TAS 31, there are three types of joint arrangements:
jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly
controlled operations.

In addition, joint ventures under IFRS 11 are required to be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting,
whereas jointly controlled entities under TAS 31 can be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting or
proportionate accounting.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

IFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In
general, the disclosure requirements in IFRS 12 are more
extensive than those in the current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is
permitted provided that all of these five standards are applied
early at the same time.

The directors of the Company anticipate that these five
standards will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning January
1, 2013. The directors of the Company are in the process of
ascertaining the financial impact on application of these five
standards.

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax - Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The amendments to IAS 12 provide an exception to the
general principles in TAS 12 that the measurement of deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities should reflect the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of an asset.
Specifically, under the amendments, investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model in accordance
with TAS 40 Investment Property are presumed to be recovered
through sale for the purposes of measuring deferred taxes,
unless the presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax - Recovery of
Underlying Assets (Continued)

The amendments to TAS 12 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2012. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of the amendments to
IAS 12 in future accounting periods may result in adjustments
to the amounts of deferred tax liabilities recognised in prior
years regarding the Group’s investment properties of which
the carrying amounts are presumed to be recovered through
sale.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised IFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the TASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (the “SEHK”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for the investment properties
that are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling

interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance (effective from January 1,
2010 onwards).

4% Annual Repore 2011
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3. FEFHBUE @ 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognise as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group. When
assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair
values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity, the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
directly to retained earnings as specified by applicable TFRSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under TAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity.
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For the year ended December 31, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values of the
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with TAS 12 Income Taxes
and IAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquire or share based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting
policy below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any noncontrolling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
noncontrolling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the noncontrolling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction

the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

basis. Other types of noncontrolling interests are measured at
their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another standard.
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For the year ended December 31, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when all of the following criteria are
satisfied:

e the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties are transferred to buyers;

e neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control
over the properties are retained;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Deposits and installments received from purchasers prior to
meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition are
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
under current liabilities.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Property management and related service fees are recognised
in the period in which the services are rendered.

Consultancy fee income is recognised when the services are
provided.

Promotion and advertising income is recognised when
advertisements are displayed on the advertising screens; or
ratably over the displayed period of the advertisement
contract.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’
established.

rights to receive payment have been

Investment properties

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Property under construction or development for future use as
an investment property is classified as investment property
under construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under construction will
be measured at cost until such time as fair value can be
determined or development is completed, in which time any
difference between the fair value and the carrying amount
will be recognised in profit or loss in that period.

Properties under development for sales and properties held
for sales are transferred to investment properties under
construction and completed investment properties,
respectively when it is evidenced by the commencement of an
operating lease to another party. Any difference between the
fair value of the property at the date of transfer and its
previous carrying amount shall be recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use or no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if

any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of
development for production, rental or for administrative
purposes, the release of the leasehold land is included as part
of the costs of the properties under development. Properties
under development not for sale are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Properties under development
which are intended to be held for own use are shown as non-
current assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Prepaid lease payments

The prepaid lease payments represent upfront payments for
land use rights and are initially recognised at cost and
released to profit or loss, or capitalised as part of the cost of
building as mentioned above, over the lease term on a
straight-line basis, except for those that are classified and
accounted for as properties under development intended to
be held for sale.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over these policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associates. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
an associate recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Interests in associates (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of TAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with TAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs to sell) with its carrying amount, any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with TAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’ consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Investments in jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly
controlled entities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in jointly controlled entities (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in jointly controlled entities are
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the jointly controlled entities. When the Group’s
share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds
its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
a jointly controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of TAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s investment in a jointly controlled entity. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with TAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with TAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in jointly controlled entities (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled
entity, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the jointly controlled entity are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the jointly controlled entity that are not related to
the Group.

Properties under development for sales

Properties under development which are intended to be sold
upon completion of development are classified as current
assets, and carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost include the related land cost, development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing costs
capitalised.

Properties under development for sales are transferred to
properties held for sales upon completion.

Properties held for sales

Properties held for sales are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost includes the costs of land,
development expenditure incurred and, where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value is determined
based on prevailing market conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables or available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees, points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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3. REFFEOR @) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
SEBTH %) Financial instruments (Continued)
Bk e JE Wk JE Loans and receivables
R K TR W K T A e G R T B R A AT R Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
M I 2 AT A A AR R AT R ﬁi & fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
E o RANLHERR A > B RGO (B active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and

receivables (including accounts and other receivables and
deposits, amounts due from jointly controlled entities,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below
its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as accounts
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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3. REGFBER @ 3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of accounts and other receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When an account and
other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group entities are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including accounts payable, amounts due
to jointly controlled entities, senior notes and bank and other
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of obligation under
the contract, as determined in accordance with TAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policy.

4% Annual Repore 2011




A B 0 A B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

EEREERRBSREHERMNC
o BN EREEREERAEZER
A JE By B ] e T At B MR B AR
SETTEMBHETEMEE - A ELH
Sl 0 R R B K ) B
T ol 4550 R R R E - AR
V£ A e D T 9 L E Ol R B LA o
i A% 4 [ £R B O R E T A M
48 K W 2y L B B 1] e > B R A R
HE o R O BT A5 O Y AT A
o e

TA 4 T A R T AR TR B > B R T
7 B LA M £ i A 4 T i A
e R SIS 2 AR Y R R 4 AR 2 T
W28 M R AR R -

B ELE R AR A BT R BR UK
e S 7 MR BRI S AR o T
Il 0 < B R T (B A
A R 230 > 1 IR 18 2 TR e R3 -

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

3. FEFHBUE @ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
ST R (%) Financial instruments (Continued)
i i Tl Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event that lease
incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense
on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasehold land and buildings (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is released over the lease term on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and

equipment.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e., the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in the period in which they arise.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred taxation is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
taxation liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred taxation assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred taxation liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
taxation assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at
each end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred taxation liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred taxation are
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred taxation are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax on deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Government grants that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme which is
defined contribution are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions. Payments made to state-managed retirement
benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined
contribution plans where the Group’s obligations under the
schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options/share awards to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options or shares granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period with a corresponding increase in equity.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options or shares that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to share option reserve or capital contribution reserve.
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Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Share options/share awards to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.

For any modification to the terms and conditions of share
options granted, the incremental fair value granted is
determined at the difference between the fair value of the
modified share options and that of the original share options,
both estimated as at the date of the modification.

If the modification occurs during the vesting period, the
incremental fair value granted is included in the measurement
of the amount recognised for services received over the
period from the modification date until the date when the
modified share options vest, in addition to the amount based
on the grant date fair value of the original share options,
which is recognised over the remainder of the original vesting
period.

If the modification occurs after vesting date, the incremental
fair value granted is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair values based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair values, the valuers have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates of
market condition. In relying on the valuation report, the
directors of the Company have exercised their judgement and
are satisfied that the assumptions used in the valuation are
reflective of the current market conditions. Changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair values of the
Group’s investment properties and the corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in profit or
loss.
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
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(Continued)

Income tax expense

As at December 31, 2011, deferred taxation assets of
RMB669,202,000 (2010: RMB436,035,000) mainly in relation to
tax losses, land appreciation tax provisions, allowance for
doubtful debts, government grants, unrealised profit on intra-
group purchases and others have been recognised in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position, after
offsetting certain deferred taxation liabilities as set out in note
31. The realisability of the deferred taxation assets mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. The
directors of the Company determine the deferred taxation
assets based on the enacted or substantially enacted tax rates
and the best knowledge of profit projections of the Group for
coming years during which the deferred taxation assets are
expected to be utilised. The directors of the Company will
review the assumptions and profit projections by the end of
the reporting period. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are more or less than expected, an additional
recognition or a reversal of deferred taxation assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a recognition or reversal takes place.

Land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the PRC.
However, the implementation and settlement of the tax varies
amongst different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC
and certain projects of the Group have not yet finalised their
land appreciation tax calculations and payments with any
local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant
judgment is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related income tax provisions. The Group
recognised the land appreciation tax based on management’s
best estimates. The final tax outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and the
related income tax provisions in the periods in which such
tax is finalised with local tax authorities.
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BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on
internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (i.e.,
the board of directors of the Company) in order to allocate
resources to the segment and to assess its performance.

The Group is organised into business units based on their
types of activities, based on which information is prepared
and reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance. The Group’s operating segments under IFRS 8
Operating Segments are identified as three main operations:

e Property development: this segment develops and sells
office premises, commercial and residential properties. All
the Group’s activities in this regard are carried out in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

e Property investment: this segment leases investment
properties, which are developed by the Group to generate
rental income and to gain from the appreciation in the
properties’ values in the long term. Currently the Group’s
investment property portfolio is mainly comprise of retail
properties and are all located entirely in the PRC.

e Property management and related services: this segment
mainly represented the income generated from property
management. Currently the Group’s activities in this
regard are carried out in PRC.

4% Annual Repore 2011




A B 0 A B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

5. HEER ) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) RS - BEKAH (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
T Al 2 A 3 B TE 4% 2 W 2 [ T For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
BEERME > ALAERHGIZUT allocating resources between segments, the Company’s
U BB BBy FR A A board of directors monitors the revenue, results, assets
E - HENMARK: and liabilities attributable to each operating segment on

the following bases:

i H LA P A 3 AR B A Segment assets include all tangible assets and current
AREEMRBERE > 4 TY assets directly attributable to each segment with the
% TS B A S e A ) B exception of certain property, plant and equipment,

C R A M - ATt interests in associates, interests in jointly controlled
Hj%f&%f s IR ERTE B - n] i [ entities, available-for-sale investments, deferred taxation
BLIE K H At w) A BRA  lri H assets, taxation recoverable and other corporate assets.
il 2 B G E A KB A E B A 4R Other corporate assets are not allocated to the operating
SRR [ I A A B A AR ) segment because they are head office assets or assets
B o T EAE R ANFEALEE > A which are managed centrally by the Group. The
i W B A W 2E DA A B B o investment properties included in segment assets are
G WA R B Y A O Kk stated at cost when assessed by the chief operating
JERTBE X~ EAT R - Sk d - decision maker. Segment liabilities include trade payables
Wy 2 G B TR DA D A B A R and accrued expenditure on construction, bills payable,
IE M JE AT BLIH - IR AE B IE £ 6T deposits received and receipt in advance from property

7 B A AR B BT R DL R sales, and other payables with exception of taxation
ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁfﬁ%ﬂ‘ o H1 A A F & payable, deferred taxation liabilities, bank and other
RRABMAGSI M EHEREN borrowings, senior notes and other corporate liabilities.
IR] 0 3lf 1 73 i &2 KR 8 O3 HD o Other corporate liabilities are not allocated to the

operating segment because they are head office liabilities
or liabilities which are managed on group basis.

WO B AR A A3 A 8 R WA K Revenue and expenses are allocated to the operating
FE A2 ) R R 32t 0 G 5 A A segments with reference to sales generated by those
73 b ) A 4 A 2 R A O[] segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.
iH S T A A e Segment profit does not include the Group’s share of

results arising from the activities of the Group’s jointly
controlled entities.

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit is adjusted
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, share of
results of jointly controlled entities, change in fair value
of investment properties and upon transfer to investment
properties, and finance costs (“Adjusted Earnings”), where
“interest” is regarded as including investment income and
“depreciation” is regarded as including impairment losses
on non-current assets. To arrive at Adjusted Earnings the
Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
directors’ and auditor’s remuneration and other head
office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profits, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
sales) and additions to non-current segment assets used
by the segments in their operations. Inter-segment sales
are priced with reference to prices charged to external
parties for similar service.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

5. ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ (%) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) HiEE BERARE @) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
AR A S T A8 58 0 B B RS 7R Information regarding the Group’s operating segments is
T e set out below.

BEZZ—H+ZAZH-HEER
Year ended December 31, 2011
WEEHR
A
Property
management
h% B WERE and
Property  Property related At
development investment services Total
AEHTE  AR¥FT ARETZ ARETZ
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

KEMNEEFHIA  Revenue from external customers 23,376,012 402,167 314,714 24,092,893
43 [ e A Inter-segment revenue = = 57,020 57,020
ar A Segment revenue 23,376,012 402,167 371,734 24,149,913
1 B ¥ 1 Segment profit

(48 3 B 21 ) (Adjusted Earnings) 8,736,177 309,601 80,066 9,125,844
oy T Segment assets 52,787,549 5,597,628 17,524 58,402,701
P = Segment liabilities 38,141,552 89,621 5,432 38,236,605

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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BE-F——H#+_A=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

BEZZ-ZETZA=T—HILEE
Year ended December 31, 2010

WEEER

7 B

Property

management

ER95 WERG and
Property  Property related &t
development  investment services Total
ARETFE ARETT ARETT AREFE
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB’000
A HAMNEEF Mt Revenue from external customers 14,596,701 287,281 209,140 15,093,122
I3 T T e A Inter-segment revenue — — 36,078 36,678
4y TR A Segment revenue 14,596,701 287,281 245818 15,129,800
o3 0 i ) (K83 % L F) Segment profit (Adjusted Earnings) 4498483 220,346 50,479 4,769,308
oG Segment assets 37,276,772 3,073,494 12,212 40,362,478
o AR Segment liabilities 28,826,325 23,534 66,030 28,915,889

4% Annual Repore 2011
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

5. HIER 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) HiEE BERARE @) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
JC At 43 5 % B Other segment information
WEERR
A R
Property
management
WERR VES3: and
Property  Property related At
development investment services Total
ARETL  AREFLE AREFZ AR¥FL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
A T H%“‘ Amounts included in the
Prst A Z 3 - measure of segment assets:
—F——A 2011
NEERDEE Additions to non-current
(Bt 3%) assets (Note) 26,479 1,667,442 2,922 1,696,843
R R4 2010
W E I Additions to non-current
(P 5E) assets (Note) 7,149 477,064 1,301 485,514

MRk : SR BB S R
lFﬁF’& B

Bk 2 A B 43 3 i R 43 6 R
Oh > EEEE PR NER M H B A
BB SR A R > SR AR IE AL A R
BN ) HE 25 B OME G A I 4R
A~ S [R] PE EE A R 5 L% HE A
MRS REWERMBERE
WA TS - HABA ~
MU Rs ~ R R R G R A - A
B DL A AT 43 TiE 5 4 R 4 0 0 9 (E
JE 48 (In4)

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

Note: Amounts comprise additions to investment properties and

property, plant and equipment.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profits, the chief operating decision maker is
provided with information concerning the Group’s
consolidated amount of interests in associates and related
share of results (if any), interest in jointly controlled
entities and related share of results, changes in fair value
of investment properties and upon transfer to investment
properties, other income, other gains, finance costs from
borrowings, depreciation and impairment losses (if any)
which are not allocated to operating segments.
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BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of segment revenues, profit or loss,

5 1 R assets and liabilities
R e S a2
2011 2010
AR¥Fx AR #F T
RMB’000 RMB 000
e A Revenue
I A Segment revenue 24,149,913 15,129,800
o SN =R Elimination of inter-segment revenue (57,020) (36,678)
AR Consolidated revenue 24,092,893 15,093,122
it A1) Profit
1 # i Segment profit 9,125,844 4,769,308
Hoh e A Other income 168,934 91,531
oAt 45 Other gains 106,653 34,652
LSy Era </ Fair value gain upon transfer to
08B investment properties 916,115 777,023
REWMEN A T(HEEH  Change in fair value of
investment properties 1,714,447 1,713,090
& AR Finance costs (202,141) (66,677)
JE 4G L[] P T 248 Share of results of jointly controlled entities 323,526 183,035
g Depreciation (26,924) (24,019)
& 41 it B 32 Unallocated expenses (682,224) (409,469)
&5 BR B A i A Consolidated profit before taxation 11,444,230 7,068,474
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

5. rER )
(b) WA ~ His - BERHA

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of segment revenues, profit or loss,

K @ assets and liabilities (Continued)
R R4
2011 2010
AR¥Fx A R #Fo
RMB’000 RMB 000
% Assets
oy T B Segment assets 58,402,701 40,362,478
BEWEN A FE Cumulative change in fair value of
25 investment properties 7,622,087 4,991,525
AT A B S Prepaid lease payments 6,721,986 7,882,002
i = /N O Interests in associates 1 1
RALFEER TR S Interests in jointly controlled entities 1,873,215 2,464,099
EIRETEXi'g Available-for-sales investments 8,600 8,600
Wi %t b (R E Deposit paid for acquisition of
Jit S AS) 1 4 4 land use rights 5,837,699 4274216
R A o T Deferred taxation assets 669,202 436,035
T A ] B 2 Taxation recoverable 1,081,031 539,034
4y it 4850 o HAh ¥ 7 Unallocated head office and other assets 15,043,519 10,755,574
GEEEMAE Consolidated total assets 97,260,041 71,713,564
AR Liabilities
o B E Segment liabilities 38,236,605 28,915,889
e A5 i 7H Taxation payable 4,788,074 2,035,182
IR JE B IH £ iR Deferred taxation liabilities 2,196,726 1,593,846
SRAT B FoAth i 3K Bank and other borrowings 19,226,252 17,324,359
By Senior notes 4,740,473 —
R BT Lk b & f&  Unallocated head office and other liabilities 3,977,241 3,878,468
SAAERHE Consolidated total liabilities 73,165,371 54,347,744

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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BE-F——H#+_A=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Revenue from major product and services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from

its properties sold, property invested and services

provided:
S
Year ended
ZR i S 2.2
+=A +=A
=t+—H =t—H
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
AREFL — ARETE
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEWE Sales of properties 23,376,012 14,596,701
HEY % Leasing of properties 402,167 287,281
1 ity 2 PR S Provision of property
management services 314,714 209,140
24,092,893 15,093,122
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

5. rER ) 5.
(d) Hh 5 & R
FEBII e RN ER
2 15 T 97 2 oo 03k 71 1 47 B A

FEAAREFRANER -
LB & E G R A B 7 A

Vil

HE Chongging

JICHB Chengdu

B[ Beijing

(B Al ok TiT Other cities in the PRC

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(d) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
Group’s revenue from external customers by cities in the
PRC, based on the location at which the properties are
sold, properties are invested and services are provided.
Information about its non-current assets is analysed by
geographical location of assets.

KE S
%P B PR &
Revenues from Non-current
external customers assets
B ZE-%FE ZF-—F ZZ-%f
2011 2010 2011 2010

ARRTE  ARETT AREFE ARETZ
RMB000 ~ RMBOO0 ~ RMB000  RMB'000

4951492 4807460 12,406,683 9,947,384
3,926,284 4187174 3,077,689 15324331
10,827,469 4835818 7,723,633 5,687,083
4387648 1262670 4,598,179 5,874,261

24,092,893 15,093,122 27,806,184 22,833,059

WRE o JR VB E NG LA R

HE 4 BB — AN LK AT A8 5 I U
NEAREE AR 10%E L E o

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred

taxation assets.

No revenue from transaction with single external
customer is amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s

revenue.
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6. OTHER INCOME

BE-F——H#+_A=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

R4 R

2011 2010

AR #F AR BT T

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

FE YA Interest income 140,590 60,078

B A (B EE) Consultancy fee income (Note) 1,585 15,330
A R BT RE Dividend income from unlisted

1 1 Bl A available-for-sale investments 1,028 1,120

B R Government subsidies 658 8,611

HE 85 S B 5 A Promotion and advertising income 19,677 1,445

METE A Sundry income 5,396 4,947

o Total 168,934 91,531

Bk 4R A% S I I e S 5 = U 4R fi
A1 b e B BB L - A 0B Kk

7l s o

It fib W 4

Note: It represents the design, decoration and consulting services related to

real estate development provided by the Group to independent third

parties in the PRC.

7. OTHER GAINS

SR R R
2011 2010
AR T ARWT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
HEWE - BKE K Gain on disposal of property, plant
A 1 e AR and equipment 3 434
e 56k 4 13 A (B aE) Net exchange gain (Note) 106,650 34,218
106,653 34,652

WERE 4 R R 20 T i T B 3% 0 1 SR AT A

K M e S E AR R S

Note: It represents exchange difference arising from bank borrowings and

senior notes, original currencies of which are Hong Kong Dollar and

United States Dollar respectively.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

8. MY A 8. FINANCE COSTS
S —E-%F
2011 2010
AR¥T I ARWT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
JA T BB R A9 8R4 & Interest on bank and other borrowings
A A 3 A S
AN HAR Wholly repayable within five years (1,190,505) (753,617)
AR N 2 B R Not wholly repayable within five years (7,808) (105,583)
BB R B B Interest expense on senior notes (342,973) —
o BRI Less: Amount capitalised to properties
G AL 2% under development 1,339,145 792,523
(202,141) (66,677)
BAAL A5 B R I8 B A F Borrowing costs capitalised arose on the general borrowing
— AR REBE - —F+ pool of the Group and were calculated by applying a
A=t HILFEE R F6.2% (— capitalisation rate of 6.2% (2010: 5.29%) per annum for the
T —FAE 1 5.209%) 1) G AL R 5 year ended December 31, 2011, to expenditure on the
BostARTHEREM qualifying assets.

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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BE-F——H#+_A=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

R4 —E R
2011 2010
AR T ARWT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
B A A 0 Current tax

FE AR (TS 8])  PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) (2,066,945) (1,088,527)
B T E B (T L EBL])  PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) (2,087,284) (999,591)
(4,154,229) (2,088,118)

AR A Overprovision in prior year:
i 3 B 5 i+ EIT* — 263,408
- 388 R o LAT** — 60,315
— 323,723

AR A (B 531 Deferred taxation (note 31)
AR Current year*** (369,713) (447,242)
A R A e Overprovision in prior year*** — 160,536
(369,713) (286,706)
(4,523,942) (2,051,101)

* WECE-FEEF AT HIEEE S
F OV B B AT 2 A BT AR B 159% 15 2
A 2E BT AR BE SR AL S O - BRAE AR LR 4R
33% K 25%> 3 F7 19 B 3 1 7 A8 0 il 5 R
] 2 4 o) A 2E T A L

#  BEZE-FEFZAZ+— B ILFERTE
RO T TR H I BT VR (AR S AR A g
Frfft M EAR - HEAEE T b ERE
HUA -

e JRIERIIA A AR AR BT B A B A B
A BEFJE8 2 ) BT E A A it O ) PR R 3 DR
20915 t 19 4B B

sk TR ARARIRAC O3 7)1 A I ) I 2 ) F B B
Wt 2 BUMRUR S 2 2 A B 4 BE BR B AR ik A
#120% (829 3 4 1 (8 Wi 45 2508 1009 R
SN o BLAE PR O AT R A A A R AE
TH B AT NI A A AR T B R R
fh o

ok

Sk k

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the assessment and
computation of EIT payable in respect of certain completed projects
were finalised at a preferential EIT rate of 15%. The preferential EIT rate
was different from the management’s estimation on EIT rate of 33% and

25% in prior years, resulting in a reversal of EIT.

The actual appreciation value of certain property projects had been
finalised in the year ended December 31, 2010 which differed from the
management’s estimated appreciation value made in prior years,

resulting in an overprovision of LAT in respect of prior years.

Deferred taxation liabilities include provision for withholding tax which
has been provided for at 20% of the undistributed profits arising from all
subsidiaries situated in the PRC and held by Hong Kong companies

during the current year.

The actual dividend payout ratio in prior years, based on the dividend
policy set out for the Company’s subsidiaries situated in the PRC, was
around 20% of the respective year’s profit after tax (excluding net fair
value gains or losses on investment properties). This differs from the
management’s previous estimates when it provided for deferred taxation

liabilities in previous years, resulting in an overprovision of withholding

4% Annual Repore 2011

tax in respect of prior years.
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

9. iR X @) 9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

HA AL RABRASE BN ER A&
W o WOl AR A A B

L b B A 3 B A5 B ([ ST 15 Bl
B RAEREBIEEREN - B
FNAE—H —H > B b A 7 B
Z ¥ 1525% °

ARFRHREEEETHENFAGE
fe A T B A R e o R R M
AR A5 AF BB P B AR SE BT AR R

R AR B v A 3 T 15 R B SRR A1
AN B AT T [ A a7 LG 2 % Bt
B ZE 5 10 r I B JB A D A A A S T
BBBLE o %% A F 2 BB 5
A A o A A AT 70% o B B 5
HoZRE FEE R TEH15%0 5
HB RN CENER AR TEER
TR AL e o A 4 B I A A 5 A B A
i -

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group does not have income which arises in, or is derived
from, Hong Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from January 1, 2008 onwards.

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC
are eligible for certain tax holidays and concessions and were
exempted from PRC EIT for both years.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and
regulations, preferential corporate income tax rates have been
granted to certain of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries which
were established in western regions and engaged in the
encouraged business. These companies are subject to a
preferential rate of 15% from 2002 to 2010,
approval of the tax authority, if the annual income derived

subject to

from the encouraged business is more than 70% of the annual
total income. No approval has been obtained in respect of the
current year.
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BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

9. B f#BE B3¢ )

AR A L B SR A 4 T G i 3R 10 BR B A

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

it M B SRR AR before taxation per consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as follows:
B —EF—FF
2011 2010
AR T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
I 88 I ¥ ) Profit before taxation 11,444,230 7,068,474
25%H v B £ 2 iy 15 Bl PRC EIT at 25% (2,861,057) (1,767,119)
TR A 3 ] 2 Tl T A 3 AR A Tax effect of share of results of jointly
BB 5 2 controlled entities 80,881 45,759
FBLIET S AR PRI A Tax effect of expenses not deductible
B 5 2 (k) for tax purposes (Note a) (172,070) (101,880)
WP S HEABLA R Tax effect of income not taxable
BB B for tax purposes 34,378 9,677
-+ b 388 (B LAT (2,087,284) (999,591)
b 28 B 1 B Tax effect of LAT 521,821 249,898
TEAF AR Overprovision in prior years — 323,723
AMERBEERMBHELE  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (483) (857)
TR EA R ER BN  Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
BB B not previously recognised — 32
T o I B Ja 2 A A Y Effect of tax exemption and concessionary
BIE o B B R and preferential rates granted
Y 5 28 to certain PRC subsidiaries 5,889 53,942
1543 IR £ B e A Y 7 A0 B Withholding tax on retained profits
(P 5Eb) to be distributed (Note b) (46,017) 135,315
RS Tax charge for the year (4,523,942) (2,051,101)
M 5E - Notes:
a. ZESHEEEHFALER AT AN X a. The amount mainly comprises of the tax effect of non-deductible

et T WEFJE 24 ) A S A R B ok B A T
1 B R BB B

corporate expenses of the Group and the expenses of certain
subsidiaries in excess of the allowable deduction limits in accordance
with the relevant tax regulations.

b. AR R A AT B R S b.
o B S OB AN By 1L A T B A %2 PR e B L
[2008]112%% » 5%k B B HLBL 2 8 Mk H
A P B A A IR A e 25 9% 9 A T
RA TR o 5% BUB S A T v B BB 2w A
E_F—HR-_F-FFE+_A=+—H
LR B i 7 A R 23 9 i ) T 3485 ) 540 P
i o profits arisen during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 of

4% Annual Repore 2011

According to the “Arrangement between the Mainland of China and the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Double
Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on
Income” and Guoshuifa [2008]112, where the Hong Kong resident
company directly owns at least 25% of the capital of the Mainland
company, 5% dividend withholding tax rate is applicable. The amount
represents the withholding income tax provided on the undistributed

certain PRC subsidiaries.
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

10. 4 J¥ &t F)

RATER (FEA) T 9% HE )
A BE i A

1% S P <

at A 84 A 1 36
17 B A

W3 - RS Rl I

HEY I~ B KB
e i
A8 B 1 B AR A 4 3K

B LA

HERGM (LR
T FBe A7 5 B B8 1 45F 300
(B EE11)

HAb B Tl A
BTHA CFEFE

UNGEN N

IR R AR A 3R

DAHE 2 45 5 o 1 o 2 Bl (1)

fif 3K

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging (crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of property inventories included
in cost of sales

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Minimum lease payment of operating
lease rentals

Staff costs
Directors’ emoluments
(including equity- settled
share-based payments) (note 11)
Other staff costs
Staff costs excluding retirement
benefit costs
Retirement benefit contributions
Equity-settled share-based
payments

g

2011
AR T
RMB’000

3,300
13,952,604
26,924

3

16,029

98,030

689,899
71,535

118,050

“E-Fk
2010
ARHET
RMB’000

3,000

9,739,314

24,019

(434)

9,674

62,994

401,038
42,420

61,151

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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10. 48 B % A o) 10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued)
e S “E-FE
2011 2010
AR¥ T ARWT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AT A Total staff costs 977,514 627,603
B BERAYEN Less: Amount capitalised to properties
AL & under development (362,856) (240,815)
614,658 386,788
BE W AR S Minimum lease income from
investment properties 308,828 219,710
ARSI A Contingent rental income 93,339 67,571
W EAERLE A Less: direct expenses that generated
H rental income (80,040) (61,281)
322,127 226,000
JAE A 3 ] 2 1 7 #8  0H Share of tax of jointly controlled entities
(T AR £ 38 7] £ (included in share of results of jointly
HHEES) controlled entities) 227,594 98,528

4% Annual Repore 2011




A BB e Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZFZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

113 5 K 0 B % 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
VLR 55 4551
YN E Rty
e BIREN  AERM
fifl fak fi
Basic Retirement Equity-
#H4E  salaries benefit settled
Directors’ and other B contri- share-based At
fees  benefits Bonus bution  payments Total
ARG AREFT AREFLZ ARBTFZ AREFT ARKFX
RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
(E)
(Note)
e Z2——F Year ended December 31,
TIAST-HIEEE 2011
EHES Name of director
InES: Executive Director:
REELL Madam Wu Yajun — 3,098 5,000 68 — 8,766
7 R Wt Mr. Fang Shengtao — 2,617 3,600 47 2,539 8,803
(& kit Mr. Chen Kai = 1,051 — 20 3,782 4,853
ZhM A Mr. Qin Lihong = 2,617 3,600 47 11,998 18,262
B e S 2k Mr. Shao Mingxiao — 3,351 5,000 48 10,882 19,281
A R S A Mr. Zhou Dekang — 2,617 3,600 49 5,284 11,550
BYELLE Mr. Feng Jinyi — 2,477 3,600 51 5,019 11,147
BERLA Mr. Wei Huaning = 2,420 3,600 48 7,344 13,412
BukafmEs Independent
non-executive director:
Frederick Peter Churchouse/tE M. Frederick Peter
Churchouse 300 — — — 234 534
Wz R Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek 300 = = — 287 587
B Dr. Xiang Bing 300 - - — 287 587
Bt Dr. Zeng Ming 173 - - = 75 248
1073 20848 28,000 378 47731 98,030

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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BE-F——H#+_A=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

EF—HR_F-FHEF_A=F
— 4 BE i A L E

1.5 KRB HM 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
DR LR
A% 4 Sty
Sty BN
il RIEER fif 3k
Basic i Equity-
Eips salaries Retirement settled
Directors'  and other Tha benefit share-based 3t
fees benefits Bonus contribution  payments Total
ARBFLE ARBFL AREFE ARBFL ARBFL ARFETI
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(W3E)
(Note)
HEZZ %% Year ended December 31,
FZAZ—HIEFE 2010
EHE4 Name of director
UirES Executive Director:
REEL L Madam Wu Yajun — 3,172 4,000 35 — 7,207
S =P Mr. Lin Chu Chang — 1,650 2,425 66 3318 7,459
[ R W8k Mr. Fang Shengtao — 2,055 2,900 61 4,986 10,002
BRI Mr. Chen Kai — 2,05 4,000 03 14,893 21,011
ZAMEE Mr. Qin Lihong — 2,055 4,000 61 9,237 15,353
BufamEs Independent
non-executive director:
Frederick Peter Churchouse /5 Mr. Frederick Peter
Churchouse 200 — — — 304 654
EEEE Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek 260 — = = 394 054
ERMAL Dr. Xiang Bing 260 - — — 394 054
780 10987 17325 86 BE6 62,99
WAL« B Y Y SF AR B ) 7 AT 4% A 5 T AR Note: The bonus relates to performance related incentive payment which is

determined as a percentage of the profit of the Group for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

4% Annual Repore 2011




o B s 2 B
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

1L.EFEERHMN @ 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
18 5 % Employee’s emoluments

heREFMA LR RE 2 —4F
ToAZFT—ALEFEENEY (CFE—F
SR EF o EE T A
=+ —HIEFE R T W4 & E A

The five highest paid individuals included five (2010: three)
directors for the year ended December 31, 2011. The
emoluments of the remaining two highest paid individuals for
the year ended December 31, 2010 are as follows:

THEMNT

R R R
2011 2010
AR ¥F A R¥F oo
RMB’000 RMB 000

& B Employees
— FEARF G S E R — basic salaries and allowances — 4,108
—fE4r — bonus — 7,600
— R AR A R — retirement benefit contributions — 91
— DAKE £ 45 3 Sy M ZEBE RO 3K — equity-settled share-based payments — 10,187
— 21,986

BE-ZF R -_F-FHETHA=
T B IR AR S A A
E L TSRS A NS XOE AL
Sl A A B A A S T K G 5 R AR
MK - BME_F——FRZF—F
FHAZ+—HILFE > ANFAESR

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors of the
Company has waived any emoluments during the years ended

B 4 50 BE AT ] B M - December 31, 2011 and 2010.

WEHH WA T FoHE

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

AN
Number of Individuals
R R R
2011 2010
12,500,001 7T £ 13,000,000% 5¢ ~ HK$12,500,001 to HK$13,000,000 — 1
13,000,001 7o % 13,500,000# 76~ HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000 — 1

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

12. ) B 12. DIVIDEND
e S “E T
2011 2010
AR¥ T ARWBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
A TN E R 43 R Y A R Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year:
TR -RERMN IR BIBE Final dividend paid in respect
BRARKOLL (ZE-FF : of 2010 of RMB0.1 (2010: in respect
ZERR AR H0.06370) of 2009 of RMB0.063) per share 515,505 324,450
AQFERERRBEBRE T ——F+ A final dividend of RMB902,133,750, representing RMBO0.175
“HAET-HIEEENARPRE AR per share, in respect of the year ended December 31, 2011
902,133,7507C > 5 Bt A R #0.17570 (= (2010: final dividend of RMB515,505,000, representing RMBO.1
FToFE CBHEZFT-FEL A= per share, in respect of the year ended December 31, 2010)
—HEFEFERMAPBRES AR has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is
515,505,0007C - & B A R ¥0.170) - M subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
JR5 TR TR IS B i I R A R g U o Annual General Meeting.
13. 55 B 4 ) 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
AN VAN A 5 B A I 8 2 R The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
i BT AR DL B attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:
“E 4 “E T
2011 2010
AR¥ T ARWBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
IR w5 AR A K Earnings attributable to the owners
2R A A D of the Company for the purposes
A A RE A 2R of calculation of basic and diluted
earnings per share 6,327,560 4,130,155

4% Annual Repore 2011
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

13. 8B BA) )

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

e S “E-FE
2011 2010
THK T &
‘000 ‘000
JBetr e H Number of shares
A st B i A L A Y Weighted average number of ordinary
50 J 0 HEE - 2 B shares for the purpose of calculation
of basic earnings per share 5,155,049 5,152,671
i T2 HE AR B 2 % 7 Y Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
TETE W in respect of — share options 22,693 21,667
RS st 55 M 8 2 A Weighted average number of ordinary
5 Ji 0 HE - 2 B shares for the purpose of calculation
of diluted earnings per share 5,177,742 5,174,338

HWE-F—-—HF+_H=+—HILH
B BN RHRETEESN - —F
AT 85 B ] A 2 W) B 4 B9 P38 T 0 B
O A O R I ST AR YR —F
ZNETZHAZ = HFREE KA B
BELERES R —F——F - T
THE-F——F A ANBEEMN
1 J HE

BE_ZF-ZFH+_A=Z=+—-HL#F
B mRERBGHEERR - —FF
ARAT 03 10 A 2 ) FBE A B S T A
SR M 4 2 R SN AR
FNEFT AT =B RANERLH
R 15 o FBORE T 0 5% L 0 B P

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the share options
granted on January 17, 2011 and September 28, 2011 under
the Post-IPO share option scheme adopted on December 23,
2009 are not included in the calculation of diluted earnings
per share as the adjusted exercise price was greater than the
average market price of the Company’s shares during the
outstanding period in 2011.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the share options
granted in 2009 under the Post-IPO share option scheme
adopted on December 23, 2009 are not included in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share as the adjusted
exercise price was greater than the average market price of
the Company’s share during the outstanding period in 2010.
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BE-F——H#+_A=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

TR E%

CEMBEEDNE  Investment

Completed properties
investment under it
properties  construction Total

ARBEFE  ARKEFT  ARKTFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

FAIR VALUE
At January 1, 2010 4,698,300 — 4,698,300
Additions 20,331 438,378 458,709
Transfer from prepaid lease payments — 68,000 68,000
Transfer from properties under

development for sale (Note) 98,500 192,388 290,888
Transfer from properties held

for sales (Note) 34,990 — 34,990
Transfer 688,121 (688,121) —

Fair value gain upon transfer

of properties under development

for sales to investment properties 284,200 443 213 727,413
Fair value gain upon transfer

of properties held for sales

to investment properties 1,110 = 1,110
Fair value gain upon transfer

of prepaid lease payments

to investment properties = 48,500 48,500
Net increase in fair value recognised

in profit or loss 1,500,748 212,342 1,713,090

4% Annual Repore 2011
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

14 BeEWE @) 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

TERBRE Y%
CERBENE  Investment
Completed  properties

investment under st
properties construction Total
AR¥T T ARBT I AR¥T T
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
RZZ—FE+ZA=+—H At December 31, 2010 7,326,300 714,700 8,041,000
E Additions 43,858 1,621,394 1,665,252
A A B SOR Transfer from prepaid lease payments — 661,203 661,203
A AR B (i EE) Transfer from properties held
for sales (Note) 200,183 — 200,183
o 3¢ Transfer 175,111 (175,111) —
FELEY EERER Fair value gain upon transfer
BEWE L A TFEKE of properties held for sales
to investment properties 276,417 — 276,417
BSOS Fair value gain upon transfer
BEWEL A FEE of prepaid lease payments
to investment properties — 639,098 039,098
e 45 45 W R A (B Net increase in fair value recognised
38 0 A in profit or loss 276,331 1,438,116 1,714,447
A_R——FF+ZA=+—H At December 31, 2011 8,298,200 4,900,000 13,198,200
FEgE : BREANRALMEEMECHE > 5 Note: The transfers from properties under development for sales and
AYERRC RS WABERPHFEY properties held for sales to investment properties were made since
ERFHE L E ML R EYE - there was a change in use as evidenced by the commencement of

operating leases to outside parties.

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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A6 L R 1 DA 6 SR 4
TH

B ¥ 3 — i B ML A BT AR A & A
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BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The investment properties are all situated in the PRC under
medium-term lease.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at dates
of transfer and December 31, 2011 and 2010 have been
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on those
dates by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited, a
firm of independent qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group, who have appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations.

The fair values of the investment properties were determined
by the valuers on the following basis:

Completed properties - arrived at by capitalising the net rental
income derived from the existing tenancies with due
allowance for reversionary incoming potential of the
respective properties.

Properties under construction - valued on the basis that they
will be developed and completed in accordance with the
latest development proposals and taken into account the
constructions costs that will be expended to complete the
development as well as developer’s profit margin to reflect
the quality of the completed development.

All of the Group’s property interests in leasehold land and
buildings to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

4% Annual Repore 2011




A B 0 A B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

15. % ~ Wi B Bt i 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
BE  REREE
H# Equipment
#F Motor and st
Buildings vehicles  furniture Total

ARWFL  ARWFL  AREFLE  ARKTFE
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000

A COST
RZF—FH—H—H At January 1, 2010 165,463 35,473 30,909 231,845
nE Additions 3,512 5,770 17,523 26,805
firk: Disposals (1,844) (4,301) (1,311) (7,456)
RZZ-FEFZA=1—H At December 31, 2010 167,131 36,942 47,121 251,194
RE Additions 2,594 9,083 19,914 31,591
W A 2 B W Acquired upon acquisition of a subsidiary — 37 70 107
ik Disposals (925) (320) (1,837) (3,082)

“E——%+ZA=+—H At December 31, 2011 168,800 45,742 65,208 279,810
2t ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
REZF—FF—H—H At January 1, 2010 27,629 17,309 15,046 59,984
EEM Charge for the year 8,178 6,040 9,801 24,019
1 I AC 4 Eliminated on disposals (1,035) (2,350) (1,159) (4,550)
RZZF—FF+ZH=+—H At December 31, 2010 34,772 20,993 23,088 79,453
EEM Charge for the year 8315 5,730 12,879 26,924
1 B S Eliminated on disposals (18) (201) (1,431) (1,650)
RZZ——%+ZH=+—H At December 31, 2011 43,069 26,522 35,136 104,727
ﬁ&ﬁfa‘ CARRYING VALUES

“E——%4+ZH=+—H At December 31, 2011 125,731 19,220 30,132 175,083
REZZE-FEFZA=1—H At December 31, 2010 132,359 15,949 23,433 171,741

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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15.

16.

BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated using the straight-line method after taking into
account of their estimated residual values at the following
rates per annum:

Buildings Over the estimated useful lives
of 20 years or the term of the
leases, if shorter

20%

33%

Motor vehicles
Equipment and furniture

The buildings are all situated on land in the PRC held under
medium-term leases.

The Group had not pledged any property, plant and
equipment at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The carrying amount of prepaid lease payments represents

TR - AT land use rights held in the PRC and is analysed as follows:
R “EF-FE
2011 2010
AR¥ T ARWBT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
w1 Medium term 3,073,158 934,856
= Long term 3,648,828 6,947,146
B Non-current 6,721,986 7,882,002

7 4 ]9 A5 L IR A A B e B A
- 404 2 704 71 AF 40 36 5% J2 1Y) £
AR LA RIE - =B ——4F =
A=4—H o AL A B SR
MR T A N R ¥ 1,373,125,0000C (— %
—Z4F ¢ N #4,798,585,00070) 1) 7 £+
LB+ b R o

The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent payments for
acquisition of the land use rights in the PRC with lease terms
ranging from 40 to 70 years for the purpose of property
development. The Group had not yet obtained the certificates
of land use rights of prepaid leases with a carrying value of
RMB1,373,125,000 (2010: RMB4,798,585,000) from the relevant
authorities at December 31, 2011.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

17,78 16 2 2 =) iy B 2 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
R4 R
2011 2010
AR ¥F ARMTF
RMB’000 RMB 000
&AL Cost of investments, unlisted 415 415
W BHERR A R Less: Impairment loss recognised (414) (414)
1 1
R oF——FE+H=1+—H2ZHELN Details of the associates as at December 31, 2011 are set out
) 1 7 O B AR 44 o in note 44.
18. 774 3t I P 0l L 18 0 B 42 18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
R4 ZER A
2011 2010
AR ¥F A RMT G
RMB’000 RMB 000
I bR E A Cost of investments, unlisted 1,311,275 2,225,685
JRE Al I 4% ok A Share of post-acquisition profits,
1Bk B B B net of dividend received 561,940 238,414
1,873,215 2,464,099
AR A= B IR Details of the jointly controlled entities as at December 31,
B O R A M 44 o 2011 are set out in note 44.

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

18. 77 3% v ¢ o 2 8 09 B 2 40 18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)
DARE £ 7 5 500 B 1 A 4 B JRE A1 3 ) The summarised financial information in respect of the
it R A F A S R RS T Group’s jointly controlled entities attributable to the Group’s

interest therein which are accounted for using the equity
accounting method is set out below:

I S —EF-FF

2011 2010

AR T ARWBTF T

RMB’000 RMB 000

I BB E Non-current assets 1,013,349 835,818
TE) Current assets 2,321,654 3,221,357
B & AT Current liabilities (672,830) (881,199)
I B A Non-current liabilities (788,958) (711,877)
A Income 1,085,257 1,529,696
B X Expenses (761,731) (1,346,661)

19. W) {3 i £ B¢ W 19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

I —EF-FH

2011 2010

AR T ANRHT T

RMB’000 RMB 000

I bR R S o A Unlisted equity securities, at cost 8,600 8,600
bt IR b i RE AR A AR A AE b B A The above unlisted equity investments represent the
SRR EEMBETME LR E S investments in unlisted equity securities issued by private
H A 8% 55 B0 A B T (B R o entities established in the PRC. They are measured at cost less
Ko ARNEEFER L ARAEERA impairment at the end of the reporting period because the
FAE o O A R R LA 0 B range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that
& - the directors of the Company are of the opinion that its fair

value cannot be reliably measured.
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

20. 148 20. INVENTORIES
R4 R
2011 2010
AR ¥F ARMTF
RMB’000 RMB 000
LM R Construction materials 592,893 414,463
6% i R A Consumables and others 1,172 1,476
594,065 415,939
2.8 R 1R B 3 21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALES
R SRR
2011 2010
AR ¥F ARMTF
RMB’000 RMB 000
A COST
R AEA) At the beginning of the year 31,590,625 18,312,478
75 8 G 5 I 2 ) Additions through additional
MR E interests in subsidiaries 600 30,000
NE Additions 18,919,581 19,318,981
B LR EHAFEMAERE  Transfer from prepaid lease
payments upon commencement
of construction 8,285,597 6,012,090
LA 2 R A 2 Transfer to properties held for sales (12,599,362) (11,792,036)
W R EYE Transfer to investment properties — (290,888)
AR # At the end of the year 46,197,041 31,590,625

BB EYESCR HE > B

& o

R_F——F+ZH=+—H:
JE B A B A ) E Y MR T (E
A R #32,426,000,0007G (= & — FA4F
 FRTE B R
HE AR T 0 R 8 LR B

A B #23,913,000,0007C)

R MR (H -

PRC under medium-term lease.

The properties under development for sales are located in the

A Included in the properties under development for sales

end of the reporting period.

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

classified as current assets as at December 31, 2011 is carrying
value of RMB32,426 million (2010: RMB23,913 million) which
represents the carrying value of the properties expected to be
completed and sold after more than twelve months from the



2.5 EmE

E UINRESE (el £7/E 08 ULl T
Fi A 4 W 3639 DURAR B B -

23 JE e Sk B 3T i M W 5k
B~ e BB Ak

B0 MWK T B B ) S W 3¢
L& - AR E YR E b EERE
GRS 13 S ENKR/E$1'8-v)
> L A AL R A A AR A
HISTAT

22.

23.

B B U 5 A B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALES

The Group’s properties held for sales are situated in the PRC.

All the properties held for sales are stated at cost.

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables are mainly arisen from sales of properties

and properties investment. Considerations in respect of sales

of properties are paid by purchasers in accordance with the

terms of the related sales and purchase

agreements. For

properties investment, rental income are paid by tenants

within two months in accordance with the terms in the tenant

agreement.

TR ZR R4
2011 2010
ARWF I A R¥F
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 e sk H Trade receivables 128,367 343,397

A RE R Other receivables, net of allowance
R B B (B 5E) for doubtful debts (Note) 923,169 543,690
1] {4k 8 73 A K Advances to suppliers 308,859 191,188
AT B E Prepaid tax 1,965,625 1,429,263
T A BRI K s % & Prepayments and utilities deposits 18,276 8,755
3,344,296 2,516,293

Wiiak o AR EE A AR A R - R T
MEEEERRE L RE TRES -

Note: Included in other receivables are rental deposits, receivable of refund

of the deposit for land auction and deposits for construction work.
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For the year ended December 31, 2011

23. M6 e ik sk B 3 i ek

23. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

B~ el BT SKH a)

DT ASE M REREAHEINNE S
JRE Wi IR fF9 B 6 A

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at the
end of the reporting period based on invoice date:

R R4

2011 2010

AR ¥F AR BT

RMB’000 RMB 000

60 H A Within 60 days 65,269 337,531
61% 180H 61 - 180 days 11,681 5,866
1815 365H 181 - 365 days 51,417 —
128,367 343,397

WoE——F+"A=+—H > 50% ("
T —FAE 1 98%) [ & K I i 3k JE I 4 4
W EWHE BEEEESANE -

R oFE—-—EF T H =+ HEFA AL
T JRE A R i 1 S ) AR TH 2 R
B 5% N R ¥ 64,643,00000 (=% — &
iF 0 NRH5,866,00000) > HE R R
A HERALERBE TZEER
J5 0 3 0 S RE ERE T 2 A A T
TE 0 A i TR R TR A o
7 45 ) 37 48 A 5% S (B AE R R A o

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

At December 31, 2011, 50% (2010: 98%) of the trade
receivables are neither past due nor impaired and with
satisfactory credit quality.

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable balance are trade
receivables with a carrying amount of approximately
RMBG64,643,000 (2010: RMB5,866,000) at December 31, 2011
which are past due at the end of the reporting period for
which the Group has not provided for impairment as the
Group has retained the legal titles of the properties sold to
these customers and the estimated fair value of the relevant
properties is expected to be higher than the outstanding
receivable amount.
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For the year ended December 31, 2011

23. M6 W R ok B G i M ek
B~ e BB K )

A 300 1EL R Sl M B o M Wi K O Y R % )

23. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not

#r impaired:
R e S a2
2011 2010
AR #F AR BT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
60 H K Within 60 days 1,545 5,866
61% 180H 61-180 days 11,681 —
1815 365H 181-365 days 51,417 —
5t Total 64,643 5,866

JA T A M M T T i ] B AR 4R
LEF SRR/ SR i dEEUER SR IR
B0 e R R B E R IR TS 8 - i
JA 5 B RE R LA R R (R AR B
EHREAR -

AL E P AT > A5 BE A E
Al E RS EE R F 2 FREEK > B
B 2 ER ok R A e R B o T A
W R 26 1 O R (L 46 R 39 A R RO R

AZF——FEF A= —H > HAhHE
WAC R T A B IR A R B A5 E R E)
BH AR A THIE E AR %
ACHEEBE A A R #12,000,00070 (%
—ZAF 0 NR¥12,000,0000C) 0 JEK A
3 F 7 B A B E Y B IR A AR
TR AT - R TOE

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit risk
is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated.

Before accepting any customers, the Group uses an internal
credit assessment system to assess the potential customers’
credit quality and considers adequate allowance has been
made at the end of the reporting period. Balances which are
neither past due nor impaired are all with good credit quality.

Other receivables include mainly temporary payments and
miscellaneous projects related deposits paid which are
refundable upon maturity, of which, approximately
RMB12,000,000 (2010: RMB12,000,000) was impaired as at
December 31, 2011 because the counterparties are in severe
financial difficulties and the Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. The remaining balance was not
yet due for repayment.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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BEZFZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

23. M6 e ik sk B 3 i ek
B~ e B WAL AR )
S0 55 ) 8 2

23.ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts on other

receivables:
e S “E-FE
2011 2010
AR¥T I ANRBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
1) &5 B Balance at the beginning of the year 12,000 39,566
E AT SR Amounts written off as
uncollectible during the year — (27,566)
R K R Balance at the end of the year 12,000 12,000

24 JE W 3k [ % ) 2 o83k 0

B i I [ o) ORI - B H
IR — AR -

25 DRI BT FE K BRAT 4
i B Bl 4

WEZF—— B BON LR %60
Bk R 2 BT AR RS 2R
B ERAT 7 S B N R H268,462,0007C (—
TR 0 F) o E0] S E Y R
EH -

O RAT 77 ok A N M SHE » F 248
T RAT 7 > MR B & P 4R A4k
wER R-F——F+_A=+—
H oo 773K [ 52 4R % 5 0.5% (& —F
1 0.36%) °

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINTLY CONTROLLED

25.

ENTITIES

The amounts due from jointly-controlled entities are
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable within one year.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

Included in bank balances and cash in the consolidated
statement of financial position are balances which, in
accordance with the applicable government regulations
prevailing in 2011, are placed in restricted bank deposits,
amounting to of RMB268,462,000 (2010: Nil), which can only
be applied in the designated property development projects.

Pledged bank deposits are denominated in RMB which mainly
represent deposits pledged to the banks to secure the
mortgage guarantees provided to customers. The deposits
carry fixed rate at 0.5% (2010: 0.36%) per annum at December
31, 2011.
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25. TGN BRAT 2 ok BRAT &5 25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
B EBE @) AND CASH (Continued)
RUHEBMABEOFEALERANR 2 Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
T I ) 19 3 BR A =@ F) LT R 347 demand deposits with an original maturity of three months or
;o RITHHEHFHEMNELETE35% less. The interest rates on cash placed with banks ranged
(ZF =4 XFE2I5%) ° from nil to 3.5% (2010: nil to 2.75%) per annum.

I S il S 22

2011 2010

AR % T AR¥T T

RMB’000 RMB’000

i B W AT E IR AR AT Analysis of pledged bank deposits/

Tk, SRAT &5 6% B B4 bank balances and cash
by currency:
- AR®SHE — Denominated in RMB 12,879,964 9,932,239
— DL o EHE — Denominated in HKD 24,586 361,272
—PiEI ([%£x]) 51HE — Denominated in United
States dollars (“USD”) 1,622,500 69,040
14,527,050 10,362,551
26. HE AT MRk ~ O Bk A B 26. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
Wt & ACCRUED CHARGES
R "R
2011 2010
AR EF T AR ¥F
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AT R OH K Trade payables and accrued
JRE 5T 722 28 B S expenditure on construction 3,665,035 2,618,597
JEE A 22 4% Bills payable 1,852 5,306
B k4 K Deposits received and receipt in
W) 3£ 5 & Tl KOH advance from property sales 34,569,718 26,291,986
A 18 45 5 T K Rt 1) (B 5E) Other payables and accrued charges (Note) 3,174,071 2,558,978
41,410,676 31,474,867
WEGE MRS BROE RSB R EEAEAE Note: Other payables and accrued charges comprise mainly tax received and
J5 BT BURE 9 © Wi 3280 - HEST Hr 4 B payable to the government on behalf of customers, accrued salaries
7t B LAG A o and accrued staff welfare.
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26 EAT MR A% ~ O B HE
k-4t

B2 75 JE A 3K T I ot A 5 B S 4 A
B B H A 3H E OB B ST 0 IR IR A SR
B IR A B SR o AR
S 5 B A BLICR o Ll DR T A B A K
JE A5 FEHT IR A

26. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
ACCRUED CHARGES (Continued)

Trade payables and accrued expenditure on construction
comprise construction costs and other project-related
expenses which are payable based on project progress
measured by the Group. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
settled within the credit timeframe.

PUF B R il R > B 5 IR 5kH -~
T R B S M A SR R R O B

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables and
accrued expenditure on construction and bills payable at the
end of the reporting period:

TR —E-FH

2011 2010

ARWTF I ANRET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

60 H A Within 60 days 2,520,267 2,174,354
61% 180H 61 - 180 days 734,431 223,733
1817 365 181 - 365 days 178,561 131,905
1% 24F 1 - 2 years 214,283 08,066
2% 34 2 - 3 years 7,449 15,868
4 34T Over 3 years 11,896 9,977
3,666,887 2,623,903

27. HE Ak 36 [ % o) 26 o83k 0

A EU RS - BRI - 428
B JETA K g 15 7

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

ENTITIES

27. AMOUNTS DUE TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED

The amounts are denominated in RMB which are unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.
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28. HAT B H- A £ K 28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
R4 ZE—FAF
2011 2010
AR #F A RMTF o
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
§E‘<” s A A& Bank loans, secured 9,199,252 7,614,700
SRAT > I HE A Bank loans, unsecured 8,637,076 7,765,665
ﬁﬁﬂ%m A7 HE A Other loan, secured — 246,000
HAb B - AL Other loan, unsecured — 310,000
&5 AIEH Bond, secured 1,389,924 1,387,994
19,226,252 17,324,359

& BRES BLT SRR (22 (FfF 5k

The borrowings are repayable (Note):

T S S “E-FE
2011 2010
AR T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB 000
—4ENR Within one year 3,580,372 2,859,870
ZR 4 (HA A A 4 More than one year, but not
exceeding two years 6,205,534 4,567,603
ZIWAE > HAEE =4 More than two years, but not
exceeding three years 6,194,002 7,221,174
Z R =4 HOR B D4R More than three years, but not
exceeding four years 1,396,420 957,718
Z IR DUAE - (H R R AR More than four years, but not
exceeding five years 1,489,924 —
el 98 4R Exceeding five years 360,000 1,717,994
19,226,252 17,324,359
W E B R Less: Amount due within one year
— 4 R £ 1 2K 0E shown under current liabilities (3,580,372) (2,859,870)
— AR A% 3 0 2R Amount due after one year 15,645,880 14,464,489
WFRE B0 ISR T AR R G o AT T R K Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in
H 7R © the loan agreements.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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28. 8L4T B LA A K )

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

R4 R

2011 2010

AR ¥F ART T

RMB’000 RMB 000

iR B & W A Analysis of borrowings by currency:

— DA R¥EFHE - Denominated in RMB 15,546,732 14,666,684
— A eEHE — Denominated in HKD 3,679,520 2,657,675
19,226,252 17,324,359
R A B R 1 TR AT ~ Ho At B Certain bank loans, other loans and bonds as at the end of

&1E#UWE£3S%$ET&W§§%%%

RZF——EFZH =+ — H KR &
At B 4 555 47 ) 26 F-3.08% % 6.19%
(DB —F4E 0 3.08%%5.81%) ME B &
AN R ¥ 2,375,829,0000C (& — &
A0 N #64,077,275,00000) 0 H LA 4E
A FEMERE  RE % ——
E+ZA=Z+—HIEEENLGERR
TR K ARE BN R GRAT I R R
i HIEER RN T5.4%58.11% (—
T =T 1 513%%6.40%) -

ATEENAERLA LA > AEBBTA
&8 B N R ¥ 1,400,000,0007C K % it =
iéﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂaﬁﬁ%%%%#EW%
FLE ) o & LA LR AE6.7 %1 [
mmiﬁﬁ7ﬁﬁ¥$iﬁ’$%@ﬂ

BRI T -NELALAE-RIEE
P8 % 10018 25 (G5 5% 8 AR F i

T — AP H A H AR
B R R R MR T R R 3R
6.7% » 25 Fe A N Ji B5 0 398 45 4% 1h (E 1
] 2k o & 5 - S EHR I (AR
#1,100,000,00070) i - i 7 75 22 5 T -
WMREE - f{HEUAEBN L TWER
(P REAE AR -

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

the reporting period were secured by the pledge of assets as
set out in note 35.

Bank and other loans include approximately
RMB2,375,829,000 (2010: RMB4,077,275,000) fixed rate loans
which carry interest ranging from 3.08% to 6.19% (2010: 3.08%
to 5.81%) per annum at December 31, 2011, and exposing the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The remaining loans are
arranged at variable rate based on the interest rates quoted by
the People’s Bank of China, the effective interest rate is
ranging from 5.4% to 8.11% (2010: 5.13% to 6.40%) per annum
for the year ended December 31, 2011.

On May 5, 2009, the Group issued a bond of the principal
amount of RMB1,400,000,000 and will be repayable in full by
May 5, 2016, subject to early redemption. The bond bears
fixed coupon interest rate at 6.7% per annum for the first five
years payable semi-annually in arrears and is subject to an
one-off upward adjustment of up to 100 basis points
(inclusive) from May 5, 2014 at the election of the Group. The
Group will determine on April 25, 2014 the interest rate by
election of an upward adjustment to the interest rate but if it
determines to maintain the interest rate at 6.7%, the holder of
the bond then may elect to redeem all or part of the bond at
the face value. A portion of such bond (RMB1,100,000,000) is
listed and traded on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The bond
is secured by certain properties and land use rights of the
Group.
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28. 8L4T B JLAB A K )

HHRBMSGE > EHEN _F——F TN
E+t—-HMWATFHEHLHE AR
1,358,000,0007C (& —F4F : AR ¥
1,468,320,0007C) ° iz b Kok Efi
WA ZATETIZHEHE EHH A
WG R E s -

29 0 B ¥R

TR H B A E % T E
N RAEEAT MATE (750,000,000 7T (9 A R
14,909,200,00070) 1A 5 (18 56 e B 2
1B (FRE]) o Z% R w5
9.5% > FEA A AF AT — ORI S o i ZE
TR NEN A H KR

SRR N RS S AL 5 BT A R A A B
Mo BAR AR EEEA - AR
AL T AR R B BB R
S BUA B A R AR o SR
O I % 98 08 7 O Lt A IR I8 o A
LT 2 B EE AR -

fifi 7 T B R & AR A £ B BRI+ =
i F 390 PR SR ] - AR 8 ) RTR —F —
S AR R R A I 228 4 A 4 R
T SCHF B A 4 B 20 B A T8 [E] 4 5
B2 SR ] S0 R (R A S BR el
A R -

0

Year

ZR
“E-REREE

2014
2015 and thereafter

28.

29.

BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Management estimates the fair value of the bond at December
31, 2011 to be approximately RMB1,358,000,000 (2010:
RMB1,468,320,000). The fair values of both the listed and
unlisted portions of the bond have been calculated with
reference to the quoted market price of the listed portion of
the bond.

SENIOR NOTES

On April 7, 2011, the Company issued guaranteed senior fixed
rate notes to the public at par with aggregate nominal value
of US$750,000,000 (approximately RMB4,909,200,000) (the
“Notes”) which carry fixed interest of 9.5% per annum
(interest payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully
repayable by April 7, 2016.

The Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited. They are unsecured, senior obligations of the
Company and guaranteed by certain of the Company’s
existing subsidiaries, other than those organised under the
laws of the PRC and Barbados. The guarantees are effectively
subordinated to the other secured obligations of each
guarantor, to the extent of the value of assets serving as
security.

At any time and from time to time after April 7, 2014, the
Company may at its option redeem the Notes, in whole or in
part, at a redemption price equal to the percentage of
principal amount set forth below plus accrued and unpaid
interest to the redemption date if redeemed during the
twelve-month period beginning on April 7 of each of the

years indicated below.

Ji [l fi

Redemption price

104.75%
102.375%

4% Annual Repore 2011
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29. 8 BB )

29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

BT E AN A b H R TR A
N A]OR R AR SR R AL
100% ¥ J8 171 15 73 i 8% 2 B 1ol H B O B35
B H ) A T A RO E B R A AR (i
£) o B A (E ) o

[ B e 18 ) A7 BB ) IO 2 2298 > (1)
B EPEA SN 1.00% & Q) (A)E B E
B B @)= —MN4EM A £ A A%
Z TE TR B - (i) 2 A 48 3 R i
SN 10018 e By 2 Bl B S5 B 22 48
BT —VUAED H b BT 2 BT A AR E R
BRuTE A RE OF R 45 8 % e A e
FHERASALE) 2 BLE 8 (B)H B 25 it
BN [ B 2 A 4 B 2 25 M e
%‘ o

HEE o 4R N HE e B
ERAEIMMEE > BATEBARSE
MATAETE -

T F— AR A L H AT A
5 A AL IR SR AR 4 8 109.5% 1 7]
B> B E AN (EAEEZH)
) B FHE R A RS () > Bh—sR s
bR R R A BB Y B4 T A R

A > W R R ARG EE35% 5 MR
A R B ) A T A S R AR 60
HAEAT B9 AE AT A7 R R 14 > %D 65% %
JREEAT H BT M IR A & B R B
o EER S BB EMEN A T A
AEK -

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

At any time and from time to time prior to April 7, 2014, the
Company may at its option redeem the Notes, in whole but
not in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount of the Notes plus the Applicable Premium as
of, and accrued the unpaid interest, if any, to (but not
including) the redemption date.

“Applicable Premium” means with respect to the Notes at any
redemption date, the greater of (1) 1.00% of the principal
amount of such Notes and (2) the excess of (A) the present
value at such redemption date of (i) the redemption price of
such Notes on April 7, 2014 plus (ii) all required remaining
scheduled interest payments due on such Notes through April
7, 2014 (but excluding accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date), computed using a discount rate equal to
the adjusted treasury rate plus 100 basis points, over (B) the
principal amount of such Notes on such redemption date.

In the opinion of directors, the risk and characteristics of the
early redemption option were closely related to the host
contract, therefore, it was not separately accounted for as
financial derivatives.

At any time and from time to time prior to April 7, 2014, the
Company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal
amount of the Notes with the net cash proceeds of one or
more sales of common stock of the Company in an equity
offering at a redemption price of 109.5% of the principal
amount of the Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any,
to (but not including) the redemption date; provided that at
least 65% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes
originally issued on the original issue date remains
outstanding after each such redemption and any such
redemption takes place within 60 days after the closing of the
related equity offering. In the opinion of the directors, the fair
value of the early redemption option is insignificant.



B B U 5 A B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. BB @)

i 8 A A P I RE S B A > A
A 4R S A AR 4 101 %o ) i 518 53

THHM (AEEZE) EBEMARA N
1) JE 5105 2 A5 1 JS B 40 B ol T A R R

EE RS BRETE RS L
15,995,000 7© (41 A B % 104,696,000
J6) AR BEYE 2 BRBRAE AR £510.02% -

BE-F——H#+_A=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

Upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering event,
the Company will make an offer to repurchase all outstanding
Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of their principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not
including) the offer to purchase payment date.

The net carrying amount of the Notes is stated net of issue
expenses totaling US$$15,995,000 (approximately
RMB104,696,000) and the effective interest rate of the Notes is
10.02% per annum. .

WK ERE BB The movements of the Notes for the period are set out below:
AR¥T T

RMB’000

BT 20N TE Initial fair value on the date of issuance 4,804,504
T 52, 1K it Exchange gain (176,802)
B 3T (B 3 8) Interest expenses (note 8) 342,973
N E AT FLE Interest paid during the year (230,202)
N ZF——F+ZH=1—HZEMH{HE Carrying amount as at December 31, 2011 4,740,473

R-F——%+-A=+—H %2%
03 7 I 5 5 AT R ) 2 T i R
FEZEBAFEAR AR
4,347,621,0007C °

The fair value of the Notes at December 31, 2011 with
reference to the quoted market price available on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited amounted to
approximately RMB4,347,621,000.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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30. % A B filt i 30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
5 Ji 1 1.0.10% ¢
W A
Number of
ordinary shares T
of par value Nominal
HKS$0.10 each value
T T
HK$’000
WE Authorised
A E—FIE—~H—H - At January 1, 2010,
“E—-FEFEtT_H=1—H December 31, 2010 and
E_F——H+_A=+—H December 31, 2011 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
CBTRHR Issued and fully paid
WoE—RE-H—H At January 1, 2010 5,150,000,000 515,000
A7 {5 T 9 A B A (BfY 5 ) Issue of shares upon exercise
of share options (note (a)) 5,000,000 500
WoZE—FEF+ZH =+ —H At December 31, 2010 5,155,000,000 515,500
A7 {5 T A B 4y (BfY 5 ) Issue of shares upon exercise
of share options (note (a)) 50,000 5
WoZ——fE+—HA=+—H At December 31, 2011 5.155,050,000 515,505
K5 3 B 5 R R I R Shown in the consolidated
financial statements
R-F——HFF_HA=+—H At December 31, 2011 RMB equivalent 453,415
Wo_Z—ZFE+_H=+—H At December 31, 2010 RMB equivalen 453,410
(a) Jit A (a) Share capital
HE-F——F+-H=+—HI During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company
L AR ) AT (0 I BB B AT issued 50,000 (2010: 5,000,000) shares of HK$0.1 each
50,0008 (= % — % 4 : 5,000,000 upon exercise of share options. The exercise price of the
JBO) 55 M T (ELO. 1 G 9 JBe A = 34 1 i share options exercised during the period is HK$8.44
A7 {6 R ) 4 o488 /% 8. 448 T (AR (equivalent to RMB7.18) (2010: HK$2.94 (equivalent to
EHRARET187T) (ZF —F 4 ¢ RMB 2.57)). The new shares issued rank pari passu with
2.94% 7 (R & A N R ¥2.5778) ) - the then existing shares in all aspects.

3 17 07 O TE 45 7 T B IR 2 T iR
= A7 ] S R4

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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30. % A B it Ml ) 30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) it i (b) Reserves
4 m -~ E AR
) M E (i) Share premium

Name nature and purpose of reserves

SF - ERCE-FEC
F = B0 T 4 A A

) B i

e A Y6 £ B 52 B 2 R S /A ) ik
B ATy A AR (n
A7) AR T K A R A B
TELL R AR © (a) 30 A 40 i ok ik
BP IR 5 (b)8 2 %817 THE
g FBE SR 0 AT R A R 8
RBITRN 5 QLHEHEA
) % 5 37 I 8 W Il % I
FBAn 5 ()M ss 2 v B A R
(e) 0 8 35 A7 A 2 A R0 B %5
11 2 P Rt S AR A 4 4 S A
T RPN 5 K (f)FE B I R B
B AR ) AT ] R B M 5
T A T o

W I 2B o A 20 IR 5
1 B K AR A A A) M
HH ZEH 2 A58 > & Rl
AN1F B B A Ve A5 R e HE 25 B R
{E AT AT 43 R 2% 3 AT AT %
g -

Share premium at December 31, 2011 and 2010
represented share premium of the Company.

The share premium account is governed by the
Cayman Companies Law and may be applied by the
Company subject to the provisions, if any, of its
memorandum and articles of association in (a) paying
distributions or dividends to members; (b) paying up
unissued shares of the Company to be issued to
equity shareholders as fully paid bonus shares; (¢) the
redemption and repurchase of shares (subject to the
provisions of section 37 of the Cayman Companies
Law); (d) writing-off the preliminary expenses of the
Company; (e) writing-off the expenses of, or the
commission paid or discount allowed on, any issue of
shares or debentures of the Company; and (f)
providing for the premium payable on redemption or
purchase of any shares or debentures of the
Company.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity
shareholders out of the share premium account unless
immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

30. 5 A B ki i ) 30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Tt (4 (b) Reserves (Continued)
LN EE AN E 4
(i) G A fh M (ii) Capital reserve

Name nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

BEMANA RS EH > R
ZENEASA+T—H > BRE
17 3,999,999,000/8% % % 1 {8 0.1
W TG I B oE SR B A o AR
o8 BT B AT I A B T (B BRL 5 R
BREWR (BER) ARAR ([5
BRI | > AN AR B R P TR
A B A M EHAE
EN AR

“EZNETATH > ALH
o CE R R R E R KA
100,000,000%5 76 (A8 & A A ¥
88,120,0007C) f H & 7 fik i 1
W o

i) A 1 £k A

wE_ZZLETZA=1—
FIEFE > #BBERE N XK
I 2 Wt o 4 ) B BE R M A 2
WA BR A A ([E BRI A %
R |) 3% 770,000,000 IC
1M A% 7 ] 1) e 4% JBE R % BE R 4
+ RO IR B A
RN R R - ALEH
i R E A A 3 R 1Y SRR iR
60%38 5291.3% » T 41 Wi 1 A9
P8 A R ¥ 620,672,0007T HIl 1§
T e I 4 S HE 25 1 A N
BB EESBENIS > ER
5 T A TN E R S BE AR TN
HEH -

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

On June 11, 2008, a group reorganisation was
completed for the preparation of the listing of the
Company’s shares by issuing 3,999,999,000 shares of
HK$0.1 each. The difference between the nominal
amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the share capital of Juntion
Development Hong Kong (Holding) Limited (“Juntion
Development”), then holding company of the Group,
is charged to capital reserve.

On October 2, 2009, the Company declared dividend
of HK$100,000,000 (equivalent to RMB88,120,000) to
the then shareholders of the Company and charged to
capital reserve.

(iii) Special reserve

During the year ended December 31, 2007, Juntion
Development injected additional capital of
HK$770,000,000 in a non-wholly owned subsidiary,
Chongqing Longhu Development Company Limited
(“Chongqing Longhu Development”) in which the
non-controlling shareholders are Madam Wu Yajun
and Mr. Cai Kui, who are also the ultimate
shareholders of the Company. The Group’s equity
interest in Chongqing Longhu Development has
increased from 60% to 91.3% and a discount on
deemed acquisition of RMB620,672,000 which
represents the excess of the share of net assets
attributable to the additional interest acquired over
the amount injected was recognised in special reserve
as the contribution from equity owners.
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30. % A B i i a0 30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Tt (4 (b) Reserves (Continued)

A EE RS (4

(iv) oAt i A (iv) Other reserve

Name nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

WE_F——F+HA=+—
Bk > A 45 1 JF B o Ak
A B L M R
HRAF ([EBEHEE] 49%1
AR A RE A AR
176,307,0007C ° #% 4 W B E E
Ry TR S ) A B - 480 B
fER N EERCNRELT
(B 1 25 B0 H B % A R e T

WE_Z—FFETA=1+—H
IEARRE > A B 1 1o JF 42 3 Fi S
T4 B PG 22 HE W0 S 0 A R
A (TPZEERIRT) ~ AR HE ) 6 5
BEARAR (THHsHHE])
JVIHE 0 o o R AT PR A /] (TG 1]
%WM&&%%WW%E%%@
([ 1) 0.7% ~ 8%
8%&%%ﬁ%k$ R A5
A B 16,750,000 ~ A R ¥
72,000,0007C ~ A B 36,000,000
6 S N R #520,080,0000% © 7% %
W U1 £ IR 5 ) AR 48
R I ¥ T i 1Y 4 A B L AR
O T 26 0 T B 7 EL Al o £

2
e o

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Group
acquired additional 49% of the registered capital of
Chongqing Longhu Yiheng Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Chongqing Yiheng”) at a consideration of
RMB176,307,000 from non-controlling shareholders.
This acquisition has been accounted for as equity
transaction and the difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid are recognised
directly in other reserve.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Group
acquired additional 0.7%, 8%, 8% and 25% of the
registered capital of Xi’an Longhu Jincheng Company
Limited (“Xi’an Jincheng”), Chengdu Longhu Jinhua
Real Estate Company Limited (“Chengdu Jinhua”),
Sichuan Longhu Real Estate Development Company
Limited (“Sichuan Longhu”) and Chengdu Longhu
Tongjin Real Estate Company Limited (“Chengdu
Tongjin”) at a consideration of RMB16,750,000,
RMB72,000,000, RMB36,000,000 and RMB520,080,000
respectively from non-controlling shareholders. These
acquisitions have been accounted for as equity
transactions and the differences between the amounts
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair values of the considerations paid are
recognised directly in other reserve.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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30. % A K il i a0
(b) i )
k0~ WE R A& ()
(v) BB

30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Reserves (Continued)
Name nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v) Statutory surplus reserve

(vi)

ek el A U E R N
WA ERAA > LSS
N ) ZE 1] 3 A 28R R A 4
BBl g Al 10% - B 2 R
Bk E AN S0% £ 1E - RS
R it A8 ZELIS 1o BE R AN 43 R
Ji B 2 il FE o ¥ E B AR AR
T A 58 A AR R A R AR
1R AT I 46 7 S o A 5 Y
JB N I EEANE AR -

& A

TE 5 98 B R 39(a) T #4578
170 R R TR B B R I AL
Ay 5% B 5F 3 2 0y 55 B/ A T
{E o

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

In accordance with the articles of association of
certain subsidiaries established in the PRC, these
subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of the profit
after taxation to the statutory surplus reserve until the
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. Transfer
to this reserve must be made before distributing
dividends to equity owners. The statutory surplus
reserve can be used to make up for previous year’s
losses, expand the existing operations or convert into
additional capital of the subsidiaries.

(vi) Capital contribution reserve

Capital contribution reserve represents the
recognition of the fair value of share awards under
the Pre-IPO share award scheme over the vesting
period as set out in note 39(a).
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31 B HEBLH () 31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

B 5E Notes:

a. A ERE e R BRBE S A B B UM ¥ B a.  This represents the tax effect of the temporary difference arising from
o B T 7 A T U 2 R A B R o B B A the treatment of the government grants between the accounting standard
U B AU o R EAT B 2 4 s B A% and the tax bureau. Tax bureau treats the government grants as an
B B AR R A B SR income but for financial reporting purpose, the government grants are

treated as deduction from costs of properties under development for
sale.

b, RZ B IR A P ST EE A Y R A AL b.  This represents the tax effect of temporary differences arising from the
B 28 o AR W] 0 R A R O 2 15% Y deduction of advertising expense. The Group can deduct its advertising
JEAGBASE - A TN BR AR 43 (dn ) AT expense of no more than 15% of its revenue and for the part that cannot
A% 4F [W] 45 8 be deducted, if any, it can be carried forward to future years.

MEWEE A BRI RE > & TRER For the presentation purposes of the consolidated statement

HEE (A DK o DT At 5k of financial position, certain deferred taxation assets

5 BT AE R AR AT B IE &5 R 20 A (liabilities) have been offset. The following is the analysis of

the deferred taxation balances for financial reporting
purposes:

e I =

2011 2010

AR T ARWBT T

RMB’000 RMB 000

AR H G = Deferred taxation assets 669,202 436,035
% S JE B R Deferred taxation liabilities (2,196,726) (1,593,846)

(1,527,524) (1,157,811)

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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3B HE B () 31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)
R-F——H+ZA=1+—H &&H At December 31, 2011, the Group had unused estimated tax
A %) N\ R %5 308,840,0007C 1 1 7t A B) i losses of approximately RMB308,840,000 (2010:
L TE s 48 T R RS R A A (—F % RMB187,188,000) available to offset against future profits.
i ARH187,188,00000) o &) AR Deferred taxation assets have been recognised in respect of
W251,432,0007C A Ml 5 T 58 48 4 B JH B approximately RMB251,432,000 (2010: RMB131,714,000) of
E(ZFE—FF 0 AR 131,714,000 such losses. No deferred taxation asset has been recognised in
J6) o A AN AT TR R A i A AR - A respect of the remaining RMB57,408,000 (2010:
At ek T AR ¥ 57,408,000 (—F—% RMB55,474,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
$ N R W 55,474,0007C) i 58 4% 4T B JH streams. The unrecognised tax losses will expire in the
B o oA il RRBIE s B DA 4R E following years:
1y
—F—— —ER R
2011 2010
AR¥ T ARWBT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
—E - F 2012 1,338 1,338
—Ex = 2013 49,820 49,820
ZE YA 2014 888 888
—F-hf 2015 3,428 3,428
it Y 2016 1,934 —
57,408 55,474
32. Ve Jik W )88 4% Wl 32. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
BE-F——F+ " +ANBRBOK Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated December 26,
Tk > A& Lk B LR R B R 2011, the terms stipulated in the cooperative framework
EARAR ([ EEEE]) 8 & ERERE T agreement governing the joint-control of Shanghai Hengrui
wikE o EASEEBEAREREE Real Estate Company Limited (“Shanghai Hengrui”) was
L e R B BB S EOR - B E terminated and the Group has effective control of voting
MEEEB R ERRE - power to govern the financial and operating policies of

Shanghai Hengrui. The principal activities of Shanghai
Hengrui is property development.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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For the year ended December 31, 2011

32, 05 Jik B 0 A W )

B F 0 A b 6 3
52 2 B 2 0 6 I

32. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised from the change in
status of Shanghai Hengrui from a jointly controlled entity to

B R a subsidiary at the date of acquisition are as follows:
AR T
RMB 000
VESN GV Property, plant and equipment 107
FrfE &Y Properties held for sales 563,691
JRE ST R 2 e G i S I Accounts and other receivables,

e B A SRR deposits and prepayments 300
oG BRI KO Amount due from joint venture partner 1,233,371
A i e B IH Taxation recoverable 43,937
SRATHE Bk Bl & Bank balances and cash 36,824
AR K ~ B ik & K Accounts payable, deposits received

JOE 5t % and accrued charges (118,160)
JRE A5 i A Taxation payable (473)

1,759,597
koo I R AR Less: non-controlling interests (422,593)
1,337,004

i B b v A Y R B B A Net cash inflow on acquisition of Shanghai Hengrai
ARMT T
RMB 000
B A B ARE Cash consideration paid —

W BT BL & Less: cash and cash equivalent

&S & R balances acquired 36,824
36,824

g 1 S 0 R S A A A A 5

et o

There were no profits or revenue for the year attributable to

the additional business generated by Shanghai Hengrui.

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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33, 5c Jik B D 2 ) Y A A E 2

@

(ii)

(iii) B E %

(iv) M £ %

BE_Z——F+_HA=+—HI
A > A% 4R W] e I 42 ) R R R B
R AE 49% 1 sk M BEAS > RAE Ay AR
#176,307,0007C ©

A 3R R I 2 o) RE £ 1Y 2 AR R A
L A 2 - 6L [ 19 A o 26 9 . %
ARE SR TERE > IR AN FIHEA A

WE_Z——FF+ZA=+—HI
AR > A A (8] 1) I 42 ) IRCOR B R
I 57 B A PR R 0.14% 1 B 317
BeA > KRB 2 AR H1,100,0000T

—FEFZA=1T—HI
AR > A 4R ) 1) I 47 i FROR 1 G
THR I - BUAR SR EE Y )1 HE W A
HIEE0.7% ~ 8% > 8% I 25% ) ik fit
JBeA > RAE 5 FI B A R ¥ 16,750,000
7t~ AR 72,000,000 © A R
36,000,000 K& A R ¥ 520,080,000
=,

AL B JF P2 T RE A A & B AT
WP 2 - B [ 19 A o 26 9 .
TARERE TERE > B AL FIHEA N

—FELZA=T—HI
R AREE LA R H34,000,00000
i £ B B R N B
BEARA A% C BT R A o

BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

33. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES

()

(ii)

During the year ended December, 2011, the Group
acquired additional 49% of the registered capital of
Chongging Yiheng at a consideration of RMB176,307,000

from the non-controlling shareholders.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Group
acquired additional 0.14% of the issued share capital of
Changzhou Jia’'nan Properties Co., Ltd., at a consideration
of RMB1,100,000 from the non-controlling shareholders.

(iii) During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Group

acquired additional 0.7%, 8%, 8% and 25% of the
registered capital of XI'an Jincheng, Chengdu Jinhua,
Sichuan Longhu and Chengdu Tongjin at a considerations
of RMB16,750,000, RMB72,000,000, RMB36,000,000 and

RMB520,080,000 from the non-controlling shareholders.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

(iv) During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Group

acquired additional 8% of the issued share capital of
Changzhou Jia'nan Properties Co., Ltd., at a consideration
of RMB34,000,000 from the non-controlling shareholders.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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34. 38 {4 A 5t 3

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

35

AR o B AR B S SRR AR
e [ B 2 ) 26 2 e 3 Oy T O A R
9 505 PR ARG B o A2 w69 o B
Ja& 2 7 1 w4 AL R T R BB IK
AR o %A R 8 A8 b O T BUR R B
HREBFHHFENETH S WE - A
A5 B LA B A PR B E R
R4 %t B 1E th AL K o

ASE BN B HL A A A SR B R
o P S R 0w R Y B A B AR
B EESEREA > FENRZENER
1 4 o A 2 B 42 AR R BT 4 AR 19 5% )
et # LR o T B A R B R e

ﬁ%:?——$+—ﬂi+—5¢¢

o A SR T T GROR IR 48 R A 3
ﬂmwmugi Eﬁ.AE%
42,706,0007C) °

B0 A

REEWAR > CIRMUTEEMESALE
VB 8 452 T SRAT D LA Y 98 R S 1)
E ¥ 3E 0 B 7 8 41 5 8 B

35.

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by the
local municipal government. The Company’s PRC subsidiaries
contribute funds which are calculated on certain percentage
of the average employee salary as agreed by local municipal
government to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits of
the employees. The principal obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the scheme and the same amount is
matched by employees.

The Group recognised the retirement benefit contributions of
RMB71,913,000 (2010: RMB42,706,000) for the year ended
December 31, 2011.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The following assets were pledged to secure certain banking
and other facilities granted to the Group and mortgage loans
to buyers of sold properties at the end of the reporting

period:
T S S R R
2011 2010
ARWTFT AR ¥
RMB’000 RMB 000
BREW*E Investment properties 3,900,627 2,859,277
FEATAH & FOH Prepaid lease payments 1,927,280 —
BRI EYE Properties under development for sales 16,471,904 10,934,011
FfE &Y% Properties held for sales 389,687 —
O SR AT 47 5K Pledged bank deposits 406,125 499,419
23,095,623 14,292,707

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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36. ALK 36. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
A Ay LN The Group as a lessor
= TR SUATE & TR R A F R Contingent rental for certain properties was determined by a
BEBENLETA»LEE - B#E _F— certain percentage of turnover earned by the tenants. The
— A = H R R A contingent rental income recognised during the year ended
& WA % 55 N R %93,339,0007C (=% December 31, 2011 amounted to approximately
— T4 NR#67,571,00070) © ALEE RMB93,339,000 (2010: RMB67,571,000). The properties held
REHERENYRAHPINT -2+ by the Group for rental purpose have committed tenants for
NEMLERE - periods ranging from one to nineteen years.
R IR > AEECBEAF TR At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
AR B ARAR B ARIEFT A with tenants for the following future minimum lease
payments:
I —EF-FH
2011 2010
AR# T ANRET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
— 4N Within one year 255,502 274,200
B AR R A AR In the second to
(6145 T W 4F) fifth year inclusive 501,414 562,473
h % After five years 362,236 359,581
1,119,152 1,196,254

4% Annual Repore 2011
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

3. X @)

A 5 AR 2 R AL

BB 01 > S AR O
L4 1 DL 0 355 0 ¢ A IR A

36. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following future minimum lease payments under non-

BHIEMT cancellable operating leases in respect of leased properties:
“F——F %%
2011 2010
AR#TF I AR ¥ T T
RMB’000 RMB 000
—AE R Within one year 19,785 14,583

55 AR B AR In the second to

(H1EH B W) fifth year inclusive 30,099 33,370
AR After five years 3,850 3,873
53,734 51,826

MM EREE A LR LA THRAY
KMEAT IO 4 o A B0 S A0 30 Whh v
—EAJUE > A R B AT B
H i o

37,7k ¥

TRt R A SR BT DR R IE

37.

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated
for an average term of one to nineteen years and rentals are
fixed at the date of signing of lease agreements.

COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following commitments:

“ER —E-FH
2011 2010
UNY AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERAMARREGAMBE®RE  Contracted but not provided for
PR A in the consolidated financial statements:
— AR B AERDRE - Expenditure in respect of projects
YRR B EY EHE classified as properties under
9 B 52 development for sales and investment
properties under construction 10,587,509 7,749,357
—HBCE LA AR B X - Expenditure in respect of acquisition
of land use rights 4,709,435 7,288,986
15,296,944 15,038,343

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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38. KA

7% 42 ) R A A 1 ) 3 O M A Y 43 4R
BRI RIS > ZERANE
%E é:$~*$+:ﬂz+45%ﬁa,k
E%mﬁsmmwﬁ*£~£$'AE
%5,204,923,00070) © A%/ Al # 7R A
R R M R A K 2 %ﬁmn
HHERRE A E K > BARAAEZR S
JIT 9 5T 49 J7 400 T REME R /DN > R
BHRADMERD IR -F——F K
F—FE+ZH = — H KA
TETERREE -

AEE R RBEARAERYER T
ZHRATRHIEAR o LE BRI E Tk
W) 3 T A IR 4% 48 ) 36 68 T 52 AL B ph R AT

i 10 U 1R Mortgage guarantees

BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group provided guarantees amounting to approximately
RMB7,755,814,000 (2010: RMB5,204,923,000) as at December
31, 2011 in respect of mortgage bank loans granted to
purchasers of the Group’s properties. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the fair values of these financial
guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial
recognition and the directors of the Company consider that
the possibility of default of the parties involved is remote,
accordingly, no value has been recognised at the inception of
the guarantee contracts and at the end of the reporting period
as at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Guarantees are given to banks with respect to loans procured
by the purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees
will be released by banks upon delivery of the properties to
the purchasers and completion of the relevant mortgage
properties registration.

ZF—f e S
2011 2010

A R¥F i AR¥F T
RMB’000 RMB 000
7,755,814 5,204,923

4% Annual Repore 2011
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For the year ended December 31, 2011

39. DA B Ay 2 FE 08 B 1k 52 B
DARE i 4% 0 0 e 4 S D e

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:

it #

a. RO B BB TR 5 D a. Pre-IPO share award schemes
A R VE IR 4 B B A T R The Company’s two Pre-IPO share award schemes (the
A% st (03 S 8 =t 1) 23 Bl AR “Share Award Schemes”) were adopted pursuant to a

BhEEZLE+—H=1+H K= resolution passed on November 30, 2007 and July 31,

FENFELHA=1+— HER N &
R - REERAADISE@E > AL
AN FEERAERL TEE
AL A ey (THE B ) o
o 38 B st B 5 7E O 0 B M 8 B A
EEUE S GNP YRR £
DR RBLEAEENE
& o

IR —FELET—A =1 HEH
WErE > RZFZLET—H=1H
ORI —F—— 1 f = F—F4F
T = H AR R 1 A R A7
e ¥ B M A 85 Tl % 16,003,500/
(/B 45 17 2 3 4% T 19 1,687,250/ &
) 132,007,000/ (f 45 1) # F 4%
193,374,500/ B f3) - 43 A% & H A4
N ) A 0.3% 12 0.7% 5 JB) B A 5T
AR AT R 5 R
Ao b IEM AT > WM TR
B S T B 93 A9 I 1 1 H AR Y 4%
BEEHENEE - HRSEH B
“ERRAFE—H—H -

BE-FZNELA =+ B HEM
MErd > R FRNFELH =+ —
HOBRWMER - ——F L=

ZHEF A= — B KR8
TR J& A7 BT 3 B¢ 43 43 Il 2% 15,000,000 /8%
(B2 45 ) 3 35 4% 19 3,681,000 it
) J222,500,000 5 (£ 45 i 3 2 % 1
195,522,250 L 4y) - 43 RIS & B A&
O A A 0.29% K 0.44% o 52 18 i 17y
WA 5 o e A R A
FEREE - WA WA - MMET
1 21 5% B J5 3 5t 7 A B R O
MABEEEHEHEE - B0 EE
A A —F—FELHE=1—H-

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

2009 respectively. Under the Share Award Schemes, the
Company has awarded the Company’s shares (the
“Awarded Shares”) to directors of the Company and
certain employees of the Group. The objective of the
Share Award Schemes is to align the interests of the
employees with those of the Company, to share the pride
of ownership among employees and to reward their
performance and contribution to the Group.

Under the scheme adopted on November 30, 2007, the
total number of shares in respect of which Awarded
Shares had been granted on November 30, 2007 and
remained outstanding was 16,003,500 (including 1,687,250
shares granted to directors) and 32,007,000 (including
3,374,500 shares granted to directors), representing 0.3%
and 0.7% of the shares of the Company at that date, as at
December 31, 2011 and 2010. The Awarded Shares,
subject to a vesting period, are being held by a trust of
the ultimate controlling shareholders. The vesting period
is either four or five years during which the award shares
granted to employee will vest on each anniversary of the
first vesting date in equal portions. The first vesting date
is January 1, 20009.

Under the scheme adopted on July 31, 2009, the total
number of shares in respect of which Awarded Shares had
been granted on July 31, 2009 and remained outstanding
was 15,000,000 (including 3,681,000 shares granted to
directors) and 22,500,000 (including 5,522,250 shares
granted to directors), representing 0.29% and 0.44% of the
shares of the Company at that date, as at December 31,
2011 and 2010. The Awarded Shares, subject to a vesting
period, are being held by a trust of the ultimate
controlling shareholders. The vesting period is four years
during which the award shares granted to employee will
vest on each anniversary of the first vesting date in equal
portions. The first vesting date is July 31, 2010.
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39. DL By 2 % 8 B 43 ik 32 B 39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(#5) (Continued)
DA HE 25 45 S0 JBe A B D Bt HE Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:
aHE o (Continued)
a.  HIRZ BB I oy 58 8wt a. Pre-IPO share award schemes (Continued)
(%)

REEFELFE T —H=ZTHE-%
FHFELA =+ —H IR E RGN
P N S N 3 I AN
116,050,000t &% A R ¥ 71,250,000
TG TR EE L R GEE
AR R RE e 18 B RO B IR
o AR E B2 B A RN R
HHBE MG ATE - BEHRE
2~ I J e AR R 2R U 2 o D
T B T 7] 28 W 22 i B T4 ED Y A AR
JEE A A% U8 W T 1AL

WER R _F—FF T2
H=T—HIFE > AXAHEH
7 A A8 0 B 4 T RN B R
23,437,00070 & A R # 62,157,0007C
H ST o AN ) B B SR DA g
S T B AT ST B A IR A 4
oo I > A B EIE AR 5 T E
e

The weighted average fair values of the shares granted on
November 30, 2007 and July 31, 2009 were
RMB116,050,000 and RMB71,250,000 respectively and
were determined using a mix of asset-based and market
approach with option-based pricing model is adopted to
account for the vesting condition. The significant inputs
into the model were estimated fair value of shares at the
grant date, expected dividend pay out rate, annual risk-
free rate and volatility rate. The volatility is measured
based on past years historical price volatility of similar
companies listed on the SEHK.

The Group recognised an expense of RMB23,437,000 and
RMB62,157,000 for the years ended December 31, 2011
and 2010 respectively in relation to shares awarded by the
Company. The shares awarded by the Company will be
settled with the existing shares held by the trust of the
ultimate controlling shareholders. Accordingly, the
respective amounts were credited to capital contribution
reserve.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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39. DA B Ay 2 FE 08 B 1k 52 B

(#) (Continued)
DA RE 25 45 53 000 JRe 0y S 0h B Rt Equity-settled
a8 &) (Continued)
a. B R BH B R A 5 S a.
(#5)
AN T % o 10 B T 2 M R B R 1R
mr e
JB 4 5% B #4 H
Number of
share awards
In] 3 =5 7% i) I 4 42 JE)

Share Awards granted to directors:
-REZFFLFE+—-A=1+H

- on November 30, 2007 6,749,000

-REZFFNFELA=1T—H

- on July 31, 2009 7,363,000

1] g B 5 i 1 5% -
Share Awards granted to employees:
-REZFFLFE+—-A=1+H

— on November 30, 2007 57,265,000

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

share award/share option schemes:

Pre-IPO share award schemes (Continued)

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during
the year are as follows:

B o o A

Vesting Conditions

AEHAEE ZFFNFE—H—HA25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2009
HERHHREE - F—-FE -1 —HH25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2010
ARHHEE - F——4F—H—HH25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2011
REAPRE -F—"F—H—HHA25%

25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2012

AR HEE —F-FELA=+—H5H25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2010
ARHAMERE T ——HFLA=+—H525%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2011
AR A HREE —F - ZFEA=+—HRA25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2012
AREAMEE -F-=ZFLH=+—HH25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2013

AEHAEE ZFFNFE—H—H525%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2009
HRHHREE - F—-FE -1 —HH25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2010
ARHHEE - F——4F—H—HH25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2011
ARHEAMERE —F— "4 —H—HR25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2012
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39. DL B B B R 0 A 3k R B
(#)
DA RE 25 45 55 000 JRe 4y S Jh W Bt
[ )
a. B KO B BB Ry 5 D

BE-F——H#+_A=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Equity-settled

(Continued)

share award/share option schemes:

a. Pre-IPO share award schemes (Continued)

()
B 4 2% i % H
Number of 5 & # #
share awards  Vesting Conditions
“RZEEAELA=+—H HREAPEE - F-FF LA =1T—HH25%
—on July 31, 2009 22,637,000  25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2010
ARHEAMEE T ——FLA=+—HE25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2011
HREAMEE -F—-FLA=1T—HR25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2012
REAMEE =T -=FLA=1+—HR25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2013
RE-FFAF-A—-HEHZ
173 5 i 48 9
Total share awards as
at January 1, 2009 94,014,000

CANISY
Vested during the year

(16,003,500)

RZEEREL A=+ — B RS
Outstanding as
at December 31, 2009
FRE
Vested during the year

78,010,500

(23,503,500)

—FEF A=+ HKREB
Outstanding as
at December 31, 2010
R E b
Vested during the year

\#'?

54,507,000

(23,503,500)

R-F——H+-A=+—-HNKREE
Outstanding as
at December 31, 2011

31,003,500

4% Annual Repore 2011
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39. DA B Ay 2 FE 08 B 1k 52 B

(#)
DA RE 25 45 53 000 JRe 0y S 0h B Rt
a8 &)

b. KA PR B i BB

E YNGR O/NE R 2 L
BT U0 B 3 6 i s PR e &t ) )
TIMER —FEFELE+—H=1H
Lﬁm R RERERR > F2H

NERALEEESR RS EIIEE R
1 BERY > T E R TR —FE L
Er— A=+ HEALERGE K
i R R = G o
1) m i — {2 H Lk 1 R
B o MR RO B R
AtE o AAE RHMEARESD
452 W] R A D R4 1 i SRR o
TR o B A R T B R
Az HE A 104 -

REZZLFEL—H=1TH O
ﬁ%%ﬁw&wm%%@%ﬁ%%
% 115,588,000 1 B fiE) o R =%
—— R CFE-FET A= —
H AR 5 1 Uk 2 B % B i
B35 H T A5 A A7 (P 8 P R 0 S i
7 8 B £ 32,940,000/ (4345 1) # 5
£ 11 18,356,000 1 B i) > i =%
—— R ZF-FEF A=~
H A2 5 A 19.0.64% o

R AT AR o O A B i i
w1 B A ] i Al B R T
T H 1 T A7 B PR R AT R R AT A AR
o E A > RSB R BT E
BSOS A BT IR BB 10% © 1
YRS B 6 I A BT B B 40 4 17
i 8 £ 6.46% 7T » IR —FFILFE—]
— H B £ 2.9436 7T ©

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:
(Continued)

b. Pre-IPO share option scheme

The Company’s Pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a
resolution passed on November 30, 2007 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees of the Group, and options can only be offered
and granted from November 30, 2007 until the business
date before the date on which dealings in the Company’s
share first commence on the SEHK (“the Listing Date”).
Under the Pre-IPO share Option Scheme, the directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries were granted options to
subscribe for shares in the Company. The term of the Pre-
IPO share Option Scheme is 10 years from the date of
adoption.

On November 30, 2007, 37,940,000 share options
(including 15,588,000 share options granted to directors)
were granted. The number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at December
31, 2011 and 2010 was 32,940,000 (including 18,356,000
share options granted to directors), representing 0.64% of
the shares of the Company as at December, 2011 and
2010.

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate of the shares of the Company in issue at the
Listing Date. The exercise price of the Pre-IPO Share
Option initial at HK$6.46 and amended to HK$2.94
effective from January 1, 2009.
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39. DA IBe A 2 2E B 9 Ak 58 B 39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(#H) (Continued)
DIHE 25 45 55 10 I > S8 D s 3L E Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:
ARl o) (Continued)
b. KA B B I B ) b. Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
(%)
PRIAT G0 AR R o R 2 B 5 A The overall limit on the number of shares which may be
w8 e A 2 ) ) A B FBCHE 2 issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
AT AT A AT 8 B T A PR HEE T T and yet to be exercised under the Pre-IPO Share Option
REEEAT R BB M R IRE - A Scheme and other share option scheme of the Company
13 B A8 S IR 2 B AT IR AR A9 30% o must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time.
Vil B HE 1Y S S AN T The vesting period of the share options is as follows:
25%: Bz HER 25%: from the date of grant to January 1, 2009
“EENEFE—~HA—H
25%: AR HEE 25%: from the date of grant to January 1, 2010
—“F-FE—-H—H
25%: S HiEs 25%: from the date of grant to January 1, 2011
—E—-—fF—-A—H
25%: S HiiE 25%: from the date of grant to January 1, 2012
—“F-"H—H—H
wHE—F - —Ht+-A=t+—HIk The Group recognised the total expense of RMB3,273,000
R AEEHA A A H N E R (2010: RMB11,730,000) for the year ended December 31,
U bR B I JBOME T R AR S AR 2011 in relation to Pre-IPO share options granted by the
#3,273,0000C (& —F4F : ARW Company.

11,730,0007C) °

4% Annual Repore 2011
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39. DA B Ay 2 FE 08 B 1k 52 B

(Continued)

Equity-settled

(Continued)

b. Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

the year are as follows:

Number of 5 /&

(#)
DAHE 25 45 0 00 JBE 73 S, I
AhE o)
b. KA PR B i BB
()
A R B4 i B A R 2 M K R A
o
Ji 1 e 4 H
Options
EEESEY 3
Share Options granted
to directors:
-R_FEFLE+-HA=1+H
- on November 30, 2007 15,588,000
1] { B 4% th i PO HE
Share Options granted
to employees:
—-R-EFZLEL—-A=FH
- on November 30, 2007 22,352,000

Vesting Conditions

BRHAMERZ-FTETNE—H—HH25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2009
AR HEE —F—FHE— A —HA25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2010
BROEMERE - F——F—H—HHA25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2011
BROEPMERE T ——"HF—1—HHA25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2012

HRHAEE —FZTHE—H—H H25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2009
BRHAMER T —FFE—H—HH25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2010
AROEMERE —F——F—H—HHA25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2011
AREAREE - ——F—H1—HRA25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2012

share award/share option

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

schemes:

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during

T £ 2 5

Contractual

life of
options

AR
10 years
AR
10 years
14
10 years
AR
10 years

14
10 years
AR
10 years
14
10 years
14
10 years

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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39. DABE Ay 2 FE B i 1 3k 58 )

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(#H) (Continued)
DI HE 25 45 55000 I 4 B M PRt E Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:
ARl o) (Continued)
b. KA B B I B ) b. Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
()
Ji T M 40 42 200
i P HE 4 H Contractual
Number of 5 i # life of
Options Vesting Conditions options

R-ZFZFAFE+_A=1+—H
£ i 5 HE A

Total share options at December
31, 2009

AT (B 3T

Exercised during the year (Note)

37,940,000

(5,000,000)

R-F-FER_F——HF+ ]
:‘I‘ Hﬁgﬁﬁﬂx@w%{
Total share options at December

31, 2010 and 2011 32,940,000

AE—FE+ A=+ B A

Exercisable at December 31, 2010 13,970,000

R=F——+ A=+ —ATff

Exercisable at December 31, 2011 23,455,000

BiRE © AT G F O A S 28 e M 2% 7.96

Note: The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$

BT -

ER/ONGE & X Yia i
AN V) IR B AR T R R T
B ([ U PR B B 4% s SRR st b )
TIRBER —ZFZNET AT =
Hamm — R B RS F 25
HWERSAEBRESRRA EEIEAR
RALAEE o R E KA EL
IR HERE ) > AR ) R LB 4 R
= AT AR AR A T TR A7 Y TR
o B BB E A IR 3
TR AN 2 H 5 104 -

7.96.

Post-IPO share option scheme

The Company’s Post-IPO share option scheme (the “Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a
resolution passed on December 23, 2009 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees of the Group. Under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme, the directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries were granted options to subscribe for shares
in the Company. The term of the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme is 10 years from the date of adoption.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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39. DA B Ay 2 FE 08 B 1k 52 B

(#)
DA RE 25 45 53 000 JRe 0y S 0h B Rt
a8 &)

c. H RO BB R B (40)

RZEZZNLET_H=+=H > &
% A 52 1 10,600,000 5 FB 4 14 1 A
fE o H%Hﬂéﬁﬁ 710 15 15 8.44%% 7T ©

BEF——HF+TH=1T—HIF
. enZF——HF—-A+LtHEZ
F—— LA NH &R
46,000,000/ ( 3 5 [ % & & H
3,000,000/ 8 ) %% 150,000,000/ (2
T ) 2 5% 1 59,600,000/8 JB ) M 47
Y B R HE o A IR 02 o B RS
A& TR 4 59 2 A R 195,338,000
70 & N B #410,041,0007C ©

A AT AR ZHAR AR

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:
(Continued)

C.

Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

On December 23, 2009, options to subscribe 10,600,000
shares (including 9,600,000 shares granted to directors)
were granted. The exercise price of the option is
HK$8.44.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, options to
subscribe 46,000,000 shares (including 3,000,000 shares
granted to directors) and 150,000,000 shares (including
59,600,000 shares granted to directors) were granted on
January 17, 2011 and September 28, 2011. The estimated
fair values of the options granted on those dates are RMB
195,338,000 and RMB410,041,000 respectively.

These fair values were calculated using the binomial

AHZ28WMT model. The inputs into the model were as follows:
RUTHHRBRENBRE

Share options granted on
—E——fF —E——fF
—At+tA AB=tNH
January 17, September 28,
2011 2011
B H O Grant date share price 12.528 % 8.28 B T
HKS$12.52 HK$8.28
170 18 Exercise price 12.528 B 1t 8.28 BT
HKS$12.528 HK$8.28
T AR Expected life Y & it =
Note Note
T Expected volatility 41% 42%
RE % Dividend yield 1% 1%
A B ] 2% Risk-free interest rate 2.72% 1.36%

Wi AL o B SR - T A 4 O A+ A 0
) /25t 5 -

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

Note: Expected life of the option is calculated by the formula of
(vesting period + exercise period)/2.
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39. DABE Ay 2 FE B i 1 3k 58 )

(48

DI HE 25 45 55000 I 4 B M PRt E
i@

C.

U B B 4R ik JBCRE W ) (4
T3 95 R A D 2 A A A £
B B T E o 2 R T
BRI T RN EE 2 R EA
AN AT EGRYE AT BE R R AT R B
Rl 2 -

R F—— N ZF-FEF N
ZEF—H o WREBEHRAEE R
B HE S ) 2 2t AE R A7 (0 i
it % B i BB %5 206,550,000/ K
10,600,000 » 1 A2 F =% ——4F
R —=FE+Z A=+ —HKE
4% 5% 0.21% °

AT AR 5% ) R A A ) ) At
I e HE T 6% % L 1 BT A A
T AT RE AT AR A A R A, R
HEER BT H AN A TR
1 S8 B 10% o

PR AT o A 0 O B A i IO
w1 B A 2 ) 1) 5 At PR S
5 T AT A A7 08 1 i A T R o el
REBEAT I I 10 B E B 2B PR A - A
15 8 AS IR 84T R0 30% ©

BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:
(Continued)

c.  Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the past few
years. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

The number of shares in respect of which options had
been granted and remained outstanding under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme as at December 31, 2011 and
2010 was 206,550,000 and 10,600,000, representing 4%
and 0.21% of the shares of the Company as at December
31, 2011 and 2010.

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the scheme and other share option schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate of the
shares of the Company in issue at the Listing Date.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and other share option scheme of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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39. DA B Ay 2 FE 08 B 1k 52 B 39.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
() (Continued)
DI HE 25 45 55 10 I > S D s ¢ Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:
APl o) (Continued)
c. HIRA PR BB AR I RE S (4 c. Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
Ji IR HE 1Y S5 SR S AN T The vesting period of the share options is as follows:
B oEENEFT A =HRE Share options granted on December 23, 2009
fF i fi 1
25%: ARz HREE -T2 25%: from the date of grant to December 23, 2010
+=ZH=+=H
25%: HEHZHERE ZF——4F 25%: from the date of grant to December 23, 2011
+-A=+=H
25%: HERMZHA®EE_F -4 25%: from the date of grant to December 23, 2012
+TZAZ+=H
25%: Bz AERE ZF— =4 25%: from the date of grant to December 23, 2013
+tZHAZt+=H
RoF——F—A+LHRHHE Share options granted on December January 17, 2011
B
25%: HEHMZHEE -F—_4F 25%: from the date of grant to January 17, 2012
—HA+tH
25%: HIRLZHARE _F—=4F 25%: from the date of grant to January 17, 2013
—HA+tH
25%: HERMZ A#E % —U4Eg 25%: from the date of grant to January 17, 2014
—A+tH
25%: HEHZHEZE ZZ—H4F 25%: from the date of grant to January 17, 2015
—A+tH

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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39. DAIBC Ay 2 FE 0 B 1k &2 B

()

DI HE 25 45 55000 I 4 B M PRt E
i@

C.

U2 B R ) (4)
AZF——FRAZTARRHH

140,000,000 14 1 fi% Ht

10%: BRHBZARE T — =4
ALHZ+N\H

30% : Highz HEs —F—y4E
LA Z+NAH

30% : Az HEs —F—fh4F
A Z+AH

30%: BIRHZ H#EE T —N4E
ALHZ+N\H

RoFE——E AT ANHZEK

10,000,000 i %

100% : BEHZ HilE s =& — L4
ALHZ+N\H

WE_Z——HF+_A=1T—HIL
AERE > AR B AR A AL Y B
HE T 38 48 3 A B 5 139,071,0007T
(ZF—F4 AR %20,880,000

Jo) °

BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:

(Continued)
c.  Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

140,000,000 share options granted on September 28, 2011
10%: from the date of grant to September 28, 2013
30%: from the date of grant to September 28, 2014
30%: from the date of grant to September 28, 2015

30%: from the date of grant to September 28, 2016

10,000,000 share options granted on September 28, 2011

100% from the date of grant to September 28, 2017

The Group recognised the total expense of
RMB139,071,000 (2010: RMB20,880,000) for the year
ended December 31, 2011 in relation to share options
granted by the Company.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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39. DA B Ay 2 FE 08 B 1k 52 B 39.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(#) (Continued)
DI HE 25 45 55 10 I > S D s ¢ Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:
APl o) (Continued)
c. HIRA PR BB AR I RE S (4 c. Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
AR A BT A L B R R K B M A The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during
i the year are as follows:
I P R 5 2 4 40
JE R Contractual
Number of 5§ # ff life of
Options Vesting Conditions options
I 3 2 45 1 L
Share Options granted to directors:
-RIZFTRELAZ+=H BREAHEE -F-FE+ A -+ =HB25% 4
- on December 23,2009 9,600,000  25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2010 10 years
AEHAMEZ - ——F+ A+ =HA25% T4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2011 10 years
ARG ARREE —F—ZF+ A+ =HR25% T4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2012 10 years
ARG AMEE —F =+ "+ =HH25% FEE
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2013 10 years
1] { B 4% 8 A
Share Options granted to employees:
-RZFFAHE+ZAZTZH ARGEAHEE -F-FFE+ A +=HA25% T4
- on December 23,2009 1,000,000  25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2010 10 years
ARHAMEE—F——F+ A=+ =HR25% T4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2011 10 years
ARG ARREE —F—ZF+ A+ =HR25% T4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2012 10 years
ERGEAPEE -F-=F+"A - +=HH25% T4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2013 10 years
=T+ 21 R A
Total share options at December
2010 10,600,000

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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39. DA IBe A 2 2E B 9 Ak 58 B 39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(#H) (Continued)
DA RE 25 45 S50 1 SR 0y SE I JBt E Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:
ARl o) (Continued)
c. HIRABH AR I RE S (40 c.  Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
I P R 5 2 4 40
i B HE S H Contractual
Number of 5 # fF life of
Options Vesting Conditions options
ERRL
Granted during the year:
DE T 13
Share Options granted to directors:
0N Sk S e R EREZHEE -F—"F -+t HH25% T4
- on January 17, 2011 3,000,000  25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2012 10 years
B ZARE T —=4F—A 1+t HH25% 4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2013 10 years
ANz ARE -F—NE—H+LHH25% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2014 10 years
Btz HRE ZZ—H4E—A+LHA25% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2015 10 years
I Sk W5 vy AN BREZHEE-ZF—=ZF LA Z+/AHK10% T4
- on September 28, 2011 49,600,000  10% From the date of grant to September 28, 2013 10 years
ARSI ZHEE - F—HNEALA =+ /\HB30% T4
30% From the date of grant to September 28, 2014 10 years
AREZHREE -Z-HEAN =+ HH30% T4
30% From the date of grant to September 28, 2015 10 years
ARSZHBEE - F-AEALA Z+/\HB30% T4
30% From the date of grant to September 28, 2016 10 years
“REF-—FAAZT AR AREZHREE-F—LEALA =+ HH100% T4
- on September 28, 2011 10,000,000  100% from the date of grant to September 28, 2017 10 years

4% Annual Repore 2011
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

39. DA B Ay 2 FE 08 B 1k 52 B 39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(#) (Continued)
DI HE 25 45 55 10 I > S D s ¢ Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:
APl o) (Continued)
. HIR BH B AR I RE S A c. Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
Ji JBL M 0 4 200
JE R Contractual
Number of 5§ # ff life of
Options Vesting Conditions options
1) @ L 4% i i B¢ A
Share Options granted to employees:
-RZF—-—%—-At++tH AR HEE = —ZF—ATLHHA2% FEE
- on January 17, 2011 43,000,000  25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2012 10 years
ARMZHBEE-F—=F—A+LHA2% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2013 10 years
AREZHBEE - F—NE-]+LHA2% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2014 10 years
AREZHBEE-Z-HE—A+LHA2% FEE
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2015 10 years
-REF——FRAAZTAH ARtz AREZF—=F AT AHA10% 4
- on September 28, 2011 90,400,000  10% from the date of granted to September 28, 2013 10 years
ARtz ABE=F—WEAR =+ A HR30% T4
30% from the date of granted to September 28, 2014 10 years
ARMZHREE - F—HFEAA =+ HB30% T4
30% from the date of granted to September 28, 2015 10 years
ARHZHREE -F—ARELAZ+/\HB30% T4
30% from the date of granted to September 28, 2016 10 years
SRR AT (R
Exercised durmg the year (Note) (50,000)

AZF——FTZH =1 — H 0 A 8
Total share options at
December 31, 2011 206,550,000

AR —FEF A =+ — Bl
Exercisable at December 31, 2010 2,650,000

R ZAZ AR

Exercisable at December 31, 2011 5,250,000
WFGE © AT 08 H 350 IR T 439 J A 4 12,549 Note: The weighted average share price at the date of exercise is
TG HK$12.54.

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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40. B i )5 22 %) 40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

W S e A 5 AR O B MY R 24 27
B 7 2 BR Sh > 4F IR > AR SR T SELAL B
IR T ERZ S

(a) & IF] 4 il 1 #2

Apart from the balances with related parties set out in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and in notes 24
and 27, during the year, the Group entered into the following
significant transactions with its related parties:

(a) Jointly controlled entities

R4 —E-FE

2011 2010

AR T ARMT

RMB’000 RMB 000

JE AR 8 B Sales of materials 1,007 1,744
B A Consultancy fee income — 13,588
EX-SITIPN Property management income 10,880 7,013

(b) HEEBE &K

(b) Key management and shareholders

“E——F S 2
2011 2010
AR¥ T ARBT I
RMB’000 RMB 000

FEEHE Key management:
&Y Sales of properties 31,206 10,417

JBE Shareholders:

SHEY Sales of properties 64,000 8,514

(¢) FNEAN LEMAN R FEE
G (I8 B AN A EF) 1035
P R B 1D

(c) The remuneration paid and payable to the key

management of the Company, who are the directors of
the Company, for the year is set out in note 11.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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41. % A il B 4 B

41. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

A% S T T R Ll DR A 4 Y BT e
FREUAEE (v ey 9 8 R A P B A &
i 2 M SR A€ d5e K el o

A B8 I A 65 LA RS TR R (L
Sl WA 5E 28 M 294 FF 1 8 3K M BB o B
1) ~ B Jo S B A A AR A A
WA NREAGHE 45 (06 B B AT IRAS - Rl
KRB BAD) -

AnrlERENEHEARE - ERZ
R — 80 AAFEFEEEAN
A T B2 I AR AT T B LB o I AR R
A R A A

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes, where appropriate, the borrowings and senior notes
disclosed in notes 28 and 29 respectively, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained earnings.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital, and take appropriate actions to
balance its overall capital structure.

L2.2WTH 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a. & T HER a. Categories of financial instruments
R SRR
2011 2010
AR ¥F A R¥F oo
RMB’000 RMB 000
4 il Financial assets
At RE Available-for-sale investments 8,600 8,600
B TR (B4R Loans and receivables (including
HERBEEEY) cash and cash equivalents) 15,591,670 11,257,000
&b A E Financial liabilities
8 89 B A Amortised cost 30,517,923 22,745,641

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include accounts
and other receivables, amounts due from (to) related
parties, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
accounts payable, bank and other borrowings and senior
notes. Details of these financial instruments are set out in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose primarily to the market
risks of changes in interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates risks and other price risk (see below).

There has been no significant change to the Group’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk over the year.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on
bank balances and bank and other borrowings which
carried at prevailing market interest rates and variable
rate based on the interest rates quoted by the People’s
Bank of China.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to pledged bank deposits, bank and other borrowings and
senior notes which carried fixed interest rate. The Group
currently does not use any derivative contracts to hedge
its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the
management will consider hedging significant interest rate

exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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Q.58 TH @

C.

35 B )
) R K
DA SRR 20 B T 3 S i 0 K
B bR B AR E 2 A TR
(SRAT &5 B B 4R A7 J I b 1 30 i 26
J Bt A AR R ik A R R 1R Y
SRR EERMERENES - &
EIEER X 3 UN=Ti$ T ES:
Fox 155 € DA T R 20010 3 B (5 6R 17 &
Em%ﬁ ) KT 10018 5 B (5t
isEeRmE) KA MERAR
“W%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁm%ﬁu&ﬂﬁ
KRR AT R ) o

AR ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ/?%mo
5 B OB SRAT B L A £ 3K T

T e A7 Al 538 A 5 A 5 > U ZIS%
B#E_%F——4+-A=t+—H
I 5 B2 i A3 WD RN R

10,296,0000C ( & —Z4E 1 &) o

A ﬁﬂ?tﬁ/?%wﬂ%%
(G SRAT A7 KM &) o 1 07 A 3 b 2
%%h$&7m$%@ﬁﬁ:

— AP H = — kAR R R
s, WY £ N R % 105,907,00070
(ZF—F44 AR 73,973,000
Jo) ©

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been prepared based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments carried at variable rates (bank balances and
bank and other borrowings) at the end of the reporting
period and assuming the financial instruments outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. A 200 basis point increase or decrease for
bank and other borrowings and a 100 basis point increase
or decrease for bank balances are used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represent management’s assessment of the possible
change in interest rate in respect of bank and other
borrowings and bank balances respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had
been increased/decreased by 200 basis points in respect
of bank and other borrowings and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year would
increase/decrease by approximately RMB10,296,000 (2010:
Nil) for the year ended December 31, 2011.

In addition, if interest rate had been increase/decrease of
100 basis points in respect of bank deposits, with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s profit for the
year would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB105,907,000 (2010: RMB73,973,000) for the years
ended December 31, 2011.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk management

The Group collects all of its revenue in RMB and most of
the expenditures including expenditures incurred in
property sales as well as capital expenditures are also
denominated in RMB.

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated
in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations arises. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the respective reporting date are as follows:

R e S a2
2011 2010
AR¥Fx AR #F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
2903 Assets

ESH USD 1,622,500 69,040
HEIN HKD 24,586 361,272
R "R
2011 2010
AR EF T AR ¥F
RMB’000 RMB’000

& Liabilities
En USD 4,740,473 —
It HKD 3,684,774 2,657,729
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group mainly exposes to foreign exchange
fluctuation of USD and HKD against RMB.

The following table details of the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in RMB against the relevant
foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes bank
borrowings as well as bank balances and pledged bank
deposits denominated in foreign currencies. A positive/
(negative) number indicates an increase/(decrease) in
profit for the year where the RMB strengthens against the
relevant currencies. For a 5% weakening of RMB against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit for the year.

e
2011 2010
AR¥Fx AR BT
RMB’000 RMB 000

ETT USD
AF JE Y ] Profit for the year 155,899 (3,452)
ESTH HKD
A JiE Vi A Profit for the year 183,009 114,823
JFC Al A A R e Other price risks

A% 52 T (R w] A3 A T A
B o SR A ER AR
THG 3§ 1 P 1 I B e L o

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

The Group is exposed to equity price risks through its
available-for-sale investments. However, the management
considers that the Company’s exposure to fluctuation in
equity price is minimal.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d.

Credit risk management

At each of the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and financial guarantees
issued by the Group is arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the
amount of contingent liabilities disclosed in note 38. In
order to minimise the credit risk, monitoring procedures
are carried out to ensure that follow up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
regularly the recoverable amount of each individual trade
and other receivables and amounts due from related
parties at the end of the reporting period. The amounts
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position are net of allowances for bad and doubtful debts,
estimated by the Group’s management based on prior
experience and their assessment of the current economic

environment.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies or state-owned
banks in the PRC.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings and amounts due from jointly controlled entities,
the Group has no significant concentration of credit risk,
in which exposure is spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d.

Credit risk management (Continued)

For properties that are presold but development has not
been completed, the Group typically provides guarantees
to banks in connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of the properties
for an amount up to 70% of the purchase price of the
individual property. If a purchaser defaults on the
payment of its mortgage during the period of guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group to
repay the outstanding loan and any interest accrued
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is able to
forfeit the sales deposit received and resell the
repossessed properties. Therefore, the management
considers the Group would likely recover any loss
incurred arising from the guarantees. The management
considers the credit risk exposure to financial guarantees
provided to property purchasers is limited because the
facilities are secured by the properties and the market
price of the properties is higher than the guaranteed
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly

reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use
of borrowings. The directors of the Company closely
monitor the liquidity position and expect to have
adequate sources of funding to finance the Group’s
projects and operations.

The following table details the Group’s expected
remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities based on agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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NEMTH @ 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

e. MEIE S A

fifi F S 4% B A G BIE R B
B A A R B R R R G

e. Liquidity risk (Continued)

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
discounted amount is derived from existing at rates at the
end of the reporting period.

Y S
E+ZA
mEFH  =A-H AN &
HE RS HEAH
Weighted  Carrying Total
average amountat O0ZG60H 612180H 181%365H 1528 2%3%  H#3% undiscounted
interest December 31, 0-60  61to180 181 to 365 12 23 Over cash
rate 2011 days days days years years 3 years flows
AREFE AREFE AREFT ARWFE ARWTFE ARWFL ARKFL ARKFZ
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
At B Non-interest bearing — 6,551,198 302,348 2,258,729 3,678,451 311,670 — — 6,551,198
THIR Fixed interest rate instruments 8.40% 7,116,302 159,222 182,488 1,182,451 1,040,501 1,356,348 5,319,667 9,240,677
BEIR Variable interest rate instruments 6.17% 16,850,423 99,567 336,385 3,139,557 6,571,834 5,482,110 3,693,610 19,323,063
HEERAS Financial guarantee contract - — — — 7,755,814 — — — 7755814
30,517,923 561,137 2,777,602 15756273 7,924,005  6,838458 9,013,277 42,870,752
#=2-%
2
miEry  =+—H MBS
e A ey
Weighted Carrying Total
average  amountat  0FG0H 61E180H 181% 365 1528 283%F  ##3F undiscounted
interest December 31, 060 61t 180 18110 365 1-2 23 Over cash
rate 2010 days days days years years 3 years flows
ARETE AREFE AR¥FfT ARBFr ARETL ARETL ARETT AR¥FE
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
At B Non-interest bearing 5,421,282 064982 10609444 2960855 120,001 = — 54228
THIR Fixed interest rate instruments 494% 5,465,209 251,77 1,205,711 967,036 515,099 703,311 257,737 6,290,670
BEIR Variable interest rate instruments 5.33% 11,899,090 116,416 182,896 917497 4709923 6,850,655 463,008 13,240,455
HHEERAH Financial guarantee contract — = — 5204923 — — — 5204923

0745641 103174 3148051 10056311 5345023 7593966 3,020805 30,157,330

4% Annual Repore 2011
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

€.

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could be
required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that
it is more likely than not that no amount will be payable
under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

e the fair value of financial guarantee contracts on
initial recognition is determined based on the present
value of expected payments when default, where the
main assumptions are the probability of default by the
specified counterparty extrapolated from market-
based credit information and the amount of loss,
given the default; and

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

Except for the bond and senior notes with fair value
disclosed in notes 28 and 29 respectively, the directors of
the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
positions approximate their respective fair values at the
end of the reporting period.
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43. 78 4 W) W 5 OB 43. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(a) A2 ) BB IR 2 BB R (a) Financial information of the financial position of the
Company:
R —E R4
2011 2010
AR¥EFT ARWBTF T
RMB’000 RMB 000
i B NON-CURRENT ASSETS
JRE i B i 2 ) K I Amounts due from subsidiaries 11,352,634 7,291,685
B M8 A ) Investments in subsidiaries 3,816,731 3,255,495
15,169,365 10,547,180
B & R CURRENT ASSETS
JRE M i 3k K At R o Accounts and other receivables,
HIE - s LFEAMHIE deposits and prepayments 1,114 527
SRAT B % S & Bank balances and cash 566,335 357,480
567,449 358,007
i By £ £ CURRENT LIABILITIES
MEMP IR - Ek#% 4 K& Accounts payable, deposits received and
JRE & B 32 accrued charges 4,417 5,413
JREASF R I /A ) 3R Amounts due to subsidiaries 3,455 1,792
SRAT B Ho A i 3% — Bank and other borrowings -
GANE R due within one year 416,088 —
423,960 7,205
B A NET CURRENT ASSETS 143,489 350,802
B E WO ) AR TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 15,312,854 10,897,982

4% Annual Repore 2011
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43. 4 2 vl W % B B ) 43. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
(a) ANEMBRIZHBEER . (F) (a) Financial information of the financial position of the
Company: (Continued)
R4 TR R
2011 2010
AR¥F AREF T
RMB’000 RMB 000
JBE AR B ik CAPITAL AND RESERVES
fig A Share capital 453,415 453,410
it £ Reserves 7,439,238 8,654,815
21 25 TOTAL EQUITY 7,892,653 9,108,225
T i B £ NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
AT T HABAE 3K — Bank and other borrowings -
— AR 2 due after one year 2,679,728 1,789,757
B EE Senior notes 4,740,473 —
7,420,201 1,789,757
15,312,854 10,897,982

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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43, FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(b) Movement of capital and reserves of the Company:

YR IN 1]
Attributable to owners of the Company
BRERE TR
Bk b i e A B Share Capital LEI i
Share Share Capital option contribution Accumulated At
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
AREFE  AREFT AREFE AREFE AREFE ARETL AREF
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
REF-FF-H-H At January 1, 2010 52972 6740494 2523930 26,884 91,530 (124,608) 9,711,202
ERERREEN AR Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year - - — — = (386,117)  (380,117)
T FR DI 45 B e A R Y 5 5 Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments — — — 32,010 62,157 — 94,767
LEY YR Dividend recognised as distribution = (324,450) = = = = (324,450)
TR 17 e Issue of shares on exercise of
share options 438 16,860 - (4475) - - 12823
R-F-FEFZJ=1—H At December 31, 2010 453,410 6,432,904 2,523,930 5,019 153,687 (510,725) 9,108,225
FRERR2ER LR Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year - — - — — (866,229) (806,229)
TR A48 5 2 B R O B Ay 3 Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments — — — 142,344 23437 — 165,781
ABMREKE Dividend recognised as distribution = (515,505) — - - - (515,505)
7R B 11 e Tssue of shares on exercise of
share options 5 562 - (186) - - 381
e S g o) o At December 31, 2011 53415 5917961 2523930 197,177 7704 (1376954) 7892653
(c) &Nt A ) (c) Investments in subsidiaries
—2——& -2
2011 2010
AR T AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB 000
I LT A > HE A Unlisted shares, at cost 3,816,731 3,255,495

(d) JEdi (REAT) Bt e 2> 7 2K IA

HE i (HEAF) B 2 7] 3

(e I 7 4R
i~ B HAR TR R 2

(d) Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries

The amounts due from (to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and are repayable on demand.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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44. WHE 2 Wl ~ 3t I ¥ T
B 8 A vl i ok A
AF——ERCE—BEFAST
SRR ES 1] VRS CEd
B S0 REM AT

44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entities and associates at December 31, 2011 and
2010 are as follows:

CHRTRER
AL/ Bk /Mg A
R b REMEMRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest  fully paid BEnE
R4 incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/ Placeof — FE%H
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
e
2011 2010
A
Subsidiary
TREEEHHERAA (Mika) W 93.5% 93.5%  FEMEARARH Gl BHER
Beijing Dezhuo Trade Company PRC 20,000,000 75 PRC Trading of construction
Limited (note a) BRBAARE materials
20,000,000 76
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
TREREEFRAA (Mekb) 913%  913% AMEAARE  HHE ES
Beijing Huicheng Investment PRC 10,000,000 7 PRC Propetties development
Limited (note b) 42 NG
10,000,000 76
Registered
RMB10,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
JUmHE A e A A R A A T 913%  913% AMEAARE  HHE REEE
(3 a) PRC 2,000,000 7T PRC House decoration
Beijing Longhu Chengheng BRBANRE
Decoration Company Limited 2,000,000 1
(note a) Registered
RMB2,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB2,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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36 I 4l 2 1

44. PARTICULARS

OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY

B W2 2 v WG o) CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES
(Continued)
REZIE 43
AL/ B /GEMEA
WL REMENBE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest  fully paid BENE
M4 incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/ Place of — FE%F
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
"R ZF-%F
2011 2010
WEAR (4)
Subsidiary (Continued)
TREMEEARAA (Mekb) 89.9%  80.9% AMEAARE  HH Y38 B8 e B o
Beijing Longhu Properties PRC 1,000,000,000 ¢ PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note b) 4 ZINGL provision of and
1,000,000,000 7t consultancy service
Registered
RMB1,000,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,000,000,000
LRERDEREARAA (Bika) 8 90.0%  0.0% EMEAARE B ESE
Beijing Longhu Property Service PRC 5,000,000 G PRC Properties management
Company Limited (note a) BRBANRE
5,000,000 7
Registered
RMB5,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB3,000,000
IRENEEERARA HE 913%  913% AMEAARE  HHE ES
(W3 b) 500,000,000 ¢ PRC Properties development
Beijing Longhu Qinghua PRC BRBANRE
Property Company Limited 500,000,000 75
(note b) Registered
RMB500,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB500,000,000

4% Annual Repore 2011




A B 0 A B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

44. WHE 2 Wl ~ 3t I ¥ T

44. PARTICULARS

OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY

B WG 8 4 vl ik o) CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES
(Continued)
R LIS 43
aEf L/ R /EMEA
L REMENBE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest  fully paid BEnE
N4 incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/ Place of — FEEH
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
3§ “1-%F
2011 2010
WA ()
Subsidiary (Continuied)
xR ERARAR (Hika) B 913%  913% AMEAARE  HHE UES
Beijing Longhu Shidai Properties PRC 1,400,000,000 75 PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note 2) BRBANRE
1,400,000,000 75
Registered
RMB,400,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB,400,000,000
I@AXTERARAA (Hika) BB 913%  913% AMEAARE  HHE ES
Beijing Longhu Tianxing Properties ~ PRC 600,000,000 ¢ PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note 2) BRBANRE
600,000,000 7
Registered
RMB600,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB600,000,000
@i AERARAR (Wika) B 913%  913% AMEAARE  HHE ES

1,500,000,000 75 PRC
BB NRR
1,500,000,000 75

Registered
RMB1,500,000,000

Paid up capital
RMB1,500,000,000

Beijing Longhu Zhongbai Properties  PRC Properties development

Company Limited (note a)

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY

CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES

44. B B 2y W] ~ 3 ) e ol R 44. PARTICULARS
B W2 2 v WG o)
(Continued)
REZIE 43
AL/ B /GEMEA
WL AEMENRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest  fully paid
M4 incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital
g~ -4
2011 2010
WEAR (4)
Subsidiary (Continued)
TRBNERERAA (Mika) 913%  913% MEAARE
Beijing Mengke Properties PRC 600,000,000 7T
Co., Ltd. (note 2) BRRANRH
600,000,000 75
Registered
RMB600,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB600,000,000
EMEHERERAA (Wit  HE 93.5%  93.4% EMEAARME
Changzhou Jia'nan Properties PRC 370,000,000 7T
Co., Ltd. (note 2) BRRANRH
370,000,000 76
Registered
RMB370,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB370,000,000
WAER B EA R 7 HE 913%  913% AREAARE
(THRAPERE ) (B ) PRC 30,000,000 7
Chengdu Jiaxun Investment Company BRBANRE
Limited (“Chengdu Jiaxun”) (note b) 30,000,000 &
Registered
RMB30,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB30,000,000

BEn%
Place of
operation

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

EEEH

Principal activities

HES e 3T e

Properties development
and provision of

consultancy service

ES

Properties development

VES T

Properties development

4% Annual Repore 2011
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44. B B 2> W) ~ 3 ) e ol R 44. PARTICULARS
B0 8% 2 v ik
(Continued)
R LIS 43
aEf L/ R /EMEA
L B AEMENRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest  fully paid
N4 incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital
3~ 224
2011 2010
WA ()
Subsidiary (Continuied)
BAREEAAF (Wi a HH 935% B35 EMEAARE
Chengdu Jinteng Trade Company PRC 20,000,000 76
Limited (note a) BRBANRE
20,000,000 75
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
BAENSEERARAA (Btv) & 9420  042% FEMERARME
Chengdu Longhu Jinhua Real PRC 100,000,000 ¢
Estate Company Limited (note b) BRBAANRE
SRR o B RAT R 100,000,000 ¢
Registered
RMB100,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
HAERIERBEARAA (Bika) 8 9L.04%  9L04% EMEAARM
Chengdu Longhu Property Services ~ PRC 5,000,000 ¢
Company Limited (note a) BRBAANRE
5,000,000 7T
Registered
RMBS,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB3,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

Place of
operation

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES

FUEH

Principal activities

EHE S
Trading of construction
materials

EZ T

Properties development

WEER

Properties management
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44. W )8 4 7] ~ Jb ) e ) B8 44. PARTICULARS
B8 A vl W wE s )
(Continued)
BRARAR
FEM AR/ R&/GE A
TRk REMEWGRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest fully paid
Ve incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital
“g-—f “1-%F
2011 2010
Mg AR (%)
Subsidiary (Continued)
HAERFEEEARAR (Bekb) HE 93.5%  935%  aftEAARE
Chengdu Longhu Tongjin Real Estate  PRC 966,549,865 T
Company Limited (note b) BRRANRH
966,549,865 T
Registered
RMBY06,549,805
Paid up capital
RMB966,549,805
RANEEEARAT (Wika)  HE 913%  913% aftEAARE
Chengdu Xixi Real Estate Company ~ PRC 335,660,000 70
Limited (note a) B AR AR
335,660,000 7C
Registered
RMB335,660,000
Paid up capital
RMB335,060,000
HATEHERARAA (Bita)  PH 913%  913% aftEAARE
Chengdu Xixiang Real Estate PRC 436,370,000 ¢
Company Limited (note a) BRBANRE
436,370,000 7
Registered
RMB436,370,000
Paid up capital
RMB436,370,000

BEn%
Place of
operation

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES

EEEH

Principal activities

ES

Properties development

VES T

Properties development

RS

Properties development

4% Annual Repore 2011
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44. W 8 2 5 ~ 36 ) ¥ o £ 44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY

B WG 8 4 vl ik o) CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES
(Continued)
R LIS 43
aEf L/ R /EMEA
L AEMENRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest  fully paid BEnE
N4 incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/ Place of — FEEH
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
3~ 224
2011 2010
WA ()
Subsidiary (Continuied)
BBEHEAERAR (Kt 93.5%  935% AMEAARE  HHE Ll
Chengdu Yuanbo Gardening PRC 20,000,000 7 PRC Nursery of seeding tree
Co., Ltd (note a) PR AR
20,000,000 75
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
ERLENENERARAA T 91.3% 913% FMERARKE  HE ES
(W3Eb) PRC 700,000,000 7T PRC Properties development
Chongging Beilonghu Property BRBAANRE
Company Limited (note b) 700,000,000 G
Registered
RMB700,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB700,000,000
ERMEAREARAA (kb hE 913%  913% AEMEAARE  PE VEZ T
Chongqing Henghong Investment ~ PRC 10,000,000 ¢ PRC Properties development
Inc. (note b) BRBAANRE
10,000,000 ¢
Registered
RMB10,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB10,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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B8 A wl W aEs

EEA

Name of company

WEAR ()
Subsidiary (Continued)

FEM AR/
TRk
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

EREFBHMEREARAA (Wikb) &

Chongging Juntion Real Estate
Development Inc. (note b)

BRI EERARAR
(B E a)

Chongging Longhu Chengheng Real
Estate Development Inc. (note a)

PRC

Gl
PRC

EEEWMCRARARAT (Wikb) &

Chongging Longhu Development
Company Limited (note b)

PRC

-
2011

93.5%

91.3%

91.3%

44. PARTICULARS

AR I A1 B
Equity interest
attributable to

the Group
“ERE
2010

93.5%

91.3%

91.3%

REZIE 43

B /GEMEA
Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

Gall R YN
778,000,000 ¢
VR INNL
778,000,000 76
Registered
RMB778,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB778,000,000

M ER AR
1,000,000,000 ¢
BRI NRH
1,000,000,000 75
Registered
RMB1,000,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,000,000,000

ik M A AR B
1,308,000,000 &
BEBA AR
1,308,000 1T
Registered
RMB1,308,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,308,000

BEn%
Place of
operation

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

EEEH

Principal activities

ES

Properties development

VES T

Properties development

VES T IEI$
Properties development
and investment

4% Annual Repore 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

44. WHE 2 Wl ~ 3t I ¥ T

44. PARTICULARS

B0 8% 2 v ik
(Continued)
aEf L/
L 5 A5 R A e
Place of Equity interest
N4 incorporation/ attributable to
Name of company establishment the Group
3~ 224
2011 2010
WA ()
Subsidiary (Continuied)
EREMENRERRARAA R 913%  913%
(fi3E a) PRC
Chongging Longhu Hengshang Real
Estate Company Limited (note a)
EEENALRERRARLAD  HE 95.6% 95.6%
(R3E b) PRC
Chongging Longhu Kaian Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (note b)
ERRNBERRARAA (Bitb) 8 913%  913%
Chongging Longhu Propeities PRC
Company Limited (note b)

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

R LIS 43

Bk /Mg A
Issued and

fully paid

shate capital/
registered capital

Gl R YN
30,000,000 75
BRERANRR
30,000,000 75
Registered
RMB30,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB30,000,000

Al R YN
1,278,000,000 75
EATIE N
1,278,000,000 75
Registered
RMB1,278,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,278,000,000

i MER AR
1,544.912,450 76
BRERA AR
1,544.912,450 70
Registered
RMB1,544,912,450
Paid up capital
RMB1,544,912,450

Place of
operation

i
PRC

PRC

Gl
PRC

OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES

FUEH

Principal activities

ES

Properties development

EZ T

Properties development

ESTIEI$
Properties development
and investment



/»/T

LA E &3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

A4. 10 8 2w ~ 3 Il o ol o AR
BB 8% A v ik
AL/
L 5
Place of
M4 incorporation/
Name of company establishment
WEAR (4)
Subsidiary (Continued)
ERENAHERARAA (Wita) HHE
Chongging Longhu Xijie Real Estate  PRC
Company Limited (note a)
EEENEELERRARLAD  HE
(F3E b) PRC
Chongging Longhu Yiheng Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (note b)
ERMARXARLA (ko) FH
Chongqing Rongkai Industrial PRC

Company Limited (note b)

-
2011

91.3%

95.6%

93.5%

44. PARTICULARS

AR I A1 B
Equity interest
attributable to

the Group
“ERE
2010

91.3%

*40.0%

93.5%

REZIE 43

B /GEMEA
Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

Gall R YN
624,000,000 ¢
VR INNL
624,000,000 75
Registered
RMB624,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB624,000,000

M ER AR
360,000,000 70
BRI N R B
360,000,000 &
Registered
RMB360,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB360,000,000

ik M A AR B
698,000,000 ¢
BERA AR
698,000,000 1T
Registered
RMB698,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB98,000,000

BEn%
Place of
operation

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

EEEH

Principal activities

ES IS8
Properties development
and investment

VES T

Properties development

ES T

Properties development

4% Annual Repore 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

44. WHE 2 Wl ~ 3t I ¥ T

44. PARTICULARS

BB 8 A\ WS )
(Continued)
FE L/
Rz AR A I
Place of Equity interest
Uk incorporation/ attributable to
Name of company establishment the Group
3§ “1-%F
2011 2010
WEAR (%)
Subsidiary (Continuied)
EERAREARAA (HiFa)  FHE 93.5% 93.5%
Chongging Tianzhuo Investment PRC
Company Limited (note a)
ERERHRERRAMAT (Wita) TH 93.5%  93.5%
Chongging Tianlang Agriculture PRC
Development Company
Limited (note a)
EETENMEREARAA il 91.3% 91.3%

(R ik a) PRC
Chongging Xinlonghu Properties
Services Company Limited (note a)

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

R LIS 43

Bk /Mg A
Issued and

fully paid

shate capital/
registered capital

Gl R YN
20,000,000 76
BRERANRR
20,000,000 75
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000

Al R IN
10,000,000 ¢
BRBA NRH
10,000,000 7
Registered
RMB10,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB10,000,000

i MER AR
5,000,000 ¢
BRERA AR
5,000,000 ¢
Registered
RMBS,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB3,000,000

Place of
operation

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES

FUEH

Principal activities

ES

Properties development

Bse
Nursery of seeding tree

EEE

Properties development



Management Company
Limited (note a)

/»/T

LA E &3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

A4 W 2 7 ~ Tt I 4 0 8
B W2 2 v WG o)
AL/
L 5
Place of
kL incorporation/
Name of company establishment
WEAR (4)
Subsidiary (Continued)
B A B 5 0 B R ) HE
(R3E c) PRC
Hangzhou Longhu Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (note ¢)
LREREREARAR (Wita) HE
Shanghai Hengchi Real Estate PRC
Company Limited (note a)
LEENEERARAT (Wika) E
Shanghai Longhu Property PRC

44. PARTICULARS

OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY

CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES

(Continued)

50 1 1t
Equity interest
attributable to
the Group
S§-—f “E-%H
2011 2010

100% 100%

93.5%

93.5%

91.3% 91.3%

REZIE 43

B /GEMEA
Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

it A
179,400,000 % TC
B
179,400,000 % 7t
Registered
USD179,400,000
Paid up capital
USD179,400,000

M ER AR
1,000,000,000 ¢
BRI N R
1,000,000,000 75
Registered
RMB1,000,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,000,000,000

ik M A AR B
5,000,000 7
BERA AR
5,000,000 ¢
Registered
RMB5,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB3,000,000

BEn%
Place of
operation

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

EEEH

Principal activities

ES

Properties development

VES T

Properties management

WEEH

Properties management

4% Annual Repore 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

44. WHE 2 Wl ~ 3t I ¥ T

44. PARTICULARS

B0 8% 2 v ik
(Continued)
AEM AR/
R E A5 R A e
Place of Equity interest
kL incorporation/ attributable to
Name of company establishment the Group
3~ 224
2011 2010
WA ()
Subsidiary (Continuied)
FERNEEERARARD (Wika) HHE 91.3% 91.3%
Shanghai Longhu Real Estate PRC
Co. Ltd. (note a)
FRERRMRELARLA (Bika) 8 93.5%  93.5%
Shanghai Xinrun Garden Virescence ~ PRC
Company Limited (note a)
ERBAREARAA (Wb  HE 935% 935
Shanghai Yujiu Industrial PRC
Company Limited (note b)

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

R LIS 43

Bk /Mg A
Issued and

fully paid

shate capital/
registered capital

Gl R YN
100,000,000 ¢
BRERANRR
100,000,000 75
Registered
RMB100,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB100,000,000

Gl R YN
12,000,000 ¢
EATIE N
12,000,000 76
Registered
RMB12,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB12,000,000

i MER AR
20,000,000 ¢

B BA AR
20,000,000 ¢
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000

Place of
operation

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES

FUEH

Principal activities

ES

Properties development

Bse
Nursery of seeding tree

EHE S
Trading of construction
materials



/»/T

LA E &3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

44. B B 2y W] ~ 3 ) e ol R

BB 8% A v ik
AL/
AR
Place of

KA 4R incorporation/

Name of company establishment

WEAR (4)

Subsidiary (Continued)

EHENEHERRARL A
(&£ b)

Shenyang Longhu Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (note b)

PRC

MM ERRARAR (Bekb) HE

Sichuan Longhu Real Estate
Development Company
Limited (note b)

PRC

FEEMRRERAMAR (Bita) P

Xi'an Longhu Jincheng
Company Limited (note a)

PRC

gk
2011 2010

93.5%

93.5%

91.3%

44. PARTICULARS

A 0 A 1
Equity interest
attributable to

the Group
“E-RE

93.5%

93.5%

91.3%

R RAR
Rk /g &
Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

AR
65,000,000 5% 7t
WA
65,000,000 % 7T
Registered
USD65,000,000
Paid up capital
USD65,000,000

At A AR B
50,000,000 ¢
ET I E NS
50,000,000 75
Registered
RMB50,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB>0,000,000

R Z N
430,000,000 ¢
BB A AR
430,000,000 &
Registered
RMB430,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB430,000,000

ABME
Place of
operation

il
PRC

PRC

PRC

OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

EEEH

Principal activities

WE%E

Properties development

WERE

Properties development

EZ

Properties development

4% Annual Repore 2011
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

44. WHE 2 Wl ~ 3t I ¥ T

44. PARTICULARS

B0 8% 2 v ik
(Continued)
aEf L/
R E A5 R A e
Place of Equity interest
N4 incorporation/ attributable to
Name of company establishment the Group
"R ZF-%F
2011 2010
WA ()
Subsidiary (Continuied)
MEEBDERBEARAA (Ko HE 91.3% 91.3%
Xi'an Longhu Property Service PRC
Company Limited (note a)
BERNDESRARAT (Bika) B 913%  91.3%
Xi'an Longhu Real Estate PRC
Inc. (note a)
WERNERERAMAT (Bika) 8 91.3%  913%

Xi'an Longhu Xingcheng Estate PRC
Co. Ltd. (note a)

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

R LIS 43

Bk /Mg A
Issued and

fully paid

shate capital/
registered capital

Gl R YN
3,000,000 7C
BRERANRR
3,000,000 7
Registered
RMB3,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB3,000,000

Gl R YN
50,000,000 G
EATIE N
50,000,000 75
Registered
RMB30,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB>0,000,000

i MER AR
219,610,000 7T
BRERA AR
219,610,000 1T
Registered
RMB219,610,000
Paid up capital
RMB219,610,000

Place of
operation

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES

FUEH

Principal activities

ES

Properties development

EZ T

Properties development

RS

Properties development



B B U 5 A B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

44. 005 )8 2 v ~ 3t ) ¥ o) B 44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY

B W2 2 v WG o) CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES
(Continued)
REZIE 43
AL/ B /GEMEA
WL AEMENRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest  fully paid BENE
M4 incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/ Place of — FE%F
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
"R ZF-%F
2011 2010
WEAR (4)
Subsidiary (Continued)
HEEEEEARAA (Wit  PH 913%  913% AMEAARE  HHE EHE S
Xi'an Yeheng Industrial PRC 20,000,000 7 PRC Trading of construction
Company Limited (note a) 4 EINGL materials
20,000,000 76
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
BHEMEXARLA (Wika)  WH 913% 3% AMEAARE  PE ES M
Wuxi Longhu Real Estate PRC 615,200,000 ¢ PRC Properties development
Inc. (note a) BRBANRE
615,200,000 75
Registered
RMB615,200,000
Paid up capital
RMB615,200,000
Jasmine Spread Investment Limited KBARTHE 100% 100%  HEERAS0000ET Fik hERR
(EBERRBL]) BRBRALIET HK Investment holding
The British Authorised
Virgin Islands USD50,000
(the “BVI") Paid up capital USD2
Join Dragon Limited ERAEFRHE 100% 100%  HEBAS0000ET Fik fREHER
BVI BRBALET HK Investment holding
Authorised
USD50,000

Paid up capital USD2

4% Annual Repore 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

44. W 8 2 5 ~ 36 ) ¥ o £ 44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
B WG 8 4 vl ik o) CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES
(Continued)
SRLRYR
AL/ R& /G A
L B AEMENRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest  fully paid BEnE
N4 incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/ Place of — FEEH
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
- “T-%F
2011 2010
WA ()
Subsidiary (Continuied)
Longfor Investment Co. Ltd. (Wfzkf) %BARwEE 100% 100% EERA1ET i RER R
Longfor Investment Co. Ltd. (note f) ~ BVI BRRA1ET HK Investment holding
Authorised USD1

Paid up capital USD1

Silver Oak Enterprises Limited REERTHE 100% 100%  EERA000FET Fib RER R
BVI BRBA L ET HK Investment holding
Authorised
USD50,000
Paid up capital USD2
FRERARAH FiE (FE]) 100% 100% EEBA 10000 &k BEEN
Fortune Glister Development Limited Hong Kong BRRA 1ET HK Tnvestment holding
(“HK") Authorised
HKD10,000
Paid up capital HKD1
AREAHRAT &ik 91.3%  913% EERA Eik BB B
Joy Wealth Trading Limited HK 100,000,000 # 7. HK Investment holding
BRRA
69,687,000 ¥ 7T
Authorised
HKD100,000,000
Paid up capital
HKD69,687,000

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &




B B U 5 A B
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BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

44. W 8 2 5 ~ 3t ) ¥ 44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
Ko 8 2 ) W wE 4 ) CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

REZIE 43
AL/ B /GEMEA
B B AEMENRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest  fully paid BENE
M4 incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/ Place of — FE%F
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
"R ZF-%F
2011 2010

WEAR ()
Subsidiary (Continued)

WA IR Bk 100% 100% EEBA 10000 &k BREN

Joyline Corporation Limited HK BRRA 1T HK Investment holding
Authorised
HKD10,000
Paid up capital HKD1

REEREE (HR) ARAR  FE 100% 00%  EERA Fit g el
Juntion Development Hong Kong HK 2,000,000 7 7c HK Investment holding
(Holding) Limited BRBA
2,000,000 # 7t
Authorised
HK$2,000,000
Paid up capital
HK$2,000,000

Longfor Company Limited Eik 100% 100% HEERA i hERR
HK 10,000 3 7 HK Investment holding
BB 1T
Authorised
HKD10,000
Paid up capital HKD1

ERARAH Bk 100% 100%  REMBA 10000 &k BREM
Treasure State Limited HK BRBA LT HK Investment holding
Registered
HKD10,000
Paid up capital
HKD1

4% Annual Repore 2011
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

44. W 8 2 5 ~ 36 ) ¥ o £ 44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY

B WG 8 4 vl ik o) CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES
(Continued)
R LIS 43
aEf L/ R /EMEA
L REMENBE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest  fully paid BEnE
N4 incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/ Place of — FEEH
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
3~ 224
2011 2010
TR ) ¢
Jointly Controlled Entity
B ER EXHRAT T 59.2%#+ 9.2+ EMEAARE  HE IES
(THEER ) (WHEE o) PRC 629,993,500 ¢ PRC Properties development
Chengdu Huixin Real Estate BRBANRE
Company Limited 629,993,500 7
(“Chengdu Huixin") (note d) Registered
RMB629,993,500
Paid up capital
RMB629,993,500
HARHERARAT il .74+ a170e EREAARE  HE ES
(THAFE®D (M) PRC 382,890,100 ¢ PRC Properties development
Chengdu Jia'nan Real Estate BRBANRE
Company Limited 382,890,100 7
(“Chengdu Jia'nan”) (note d) Registered
RMB382,390,100
Paid up capital
RMB382,390,100
RAREEEARAT i 46.2%#+ 4620+ GEMEAARE  AH EZ T
(THARED (W) PRC 653,275,800 0 PRC Properties development
Chengdu Jinghui Real Estate BRBAARE
Company Limited 633,275,800 7
(“Chengdu Jinghui”) (note d) Registered
RMBG53,275,800
Paid up capital
RMB653,275,800

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &




/»/T

LA E &3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

44. W08 2 Wl ~ 36 I ¥ o T

B W2 2 v WG o)
(Continued)
AL/
B B A4 R A e
Place of Equity interest
M4 incorporation/ attributable to
Name of company establishment the Group
“F-—f “T-%F
2011 2010
ARENER (4)
Jointly Controlled Entity (Continued)
HAAREEARA A T 46.2%#+  46.2%%+
(THAER)) (BEEd) PRC
Chengdu Tuocheng Real Estate
Company Limited
(“Chengdu Tuocheng”) (note d)
ERRENERER Gl 50%# 50%#
R (WiEa) PRC
Longhu Land Limited (note d)
Northpole Intermediary Limited HEHE 44.4%#F 44402
([ Northpole ]) Cayman
Northpole Intermediary Limited Islands

(“Northpole”)

44. PARTICULARS

REZIE 43

B /GEMEA
Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

Gall R YN
633,495,100 7.
VR INNL
633,495,100 15
Registered
RMB633,495,100
Paid up capital
RMB633,495,100

GRS
27,000,000 3 &
B
27,000,000 % 7T
Registered
USD27,000,000
Paid up capital
USD27,000,000

ik M B 7 200 % T
BRI 200 % 72
Registered
USD200

Paid up capital
USD200

BEn%
Place of
operation

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

HERE
Cayman
Islands

OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES

EEEH

Principal activities

ES

Properties development

WERRE

Properties development

BEER

Investment holding

4% Annual Repore 2011
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

44. 008 )8 2 v) > 3t ) ¥ o) B 44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
B WG 8 4 vl ik o) CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES
(Continued)
SR RAR
AL/ R& /G A
L B AEMENRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest  fully paid BEnE
N4 incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/ Place of — FEEH
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
- “T-%F
2011 2010

kRBEHER (4)
Jointly Controlled Entity (Continued)

AERBREEERAT Eib 50%# s REMPEA &b BB
Top Grand International Enterprise ~ HK 10,000 % ¢ HK Investment holding
Limited B
10,000 3 &
Registered
HKD10,000
Paid up capital
HKD10,000
B Al
Associate
REMERB (15 il 20% % dEfEA Gl RN
BRAHE (ke PRC 1,250,000 % & PRC Production of air
Ar Ke Er (note ) BRBA 100 % 70 conditioners
Registered
USD1,250,000
Paid up capital
USD100
FEEN (PE) ARAH REMARAHE 474w 4 EERA Eik RE B
Jiaxun Land (China) BVI 50,000 % ¢ HK Investment holding
Company Limited BREA100% T
Authorised
USD50,000
Paid up capital
USD100

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &




44. W& A ) -

B B U 5 A B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3t il ¢ o) 8
B8 A wl W aEs

B3t -

(a) %M 2 W) A o I RS 2 A 2 A

e

(b) W 2 R A S e B R L 2 R B AR

© BHEAT R R 2K -

(d) %3t £ BB A oR B R T 2 A3 o

(0 HBHEA T I B R 2 RN -

() WEAFRSARAEERENEAR - M
At A 2 D o AR 2 TR R AT

HERR > LRI EERBAEEE

R 2 A G W 2w o JE[R] 2 )
Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ“%/\j R A B
JB o3 R~ SEI] E R R R
FLORIFBRITR -

MEMEAAR_-FT——F+_H =1
—HBEGEMEEES  EEENSE
I AT R W) B AT T A4 ) A R A RE
2 A\ R #1,400,000,0007C 5 % Br 41 -

BEZZ——HtTZA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY

CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

Notes:

(a) The subsidiary is a domestic wholly-owned enterprise established in the
PRC.

(b) The subsidiary is an equity joint venture established in the PRC.

(c) The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the
PRC.

(d) The jointly controlled entity is an equity joint venture established in the
PRC.

(e) The associate is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the
PRC.

(f) The subsidiary is a wholly and directly owned enterprise by the
Company. All other subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities and associates of the Group which, in the opinion of
the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities and associates would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
December 31, 2011, except for Chongging Longhu
Development Company Limited which has issued RMB1,400
million bonds, in which the Group has no interest.

4% Annual Repore 2011
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BEZF-—H+_H=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2011

44. WHE 2 Wl ~ 3t I ¥ T
B W88 2 v kA )

44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES

s ) 4 T R WA 2 R (AR T
REB——F R _F—FF TN
= AR L 91.3% M HE i — Bt
BT R E AR o AT A
/NN R 2 RN |
Ub o A AR T AR G T R
WA A W AN F AR
N EA ACE B RESR D R50% » (A
A AT R A% AR B HE ) A 2E 9 R
%N AT PRI o

(Continued)

*

This company is a subsidiary held by Chongqing Longhu
Development, a subsidiary in which the Company has
91.3% equity interest at December 31, 2011 and 2010. This
company is indirectly controlled subsidiary of the
Company. Therefore, the Company could exercise the
control over this company through Chongqging Longhu
Development, though the effective beneficial interests
attributable to the Company in this company are
calculated at less than 50% based on the effective interest
holding percentage in 2010.

SENFRA YRR B REA L # These companies were accounted for as jointly controlled
) AL T R KA A AR B A entities as at respective period end date as in accordance
W Pl B8 S5 A v EE B K with the memorandum and the articles of the companies,
REPRAELMERE -BFAE - major financial and operating policies of these companies
required the unanimous consent of all the directors.
WA (A 42 BRI 2 m)) 3 B + The interests in Chengdu Jia'nan, Chengdu Tuocheng,

TR A R B AR B AR
i M K B A BE BT 7.84% ~ 4.74% ~
450% K 32.05% HE % > T
Northpole (7% 4E [ 3t [F] £ i 2 #) 4>
T B e A AT RO R
BEHR s BE K BEHR BE BT 92.16%
95.26% ~ 95.41% K 67.95% 1 HE i -
WIBME S EH R ZFELARAEE
MHRSEEOR A 2B A ER
—HF o AL BB E A A K&
S [6] 2 T T R B A K G AL
1l A8 49.13% MY 5 A -

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &

Chengdu Jinghui and Chengdu Huixin directly held by
Chengdu Jiaxun (a subsidiary of the Group) and
Northpole (a jointly controlled entity of the Group) are
7.84%, 4.74%, 4.50% and 32.05% and 92.16%, 95.26%,
95.41% and 67.95% respectively. Pursuant to the relevant
joint venture agreements, major financial and operating
policies of these companies required the unanimous
consent of all joint venture partners. The Group is
effectively entitled to 49.13% of profit of these jointly
controlled entities through its subsidiary and jointly
controlled entity.
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Five Years Financial Summary

BET A=+ —HILFEE

Year ended December 31,

"R S -FFE SEFNFE ZEFNE ERALF
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
ANR¥FLE AREETLE AREFLT AR¥EFIETE ARKETFL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEH Revenue 24,092,893 15,093,122 11,373,962 4,475,199 3,498,040
T 1 s £ Profit before taxation 11,444,230 7,068,474 4,061,040 680,679 1,625,281
Jir A5 i B 52 Income tax expense (4,523,942) (2,051,101) (1,568,581) (281,198) (724,081)
AF JE 355 Al Profit for the year 6,920,288 5,017,373 2,492,459 399,481 901,200
DLUR REAG - Attributable to:
/NS DN Owners of the Company 6,327,560 4,130,155 2,209,207 331,590 749,990
D WU R 45 Minority interests 592,728 887,218 283,252 67,891 151,210
AF i 35 ) Profit for the year 6,920,288 5,017,373 2,492,459 399,481 901,200

4% Annual Repore 2011




1 47 B 75 Wt

Five Years Financial Summary

BET A=+ —HILFEE

Year ended December 31,

—F-—H  ZEF-F4 ZZFNE ZFFNE ZFEFLE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
AREFLE AR#TET ARBETT AR¥ETEZ ARWFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
¥ R A ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
% AR Total assets 97,260,041 71,713,564 42,445,102 32,396,267 22,039,483
A A E Total liabilities (73,165,371)  (54,347,7449)  (29,206,540)  (28,452,033)  (18,511,015)
24,094,670 17,365,820 13,238,562 3,944,234 4,128,468
ANFEHEA AN Equity attributable to
JRE A HE £ owners of the Company 21,940,541 15,980,256 12,138,678 3,122,561 2,809,240
DEHR ML Minority interests 2,154,129 1,385,564 1,099,884 821,673 1,259,228
24,094,670 17,365,820 13,238,562 3,944,234 4,128,468

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & F B A &
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